SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
300 Lakeside Drive, P. O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688

BOARD MEETING AGENDA
March 22, 2018
9:00 a.m.

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors will be held at 9:00 a.m. on Thursday, March 22, 2018, in
the BART Board Room Kaiser Center 20™ Street Mall — Third Floor, 2040 Webster Street, Oakland,
California.

Members of the public may address the Board of Directors regarding any matter on this agenda.
Please complete a “Request to Address the Board” form (available at the entrance to the Board Room)
and hand it to the Secretary before the item is considered by the Board. If you wish to discuss a matter.
that is not on the agenda during a regular meeting, you may do so under Public Comment.

Any action requiring more than a majority vote for passage will be so noted.

Items placed under “consent calendar” are considered routine and will be received, enacted, approved,
or adopted by one motion unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from a
Director or from a member of the audience.

Please refrain from wearing scented products (perfume, cologne, after-shave, etc.) to these meetings, as
there may be people in attendance susceptible to environmental illnesses.

BART provides service/accommodations upon request to persons with disabilities and individuals who
are limited English proficient who wish to address BART Board matters. A request must be made
within one and five days in advance of Board meetings, depending on the service requested. Please
~ contact the Office of the District Secretary at 510-464-6083 for information. ’

Rules governing the participation of the public at meetings of the Board of Directors and Standing
Committees are available for review on the District's website (http://www.bart.gov/about/bod), in the
BART Board Room, and upon request, in person or via mail.

Meeting notices and agendas are available for review on the District's website
(http://www.bart.gov/about/bod/meetings.aspx), and via email

(https: //pubhc govdelivery.com/accounts/CATRANBART/subscriber/new?topic 1d—CATRANBART
1904) or via regular mail upon request submitted to the District Secretary. Complete agenda packets
(in PDF format) are available for review on the District's website no later than 48 hours in advance of
the meeting.

Please submit your requests to the District Secretary via email to BoardofDirectors@bart.gov; in
person or U.S. mail at 300 Lakeside Drive, 23" Floor, Oakland, CA 94612; fax 510-464-6011; or
telephone 510-464-6083.

Patricia K. Williams
Interim District Secretary

Please note: _
Although the address of the Board Room has changed, it is still in the same location.




Regular Meeting of the
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The purpose of the Board Meeting is to consider and take such action as the Board may desire
in connection with:

1. CALL TO ORDER

A. Roll Call.
B. Pledge of Allegiance.
C. Introduction of Special Guests.

2. CONSENT CALENDAR

A. Approval of Minutes of the Meeting of March 8, 2018.* Board requested
to authorize.

B. Side Letters of Agreement.*

a. American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees
(eBART), Local 3993, SL, 17-01, Clarification of Special Pay
Provisions

b. American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees,
Local 3993, SL 18-01, Contract Reorganization, Modification of
Disciplinary Procedures, Clarification of Special Pay Provisions,
and Special Provisions for Operations Supervisor Liaison

c. Amalgamated Transit Union, Local 1555, SL 17-02, Clarification
of Special Pay Provisions

d. BART Police Managers® Association SL 1-17 Clarification of
Special Pay Provisions

e. BART Police Officers’ Association SI 2-17 Clarification of
Special Pay Provisions

f. Service Employees International Union, Local 1021, SL 18-01
Clarification of Special Pay Provisions

g. Service Employees International Union (éBART), Local 1021, SL
18-01 Clarification of Special Pay Provisions

Board requested to authorize.

C. Resolution Authorizing Execution of the Additional Rail Cars Project
Application for the Fiscal Year 2018 Low Carbon Transit Operations
Program (LCTOP).* Board requested to adopt.

3. PUBLIC COMMENT - 15 Minutes
(An opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of Directors on matters under
their jurisdiction and not on the agenda. An additional period for Public Comment is provided at
the end of the Meeting,)

4. ADMINISTRATION ITEMS
Director Allen, Chairperson

A. Financial Ouﬂook for Fiscal Year 2019.* For information,

* Attachment available 2 o0f4



5. ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS ITEMS
Director Simon, Chairperson

A. Award of Invitation for Bid No. 9041, C55 Interlocking.* Board
requested to authorize.

B. Santa Clara County BART Extension: Update on Phase I and Phase II.*
For information.

C. Station Wayfinding Signage/Real-time Display Improvement Update.*
For information.

D. Service Plan for Transbay Tube Earthquake Safety Project.* For
information.

E. Officer-Involved Shooting: Process and Update.* For information.

6. PLANNING, PUBLIC AFFAIRS, ACCESS., AND LEGISLATION ITEMS
Director Blalock, Chairperson

A. Authorize Payment to Scoop Technologies for Federal Transit
Administration Grant.* Board requested to authorize.

B. Station Access Program Update.* For information.
C. Bicycle Program Update.* For information.

7. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT

A. Report of Activities, including Updates of Operational, Administrative,
and Roll Call for Introductions Items.

8. CONTROLLER/TREASURER’S REPORT

A. Quarterly Report of the Controller/Treasurer for the Period Endmg
December 31, 2017.* For information.

9. BOARD MATTERS

A. Board Member Reports.
(Board member reports as requlred by Government Code Section 53232.3(d) are
available through the Office of the District Secretary. An opportunity for Board
members to report on their District activities and observations since last Board Meeting.)

B. Roll Call for Introductions.
(An opportunity for Board members to introduce a matter for consideration at a future
Committee or Board Meeting or to request District staff to prepare items or reports.)

C. In Memoriam.
’ (An opportunity for Board members to introduce individuals to be commemorated.)

* Attachment available 3of4



10. PUBLIC COMMENT .
(An opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of Directors on matters under
their jurisdiction and not on the agenda.)

11. CLOSED SESSION (Room 303, Board Conference Room)

A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION
Name of Case: Transmart vs. BART
Case No.: Alameda Superior Court Case No. RG 17853926
Government Code Section:  54956.9(a)

B. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS:
Designated representatives: Grace Crunican, General Manager; Michael Jones, Assistant
General,Manager, Administration; and Martin Gran, Chief
Employee Relations Officer
Employee Organizations: (1) Amalgamated Transit Union, Local 1555;
(2) American Federation of State, County and Municipal
Employees, Local 3993;
(3) BART Police Officers Association;
(4) BART Police Managers Association;
(5) Service Employees International Union, Local 1021; and
(6) Service Employees International Union, Local 1021,
BART Professional Chapter
, (7) Unrepresented employees (Positions: all)
Government Code Section:  54957.6

C. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
Title: General Manager
Government Code Section: 54957

D. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE EMPLOYMENT
Title: - District Secretary
Government Code Section:  54957(b)(1)

E. CONFERENCE WITH NEGOTIATORS
Designated Representatives: Directors Keller, Raburn, and Simon
- Title: District Secretary
Government Code Section:  54957.6

12. OPEN SESSION

* Attachment available o 4 of 4



DRAFT

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
300 Lakeside Drive, P.O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688

Board of Directors
Minutes of the 1,809th Meeting
March 8, 2018

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors was held March 8, 2018, convening at 9:00 a.m. in
the Board Room, 344 20" Street, Oakland, California. President Raburn presided; Patricia K.

Williams, Interim District Secretary.

Directors present: Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Keller, McPartland, Saltzman, Simon and
Raburn.

Absent:  None. Director Josefowitz entered the Meeting later.
Consent Calendar items brought before the Board were:
1. Approval of Minutes of the Meeting of February 22, 2018.
2. District Base Pay Schedule.
3. Recruitment and Relocation for the Positions of Chief Procurement
Officer, Chief Performance and Audit Officer, and Assistant General
Manager, Performance and Budget.
4, 2018 Organization of Committees and Special Appointments Revision.
Consent Calendar report brought before the Board was:
1. Fiscal Year 2018 Second Quarter Financial Report.
Director Saltzman made the following motions as a unit. Director Blalock seconded the motions,
which carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes — 8: Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Keller,
McPartland, Saltzman, Simon, and Raburn. Noes - 0. Absent — 1: Director Josefowitz.
1. That the Minutes of the Meeting of February 22, 2018, be approved.
2. That the Board approve the base pay schedule in effect January 1, 2018.
3. That the General Manager or her designee be authorized, in conformance
with established District procedures governing the use of executive search
services, to identify suitable candidates both inside and outside of
California for the positions of Chief Procurement Officer, Chief
Performance and Audit Officer, and Assistant General Manager,

Performance and Budget; and that the General Manager be authorized to
enter into a relocation agreement, if necessary, in an amount not to exceed

-1-



DRAFT

$18,000 for each position, in accordance with Management Procedure
No. 70, New Employee Relocation Expense Reimbursement.

4, That the Board ratify the appointment of Director Bevan Dufty to the
Oversight Board to Successor Agency of San Francisco Redevelopment
Agency.

President Raburn called for Public Comment.
Clarence Fischer addressed the Board.
Director Josefowitz entered the meeting.

The following individuals addressed the Board.

Deana Abello

" James Burch
Antonette Bryant
Afiyah Chambers
Yolanda Banks Reed
Cat Brooks
Nailah Watkins
Cephus Johnson
Rashida Reed
Lonnie Monroe
Jayvon Muhammad
Roland Lebrun
Beatrice Muhammed
Asale Chandler
K. LeMon
Abayomi Jones
Karim Mayfield

Director Simon requested the following as an item under Roll Call for Introductions: That staff
prepare a comprehensive report on the status of the investigation of the officer-involved shooting
of Mr. Tindle, to include a synopsis of what has occurred in the investigation so far and what is
anticipated to occur, process wise, in the future, what parties are involved in the investigation
and what role does each involved party play. We know that timelines are hard to predict, but it
would be helpful to be given an idea on how long each phase may take. Maybe the involved
agencies can help you with timelines. Also, please provide a description of the process San
Francisco uses to connect with the community after an officer-involved shooting.

Director Dufty seconded the request adding that the item should be agendized at the next
meeting.

President Raburn announced that the order of agenda items would be changed, and that the

Board would enter into closed session under Item 10-A (Conference with Legal Counsel), and
that the Board would reconvene in open session at the conclusion of the closed session.

-



DRAFT

The Board Meeting recessed at 10:33 a.m.

The Board Meeting reconvened in closed session at 10:38 a.m.

Directors present: Directors Blalock, Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland, Saltzman, Simon and
Raburn.

Absent:  None. Directors Allen and Dufty entered the Meeting later.
Director Allen entered the Meeting.
Director Dufty entered the Meeting.

The Board Meeting recessed at 10:54 a.m.

The Board Meeting reconvened in open session at 10:56 a.m.

Directors present: Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland,
Saltzman, Simon and Raburn.

Absent:  None.

President Raburn announced that the Board had concluded its discussion of Item 10A of the
Regular Meeting Agenda and that there was nothing to report.

Director Allen, Chairperson of the Administration Committee, had no report.

Director Simon, Chairperson of the Engineering and Operations Committee, brought the matter
of Award of Contract No. 01RQ-150, Construction of Hayward Maintenance Complex Central
Warehouse, before the Board. Mr. Paul Oversier, Assistant General Manager, Operations, and
Mr. Thomas Horton, Group Manager, Hayward Maintenance Complex, presented the item. The
item was discussed. Director McPartland moved that the General Manager be authorized to
award Contract No. 01RQ-150, for construction of the Hayward Maintenance Complex Project,
Central Warehouse, to Clark Construction Group — California, LP, for the total Bid price of
$49,838,100.00, pursuant to notification to be issued by the General Manager, subject to the
District’s protest procedures and Federal Transit Administration’s requirements related to
protests. Director Blalock seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous electronic vote.
Ayes - 9: Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland, Saltzman, Simon,
and Raburn. Noes - 0.

Director Simon brought the matter of Agreement with BlackBox Network Services for
Telecommunications Systems Maintenance before the Board. Mr. Randall Radford,
Superintendent, Systems Maintenance, presented the item. The item was discussed. Director

-3-



DRAFT

Blalock moved that the General Manager be authorized to execute a 3-year agreement with
BlackBox Network Services to provide Telecommunications Systems Maintenance services and
equipment, and at her discretion, to exercise the option to renew for two additional one-year
terms, for a total not to exceed price of $1,100,000.00. Director Raburn seconded the motion,
which carried by unanimous acclamation. Ayes - 9: Directors Allen, Blalock, Dutty,
Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland, Saltzman, Simon, and Raburn. Noes - 0.

Director Simon brought the matter of Santa Clara County BART Extension: Update on Phase I
and Phase II, before the Board. Mr. Robert Mitroff, Chief Planning and Development Officer;
Ms. Tamar Allen, Chief Maintenance and Engineering Officer; Mr. Oversier; and Mr. Barney
Smits, Project Manager, Maintenance and Engineering, presented the item. The item was
discussed.

Roland LeBrun addressed the Board.

President Raburn announced that the Board will recess until 1:10 p.m.

The Board Meeting recessed at 12:41 p.m.

The Board Meeting reconvened at 1:10 p.m.

Directors present: Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland,
Saltzman, Simon and Raburn.

Absent: None.

Director Blalock, Chairperson of the Planning, Public Affairs, Access, and Legislation
Committee, brought the matter of State and Federal Legislative Update before the Board.

J 6hn Marchand addressed the Board.

Mr. Carl Holmes, Assistant General Manager, Planning, Development, and Construction;
Ms. Kerry Hamill, Assistant General Manager, External Affairs; Ms. Amanda Cruz, Program
Manager of Government Relations and Legislative Affairs; and Mr. Tim Schott and Mr. Jim
Lites, Schott and Associates, presented the item. The item was discussed.

The following individuals addressed the Board.
Joshua Davis

Rob Stoker

David Zisser

Peter Mui

Bob Vinn

Garrett Christensen

Joel Ramos



DRAFT

Discussion continued. Director Saltzman moved that the Board of Directors support Proposition
69 - Motor vehicle fees and taxes; restriction of expenditures: appropriations limit; Assembly
Bill (AB) 2304 (Holden) - Transit pass programs: status report; Senate Bill (SB) 1185 (Hill) - -
Firearms: law enforcement agencies: firearm accounting; and SB 831 (Wieckowski) - Land use:
accessory dwelling units. Director Simon seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous
electronic vote. Ayes —9: Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland,
Saltzman, Simon, and Raburn. Noes — 0.

Director Josefowitz moved that the Board of Directors adopt a position of neutral on AB 2923
(Chiu and Grayson) — San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District: transit-oriented
development, and work closely with the authors to express the concerns of the Board. Director
Simon seconded the motion. Discussion continued.

Director Dufty made a substitute motion to support both SB 827 (Wiener) — Planning and
zoning; transit — rich housing bonus, and AB 2923. Director Raburn seconded the motion.

Director Dufty amended the substitute motion to vote on Bills SB 827 and AB 2923 separately.
Director Raburn accepted the amendment.

Director Dufty moved the Board adopt a support position on SB 827, working with the authors to
address the concerns of the Board related to tenant protections, affordability, labor provisions,
incentives for developers, and prevailing wages. Director Raburn seconded the motion. The
motion carried by electronic vote. Ayes — 5: Directors Dufty, Josefowitz, Saltzman, Simon, and
Raburn. Noes — 4: Directors Allen, Blalock, Keller and McPartland.

Director Josefowitz moved that the Board adopt a position of neutral on AB 2923 and directed
staff to work with the authors to understand the requirements that would be placed on the District
and what the bill would deliver.

President Raburn made a substitute motion that the Board adopt a position of support on AB
2923. The substitute motion died for lack of a second.

Returning to the original motion, Director Keller requested the motion be amended to include
direction to staff to work with the legislators to identify possible funding sources for subsidies to
build housing in areas where the market does not currently support market rate housing. Director
Josefowitz accepted the amendment. Directors Simon and Saltzman seconded the motion, which
carried by electronic vote. Ayes — 7: Directors Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, Keller, Saltzman,
Simon, and Raburn. Noes —2: Directors Allen and McPartland.

Director Blalock brought the matter of Change Orders to State and Federal Legislative Advocacy
Agreements for Extension of Time before the Board. Director Saltzman moved that the General
Manager or her designee be authorized to execute the following change orders: a two-year
extension to Agreement No. 6M7152, with Schott & Associates, for State legislative advocacy
services, to April 1, 2020, for a total cost not to exceed $287,498.25; and a two-year extension of
Agreement No. 6M7153, with CJ Lake, LLC, for Federal legislative advocacy services, to

April 1, 2020, for a total cost not to exceed $504,000.00. President Raburn seconded the motion,
which carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes —9: Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty,
Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland, Saltzman, Simon, and Raburn. Noes — 0.

-5-



DRAFT

. Director Blalock brought the matter of Proposed BART Extension to Livermore Update before
the Board. Mr. Holmes; Mr. Val Menotti, Chief Planning and Development Officer; and Mr.
Andrew Tang, Principal Planner, presented the item. The item was discussed.

The following individuals addressed the Board:

Robert S. Allen
Van Rainey
Marianne Payne
Joel Ramos

Director Simon, Chairperson of the Engineering and Operations Committee, brought the matter
of the Quarterly Performance Report before the Board. Mr. Oversier and Chief of Police Carlos
Rojas presented the item. The item was discussed.

President Raburn announced that the closed sessions for Item 10-B (Conféfence with Labor
Negotiators), Item 10-C (Public Employee Employment), and Item 10-D (Conference with
Negotiators) would be continued to a future meeting.

President Raburn called for the General Manager’s Reporf.

General Manager Grace Crunican reported on steps she had taken and activities and meetings she
had participated in, ridership, upcoming events, and outstanding Roll Call for Introductions
items.

President Raburn brought the matter of Ratification of 39 Recommendations for Improvement to
the BART Police Oversight Structure before the Board. Mr. Russell Bloom, Independent Police
Auditor; Chief Rojas, and Ms. Crunican presented the item. The item was discussed. Director
Keller moved that the Board of Directors ratify the acceptance, and implementation as practical
by the BART Office of the Independent Police Auditor of the 39 recommendations listed that
were submitted by the OIR Group in its Indépendent Review of the BART Police Oversight
Structure dated June 2017 with an Addendum dated July 2017. Director Saltzman seconded the
motion, which carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes —9: Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty,
Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland, Saltzman, Simon, and Raburn. Noes — 0. (The numbers of the
39 recommendations are attached and hereby made a part of these Minutes.)

President Raburn called for Board Member Reports, Roll Call for Introductions, and In
Memoriam.

President Raburn reported he had attended the groundbreaking of Casa Arabella at the Fruitvale
‘Station. ‘

Director Blalock reported he had attended the Southbay Engineers Club meeting.

Director Dufty thanked Molly Burke for facilitating a meeting he and Director Josefowitz had
attended with the Hotel Council of San Francisco.



DRAFT

Director Dufty reqﬁested on behalf of himself and Director Simon that the Meeting be adjourned
in honor of Elliana Marie Newlin.

President Raburn called for Public Comment. No comments were received.
The Meeting was adjourned at 4:49 p.m. in memory of Elliana Marie Newlin.

Patricia K. Williams
Interim District Secretary



RATIFICATION OF 3.9 RECOMMENDATIONS FOR IMPROVEMENT TO THE BART
POLICE OVERSIGHT STRUCTURE

MOTION:

That the Board of Directors ratifies the acceptance, adoption, and implementation as practical by
the BART Office of the Independent Police Auditor of the 39 recommendations listed below that
were submitted by the OIR Group in its Independent Review of the BART Police Oversight
Structure dated June 2017 with an Addendum dated July 2017.

OIR Group Evaluation Report Recommendations:
2,5,6,7,8,9,10, 11, 13, 17, 18, 19, 20, 23, 24, 26, 28, 29, 30, 33, 34, 35, 36, 37,
40,41, 42, 43, 44, 45, 46, 47, 48, 49, 50, 51, 52, 53, 54.




EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: 14w N Zoty GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

At o o

DATE: 3/8/2018 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Originator/Prepared by: Paula Rojas (‘/ enerpl (Jhugsel Controller/Treasurer| District Secretary BARC

Dept: Labor Relations

Shana Dines Q
W 2

Signature/Date: %/O{ﬂg f g[ ) 3 ‘\’b\\[&]

SIDE LETTER OF AGREEMENT AFSCME/SL 18-01 - Contract Reorganization,
Modification of Disciplinary Procedures, Clarification of Special Pay Provisions, and
Special Provisions for Operations Supervisor Liaison

PURPOSE:

To ratify Side Letter of Agreement AFSCME/SL 18-01 Re: Contract Reorganization,
Modification of Disciplinary Procedures, Clarification of Special Pay Provisions, and
Special Provisions for Operations Supervisor Liaison between the District and the American
Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees, Local 3993.

DISCUSSION:

The California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) completed a Public
Agency Review of the District commencing in March 2012. Following that review, findings
were issued to the District on June 5, 2017, identifying the compensation provisions in each
labor contract that failed to comply with the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law
(PERL).

CalPERS identified certain pay items that had not been reported as required by statute as
compensation earnable, and certain special pay items which had been reported but the
provisions in the BART labor contracts were not sufficiently described to comply with the
PERL. For those specml pay provisions, the District historically reported them as reportable
compensation.

Following the June 2017 letter from CalPERS, the District bargained over the impacts of the
findings with the BART labor unions. This bargaining resulted in this Side Letter of
Agreement which clarifies certain special pay provisions in the parties’ Collective Bargaining
Agreement (CBA) to continue reporting them as reportable compensation.



SIDE LETTER OF AGREEMENT AFSCME/SL 18-01 - Contract Reorganization, Modification of Disciplinary Pro (cont.)

In addition, the Parties have been jointly revising the form of the contract. This Side Letter
provides for the reorganization of the contract without modifications of the terms and
conditions and includes clarification and modification of the disciplinary procedures allowing
the District to impose suspensions on employees as third step disciplines when warranted.

Finally, the parties agreed to certain work provisions related to the newly expanded
classification of Operations Supervisor Liaison and this Side Letter reflects those provisions.

The AFSCME-represented employees ratified this Side Letter of Agreement on March 1,
2018.

FISCAL IMPACT:
There is no fiscal impact.

ALTERNATIVES:

Reject the Side Letter. If the Board does not approve the Side Letter of Agreement, the
CBA will remain as written and CalPERS will issue its final determination that certain special
pay provisions do not comply with the PERL and, therefore, shall not be reported as
compensation earnable. This would reduce the pensionable income for those employees
who earn those special pay premiums. There will also be no change to the organization of
the CBA, the disciplinary procedure, or the work rules for the Operations Supervisor Liaison
classification.

RECOMMENDATION:
Adoption of the following motion:

MOTION:

The Board approves and authorizes the General Manager to execute the Side Letter of
Agreement AFSCME/SL 18-01 Re: Contract Reorganization, Modification of Disciplinary
Procedures, Clarification of Special Pay Provisions, and Special Provisions for Operations
Supervisor Liaison between the District and the American Federation of State, County, and
Municipal Employees, Local 3993.



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENE AGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
R‘u;le 2 .14 Macr 2ervg Q

L]
DATE: 3/8/2018 f BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Controller/Treasurer| District Secretary BARC

3{’?%[ ] [] %\7/\&[ ]

SIDE LETTER OF AGREEMENT AFSCME (eBART)/SL 17-01 - Clarification of
Special Pay Provisions

Originator/Prepared by: Paula Rojas H/
Dept: Labor Relations

Shoma Dines

Signature/Date: 3@@/—\“

’}“3“2

PURPOSE:

To ratify Side Letter of Agreement AFSCME (eBART)/SL 17-01 Re: Clarification of Special
Pay Provisions between the District and the American Federation of State, County, and
Municipal Employees, Local 3993, eBART chapter.

DISCUSSION:

The California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) conducted a Public
Agency Review of the District commencing in March 2012. Following that review, findings
were issued to the District on June 5, 2017, identifying the compensation provisions in each
labor contract that failed to comply with the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law
(PERL).

CalPERS identified certain pay items that had not been reported as required by statute as
compensation earnable, and certain special pay items which had been reported but the
provisions in the BART labor contracts were not sufficiently described to comply with the
PERL. For those special pay provisions, the District historically reported them as reportable
compensation.

Following the June 2017 findings from CalPERS, the District bargained over the impacts of
the findings with the BART labor unions. This bargaining resulted in this Side Letter of
Agreement which clarifies certain special pay provisions in the parties’ Collective Bargaining
Agreement (CBA) to bring them into compliance with the PERL and to allow the District to
continue reporting them as reportable compensation.



SIDE LETTER OF AGREEMENT AFSCME (eBART)/SL 17-01 - Clarification of Special Pay Provisions (cont.)

The AFSCME-represented eBART employees will vote to ratify this Side Letter of
Agreement on March 13, 2018.

FISCAL IMPACT:
There is no fiscal impact.

ALTERNATIVES:

Reject the Side Letter. If the Board does not approve the Side Letter of Agreement, the
CBA will remain as written and CalPERS will issue its final determination that certain special
pay provisions do not comply with the PERL and, therefore, shall not be reported as
compensation earnable. This would reduce the pensionable income for those employees
who earn those special pay premiums.

RECOMMENDATION:
Adoption of the following motion

MOTION:

The Board approves and authorizes the General Manager to execute the Side Letter of
Agreement AFSCME (eBART)/SL 17-01 Re: Clarification of Special Pay Provisions
between the District and the American Federation of State, County, and Municipal
Employees, Local 3993, eBART chapter.



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: , S’ m ave H ZOI 1 GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
DATE: 3/8/2018 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Originator/Prepared by: Paula Rojas Controller/Treasurer| District Secretary BARC

Dept: Labor Relations
Chawe Y oS

Signature/Date:m
3/1S/1€

SIDE LETTER OF AGREEMENT ATU/SL 17-02 - Clarification of Special Pay
Provisions

\‘2\[\\61

5"17/6[ ] [ 1(-' 2

PURPOSE: ;
To ratify Side Letter of Agreement ATU/SL 17-02 Re: Clarification of Special Pay
Provisions between the District and the Amalgamated Transit Union, Local 1555.

DISCUSSION:

ATU/SL 17-02 follows the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS)
Public Agency Review of the District commencing in March 2012. Following that review,
findings were issued to the District on June 5, 2017, identifying the compensation provisions
in each labor contract that failed to comply with the California Public Employees’ Retirement
Law (PERL).

CalPERS identified certain pay items that had not been reported as required by statute as
compensation earnable, and certain special pay items which had been reported but the
provisions in the BART labor contracts were not sufficiently described to comply with the
PERL. For those special pay provisions, the District historically reported them as reportable
compensation.

Following the June 2017 findings from CalPERS, the District bargained over the impacts of
the findings with the BART labor unions. This bargaining resulted in this Side Letter of
Agreement which clarifies certain special pay provisions in the parties’ Collective Bargaining
Agreement (CBA) to bring them into compliance with the PERL and to allow the District, in
most cases, to continue reporting them as reportable compensation.

Additionally, CalPERS identified issues with the compensation of the ATU Union President
and Side Letter of Agreement ATU/SL 17-02 specifies how the District currently



SIDE LETTER OF AGREEMENT ATU/SL 17-02 - Clarification of Special Pay Provisions (cont.)

compensates the ATU Union President in order to maintain the pay as reportable
compensation.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Because the Union President’s salary is no longer being reimbursed by ATU, this side letter
adds the cost of one additional full-time employee, currently $91,634 per year. There is no
other fiscal impact.

ALTERNATIVES:

Reject the Side Letter. If the Board does not approve Side Letter of Agreement ATU/SL 17-
02, the CBA will remain as written and CalPERS will issue its final determination that certain
special pay provisions do not comply with the PERL and, therefore, shall not be reported as
compensation earnable. This would reduce the pensionable income for those employees
who earn those special pay premiums.

RECOMMENDATION:
Adoption of the following motion:

MOTION:

The Board approves and authorizes the General Manager to execute the Side Letter of
Agreement ATU/SL 17-02 Re: Clarification of Special Pay Provisions between the District
and the Amalgamated Transit Union, Local 1555.



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

,/ZLJLM b wereh 2e1y

DATE: 3/8/2018 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

/
Originator/Prepared by: Paula Rojasw & Counsel Controller/Treasurer| District Secretary BARC

Dept: Labor Relations

SV\AV\&»D\'V\“”S d W
Signature/Date: %D_\/'\ W! \0’
e 3?3[8 [ ] 9,’,[] [ ] ’4'-‘7/\[]

2/13[19

SIDE LETTER OF AGREEMENT BPMA/SL 1-17 - Clarification of Special Pay
Provisions

PURPOSE:
To ratify Side Letter of Agreement BPMA/SL 1-17 Re: Clarification of Special Pay
Provisions between the District and the BART Police Managers' Association.

DISCUSSION:

The California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) conducted a Public
Agency Review of the District commencing in March 2012. Following that review, findings
were issued to the District on June 5, 2017, identifying the compensation provisions in each
labor contract that failed to comply with the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law
(PERL).

CalPERS identified certain pay items that had not been reported as required by statute as
compensation earnable, and certain special pay items which had been reported but the
provisions in the BART labor contracts were not sufficiently described to comply with the
PERL. For those special pay provisions, the District historically reported them as reportable
compensation; however, some special compensation items first negotiated in 2013 were not
reported because the contract language was insufficient to comply with the PERL.

Following the June 2017 findings from CalPERS, the District bargained over the impacts of
the findings with the BART labor unions. This bargaining resulted in this Side Letter of
Agreement which clarifies certain special pay provisions in the parties’ Collective Bargaining
Agreement (CBA) to bring them into compliance with the PERL and to allow the District to
continue reporting them as reportable compensation. The special assignment pay for sworn




SIDE LETTER OF AGREEMENT BPMA/SL 1-17 - Clarification of Special Pay Provisions (cont.)

officers was newly negotiated in 2013, so the District will begin reporting that pay as
compensation earnable following the ratification of this side letter.

The BPMA-represented employees ratified this Side Letter of Agreement on February 6,
2018.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The cost of reporting the sworn officer special assignment pay is an estimated ongoing
annual cost of $17,023. There is no other fiscal impact.

ALTERNATIVES:

Reject the Side Letter. If the Board does not approve the Side Letter of Agreement, the
CBA will remain as written and CalPERS will issue its final determination that certain special
pay provisions do not comply with the PERL and, therefore, shall not be reported as
compensation earnable. This would reduce the pensionable income for those employees
who earn those special pay premiums.

RECOMMENDATION:
Adoption of the following motion:

MOTION:

The Board approves and authorizes the General Manager to execute the Side Letter of
Agreement BPMA/SL 1-17 Re: Clarification of Special Pay Provisions between the District
and the BART Police Managers' Association.



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGE PROVAL: / l 4 Mo ﬂ( % GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

.

DATE: 3/8/2018 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Originator/Prepared by: Paula Rojas ()‘V N Gener ounsel Controller/Treasurer| District Secretary BARC

Dept: Labor Relations T

Shama Dines

Signature/Dateg’@\/‘\ ?/]9 ]g g\\ﬁ\\a
3/.3/i% 2§ [ ] [ ] [] []

SIDE LETTER OF AGREEMENT BPOA/SL 2-17 - Clarification of Special Pay
Provisions

PURPOSE:
To ratify Side Letter of Agreement BPOA/SL 2-17 Re: Clarification of Special Pay
Provisions between the District and the BART Police Officers' Association.

DISCUSSION:

The California Public Employees’ Retirement System(CalPERS) conducted a Public Agency
Review of the District commencing in March2012. Following that review, findings
wereissued to the District on June 5, 2017, identifying the compensation provisionsin each
labor contract that failed to comply with the California Public Employees’Retirement Law
(PERL).

CalPERS identified certainpay items that had not been reported as required by statute as
compensationearnable, and certain special pay items which had been reported but
theprovisions in the BART labor contracts were not sufficiently described tocomply with the
PERL. For those specialpay provisions, the District historically reported them as
reportablecompensation; however, some special compensation items first negotiated in
2013were not reported because the contract language was insufficient to comply withthe
PERL. Finally, the Parties recently reached agreement on a newspecial compensation item
and were able to sufficiently describe that pay typeto be reported as compensation earnable.

Following the June 2017 findingsfrom CalPERS, the District bargained over the impacts of
the findings with theBART labor unions. This bargainingresulted in this Side Letter

of Agreement which clarifiescertain special pay provisions in the parties’ Collective
Bargaining Agreement (CBA) to bringthem into compliance with the PERL and to allow the
District to continue reportingthem as reportable compensation. The special assignment pay
for sworn officers wasnewly negotiated in 2013, so the District will begin reporting that pay



SIDE LETTER OF AGREEMENT BPOA/SL 2-17 - Clarification of Special Pay Provisions (cont.)

pay as compensation earnable following the ratification of this Side Letter.

Additionally, this Side Letter of Agreement provides for a ten percent (10%) special
assignment pay for Community Service Officers (CSOs), increasing that amount from the
current five percent (5%) special assignment pay, for certain special assignments designated
as requiring enhanced skill or responsibility by the Chief of Police, with the General
Manager’s approval. This increased amount will be paid to CSOs assigned to perform
proof of payment enforcement duties, in accordance with Board Ordinance No. 2017-2.
This pay will continue until the District creates and hires into a new classification for proof
of payment enforcement. The Side Letter of Agreement also expands the Industrial Injury
benefit afforded to CSOs in certain circumstances to cover the performance of proof of
payment enforcement duties.

The BPOA-represented employees ratified this Side Letter of Agreement on January 2, 2018.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The cost of reporting the sworn officer specialassignment pay is an estimated ongoing
annual cost of $49,909. The increase in special assignment pay forthe Community Services
Officers assigned to proof of payment enforcement dutieswill add an estimated annual cost
of $21,608. There is no other fiscal impact.

ALTERNATIVES:

Reject the Side Letter. If the Board does not approve the Side Letter of Agreement, the
CBA will remain as written and CalPERS will issue its final determination that certain special
pay provisions do not comply with the PERL and, therefore, shall not be reported as
compensation earnable. This would reduce the pensionable income for those employees
who earn those special pay premiums. Additionally, the CSOs assigned to perform proof of
payment enforcement duties will receive the standard spemal assignment pay and will not be
covered by the Industrial Injury benefit.

RECOMMENDATION:
Adoption of the following motion:

MOTION:

The Board approves and authorizes the General Manager to execute the Side Letter of
Agreement BPOA/SL 2-17 Re: Clarification of Special Pay Provisions between the District
and the BART Police Officers' Association.



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL GER APPROVAL: ,q MacH 2 ol g GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

DATE: 3/8/2018 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Originator/Prepared by: Paula Rojas ( l ene, ounsel Controller/Treasurer| District Secretary BARC

Dept: Labor Relations ;P ]

S\Ae&\’\ﬂ- \V\e S R

Signature/DateW L 3/, b/g z 4} \1/\\??
sJang | 21eI€ [ ] [ ] [ ]

1 t

SIDE LETTER OF AGREEMENT SEIU/SL 18-01 - Clarification of Special Pay
Provisions

PURPOSE:

To ratify Side Letter of Agreement SEIU/SL 18-01 Re: Clarification of Special Pay
Provisions and attached tentative agreements between the District and the Service Employees
International Union, Local 1021.

DISCUSSION:

The California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) conducted a Public
Agency Review of the District commencing in March 2012. Following that review, findings
were issued to the District on June 5, 2017, identifying the compensation provisions in each
labor contract that failed to comply with the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law
(PERL).

CalPERS identified certain pay items that had not been reported as required by statute as
compensation earnable, and certain special pay items which had been reported but the
provisions in the BART labor contracts were not sufficiently described to comply with the
PERL. For those special pay provisions, the District historically reported them as reportable
compensation. Finally, the Partiesrecently reached agreement on a new special compensation
item and were able tosufficiently describe that pay type to be reported as compensation
earnable.

Following the June 2017 findings from CalPERS, the District bargained over the impacts of
the findings with the BART labor unions. This bargaining resulted in this Side Letter of
Agreement and attached tentative agreements which clarify certain special pay provisions in
the parties’ Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) to bring them into compliance with the



SIDE LETTER OF AGREEMENT SEIU/SL 18-01 - Clarification of Special Pay Provisions (cont.)

PERL and to allow the District, in most cases, to continue reporting them as reportable
compensation.

Additionally, this Side Letter of Agreement creates a new compensation provision for
employees assigned to be Employee in Charge (“EIC”), in accordance with the California
Public Utilities Commission General Order 175-A, to be paid an additional five percent (5%)
per hour while acting as the EIC. That amount is roughly double the one dollar (§1) an hour
leadworker premium they currently receive for that assignment.

The SEIU-represented employees ratified this Side Letter of Agreement and attached
tentative agreements on March 7, 2018.

FISCAL IMPACT:
The increase in EIC premium pay will add an estimated annual cost of $119,434. There is no
other fiscal impact.

ALTERNATIVES:

Reject the Side Letter. If the Board does not approve the Side Letter of Agreement and
attached tentative agreements, the CBA will remain as written and CalPERS will issue its final
determination that certain special pay provisions do not comply with the PERL and,
therefore, shall not be reported as compensation earnable. This would reduce the
pensionable income for those employees who earn those special pay premiums.
Additionally, the employees assigned to be EIC will continue to receive the leadworker
premium.

RECOMMENDATION:
Adoption of the following motion:

MOTION:

The Board approves' and authorizes the General Manager to execute the Side Letter of
Agreement SEIU/SL 18-01 Re: Clarification of Special Pay Provisions and attached tentative
agreements between the District and the Service Employees International Union, Local 1021.



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL AGER APPRO : GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

} Mereh 2014
4 am

DATE: 3/8/2018 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

o A .
Originator/Prepared by: Paula Rojas , &ene ounsel Controller/Treasurer| District Secretary BARC

Dept: Labor Relations
Shana Dijnes

OV
Signature/Date;m/‘v ~ )4 / 77/,{ 2 \6
Tially 3//5/[3 [ P N AN
— .

SIDE LETTER OF AGREEMENT SEIU (eBART)/SL 18-01 - Clarification of
Special Pay Provisions

PURPOSE:

To approve Side Letter of Agreement SEIU eBART/SL 18-01 Re: Clarification of Special
Pay Provisions between the District and the Service Employees International Union Local
1021, eBART.

DISCUSSION:

The California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) conducted a Public

- Agency Review of the District commencing in March 2012. Following that review, findings
were issued to the District on June 5, 2017, identifying the compensation provisions in each
labor contract that failed to comply with the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law
(PERL). ‘

CalPERS identified certain pay items that had not been reported as required by statute as
compensation earnable, and certain special pay items which had been reported but the
provisions in the BART labor contracts were not sufficiently described to comply with the
PERL. For those special pay provisions, the District historically reported them as reportable
compensation.

Following the June 2017 findings from CalPERS, the District bargained over the impacts of
the findings with the BART labor unions. This bargaining resulted in this Side Letter of
Agreement and attached tentative agreements which clarify certain special pay provisions in
the parties’ Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) to bring them into compliance with the
PERL and to allow the District to continue reporting them as reportable compensation.



SIDE LETTER OF AGREEMENT SEIU (eBART)/SL 18-01 - Clarification of Special Pay Provisions (cont.)

The SEIU-represented eBART employees ratified this Side Letter of Agreement and
attached tentative agreements on March 7, 2018.

FISCAL IMPACT:
There is no fiscal impact.

ALTERNATIVES:

Reject the Side Letter. If the Board does not approve the Side Letter of Agreement and
attached tentative agreements, the CBA will remain as written and CalPERS will issue its final
determination that certain special pay provisions do not comply with the PERL and,
therefore, shall not be reported as compensation earnable. This would reduce the
pensionable income for those employees who earn those special pay premiums.

RECOMMENDATION:
Adoption of the following motion:

MOTION:

The Board approves and authorizes the General Manager to execute the Side Letter of
Agreement SEIU eBART/SL 18-01 Re: Clarification of Special Pay Provisions between the
District and the Service Employees International Union Local 1021, eBART.



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors ' ' DATE: March 16, 2018

FROM: General Manager
SUBJECT: .= Side Letters of Agreement

At the March 22" Board of Directors meeting, staff is requesting approval of Side Letters of
Agreement for AFSCME, AFSCME (eBART), ATU, BPMA, BPOA, SEIU, and SEIU (eBART). The
Board has been briefed on all California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) review
items contained in the Side Letters, and has granted authority to Labor Relations to negotiate
agreements with the respective collective bargaining units.

The Side Letters primarily address language modifications to comply with the California Public
Employees Retirement Law for statutory and bargained special compensation provisions identified in
the review by CalPERS. There are a few additional contract modifications that were bargained that
are unrelated to the CalPERS review but were required to implement District programs. Lastly, there
are some language changes to improve clarity or organization of content that do not impact intent or
application. |

If you have any questions about the document, please contact Martin Gran, Chief for Labor
Relations, at 510-464-7591 or Michael Jones, Assistant General Manager, Administration, at 510-

464-6231.
/ZD 4/1

race Crunican

cc:  Board Appointed Officers
Deputy General Manager
Executive Staff



SIDE LETTER OF AGREEMENT

AFSCME/SL 18-01

RE: Contract Reorganization, Modification of Disciplinary Procedures, Clarification of
Special Pay Provisions, and Special Provisions for Operations Supervisor Liaison

Upon signing by the parties, this letter shall constitute a Side Letter of Agreement
between the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (“District”) and American
Federation of State County and Municipal Employees Local 3993 (“AFSCME”)
(hereinafter jointly referred to as “Parties”) regarding reorganization of the Contract
between the Parties, modification of disciplinary procedures, clarification of certain
special pay provisions, and Special Provisions for Operations Supervisor Liaison.

I.  The Parties have agreed that the AFSCME/BART contract should be reorganized
into a clear organization without modifications of the terms and conditions. The
following table specifies the revised order by providing the new section number

and the former section number as follows:

Section Number

Title 2013-2021 | 2013-2017
(New) (Old)

General Provisions 1.0 -
Purpose 1.1 2
Definitions 1.2 4
Mutual Rights & Responsibilities 1.3 5
Management Rights 1.4 6
Union Recognition 1.5 3&3.1
Classifications 1.5 () 3.2
Evaluation, Assessment and Revision of Job Descriptions

. . 1.5 (II) 3.2.1.
and Classifications
Union Representatives 1.6 8
Union Membership 1.7 7
Dues Deduction 1.8 9
Union Access to Work Locations 1.9 11
Access to Personnel Files 1.10 10
Successor Rights ‘ 1.11 15
[Wage Guidelines 1.12 57
No Strikes and No Lockouts 1.13 12
Non-Discrimination, Affirmative Action 1.14 13
Agreements Furnished 1.15 14
[ost Articles 1.16 44
Contracting Out 1.17 3.2(G)
[Employment & Work Provisions 2.0 -
Objectives and Market Relationships 2.1 47.1

112434.1 1



Probationary Period 2.2 91
Transfer/Reassignment 2.3 68
Job Postings 2.4 66
Performance Management and Evaluation 2.5 47.4
Performance Review Board 2.6 47.5
R eorganization/Reduction in Force Procedures 2.7 69.1
Wage Provisions 3.0 47
Salary For Fiscal Year 2014-2021 3.1 47.8
Pay Progression 3.2 47.3
Salary Schedules/Paybands 3.3 47.3 (A)
Compensation Related Personnel Actions 3.4 47.2
Pay Procedures 3.5 56
Credit Union 3.6 45
Conditional Lump Sum Payments 3.7 47.9
Compensation Provisions 4.0 -
Overtime 4.1 50
Compensatory Time 4.2 50
Shift Differential 4.3 51
[Lead Worker/Instructor Premium 4.4 47.7
[Temporary Upgrade 4.5 47.6
[Unscheduled Call Back 4.6 53
Stand-By Pay 4.7 52
Pension Benefits 5.0 -
Reimbursement of Employees’ PERS Contribution 5.1 25
Retirement Benefits 5.2 39
Pensioner’s Life Insurance 5.3 38
PERS Death Benefit 5.4 40
Money Purchase Pension Plan 5.5 23
Survivor Benefits 5.6 41
Medical, Vision & Dental Benefits 6.0 -
Group Insurance & District Self-Funded Plans — General 6.1 31
PERS-Medical & Prescription Drug Benefits 6.2 33
Vision Care Plan 6.3 34
Dental Care Plan 6.4 28
Supplemental Benefits 7.0 -
Group Life Insurance 7.1 32
Disability Coverage 7.2 29
Pass Privileges 7.3 24
Educational Assistance Program 7.4 36
Employee Assistance Program 7.5 37
Meal Allowance 7.6 55
Travel Allowance 7.7 54
Assault Insurance 7.8 27
Training 7.9 30

112434.1 2




Safety Shoes 7.10 43
[Leaves and Leave of Absence 8.0 -
Military Leave 8.1 17
Parenting Leave 8.2 18
Bereavement Leave 8.3 16
Jury Duty 8.4 19
Witness Duty 8.5 20
[Leave of Absence - 8.6 22
Vacation & Holiday Provisions 9.0 -
Vacation 9.1 49
Holidays 9.2 48
Donation of Vacation and Floating Holidays 9.3 93
Scheduling Provisions 10.0 -
[Workdays and Workweek 10.1 61
Alternative Work Program 10.2 61.1
4-10 Workweek 10.3 62
Flexible Hours 10.4 63
Time Keeping 10.5 56.1
Health & Safety Provisions 11.0 -
Sick Leave 11.1 35
Doctor’s Certificate 11.2 65
Medical Examinations 11.3 64
Health and Safety Protection 114 42
[Discipline & Grievance Procedures 12.0 -
Discipline and Termination Procedures 12.1 69
Grievance Procedure 12.2 59
[Witnesses 12.3 60
Job Abandonment 12.4 67
Special Provisions 13.0 -
Operations Control Center 13.1 -
[Train Controller Rest Periods 13.1 (D) 72
Train Controller Lunches/Breaks 13.1 (II) 73
Train Controller Extra Board 13.1 (III) 74
OCC Scheduling Committee 13.1 (IV) 75
Train Controller Scheduling - 13.1 (V) 76
[Train Controller Vacation Allocation 13.1 (VI) 77
Train Controller Overtime Allocation 13.1 (VII) 78
Train Controller Certification 13.1 (VIII) 79
Train Controller Performance Incentives 13.1 (IX) 80
[Train Controllers On the Job Instructor Program 13.1 (X) SL-1
Train Controller Training Supervisor 13.1 (XI) SL-2
Power and Way Controller Supervisor (P& W) — Scheduling | 13.1 (XII) 83
Power and Way Controllers (P& W) — Scheduling 13.1 (XIII) 82
Transportation Supervisors 13.2 -

112434.1




Uniforms 13.2 (D) 85
Scheduling 13.2 (ID) 86
Holiday Scheduling 13.2 (III) 86.1
[Training 13.2 (IV) 87
Seniority 13.2 (V) 88
Vacation Allocation 13.2 (V) 89
[Test Track Supervisor 13.2 (VI) | MOU 16-01
Maintenance 13.3 : -
Vacation Allocation 13.3 () 81
Operations Supervisor Liaison 13.4 SL 18-01
Seniority 13.4 (D) SL 18-01
Employee Shifts 13.4 (1) SL 18-01
Bidding Process 13.4 (1II) SL 18-01
Vacation Allocation  13.4(1V) SL 18-01
Time-Off Request Procedures 13.4 (V) SL 18-01
Overtime Allocation 13.4 (VD) SL 18-01
Holiday Scheduling 13.4 (VII) SL 18-01
Senior Operations Supervisor Liaison Applicants 13.4 (VIII) | SL 18-01
Committee Provisions 14.0 -
Joint Union/Management Committee 14.1 92
Benefits Review 14.2 46
[Investments Committee 14.3 Gen-1
Effect & Term of Agreement 15.0 -
[nterpretation 15.1 70
Beneficial Practices 15.2 58
Side Letters (SLs) and Memoranda of Understanding 153 90
(MOUs) Definitions )

Duration Of Agreement 15.4 1
Entire Agreement 15.5 71

gi i ons Line O PP: g . Clothi ) 84
'Maiﬁféeﬂaﬂee A Ile“‘aﬂee *

White BookBenefits * - 2-Hnused)
Blood Bank * - 26

* Sections that are no longer used will be deleted.

II. The Parties have agreed to modify the disciplinary procedures of the
AFSCME/BART contract. It is agreed that third step disciplines are appealable
and subject to the grievance procedure, and that the District may impose
suspensions on employees as third step disciplines when warranted. Section 12.1
C. (formerly 69. C.) Formal Discipline of the AFSCME/BART contract shall,
effective following ratification of this side letter, be modified as follows:

C. Formal Discipline

1. Investigative Interviews and Representation:

112434.1 : 4




112434.1

Before conducting an investigative interview that may result in the
employee being formally disciplined, the supervisor must advise the Union
and employee that they may have Union representation during the interview.

Review of Discipline:

In no case may a supervisor impose a formal disciplinary notice or discharge
upon an employee unless the action has first been reviewed and concurred
by the supervisor’s immediate superior and the District’s Labor Relations
Department Manager, or their designee. '

First Step Disciplinary Notice:

A first step disciplinary notice is in writing. It must include an explanation
of the deficiency, infraction, or misconduct that must be correct. A first step
disciplinary notice may be grieved.

Second Step Disciplinary Notice:

A second step disciplinary notice is in writing. It must include an
explanation of the deficiency, infraction, or misconduct that must be
corrected. A second step disciplinary notice may be issued when a first step
disciplinary notice has not had the desired corrective effect, or when the
seriousness of the first time deficiency, infraction, or misconduct warrants
more severe discipline. A second step disciplinary notice may be grieved.

Third Step Disciplinary Notice:

A third step disciplinary notice is in writing. It must include an explanation
of the deficiency, infraction, or misconduct that must be corrected. A third
step disciplinary notice may impose a suspension on the employee. A third
step disciplinary notice may be issued when a second step disciplinary
notice has not had the desired corrective effects, or when the seriousness of
a first time deficiency, infraction, or misconduct warrants extremely severe
discipline. A third step disciplinary notice may be grieved.

Discharge:

A discharge is a written disciplinary notice. It must include an explanation
of the causal deficiency, infraction, or misconduct. A discharge may be
issued when a prior step disciplinary notice has not had the desired
corrective effects or when a first time deficiency, infraction, or misconduct
is so serious that it warrants immediate discharge.

Pre-Disciplinary Hearing:

No suspension or discharge shall be effectuated until and unless the charges
have been heard and upheld by a Hearing Officer selected by the District.
The Hearing Officer shall not be the employee’s immediate supervisor, or
the immediate supervisor’s immediate superior. The hearing date, time, and
location will be scheduled by the Hearing Officer and the employee shall
receive written notice. The notice shall include a copy of the investigative
file. The employee shall be entitled to attend the hearing and to be



112434.1

represented by the Union. The employee will be permitted to submit
testimony and evidence, and to examine and cross examine witnesses. The
Hearing Officer will have full authority to affirm, modify, or rescind the
discharge. The Hearing Officer’s decision shall be in writing.

8. Appeal:

The employee may appeal the Hearing Officer’s decision by filing a
grievance. Discharge grievances shall be expedited and filed at Step 2 of
the grievance procedure pursuant to Section 12.2.

9. Discipline Records:

a)

b

If the employee works within the Transportation Department:

For a First Step Disciplinary Notice: The records of a formal
disciplinary action against an employee shall not be considered in any
subsequent disciplinary actions if there has been no disciplinary actions
initiated against the employee for a period of six (6) calendar months.

For a Second Step Disciplinary Notice: The records of a formal
disciplinary action against an employee shall not be considered in any
subsequent disciplinary action if there has been no disciplinary action
initiated against the employee for a period of nine (9) calendar months.

For a Third Step Disciplinary Notice: The records of a formal
disciplinary action against an employee shall not be considered in any
subsequent disciplinary action if there has been no disciplinary action

_ initiated against the employee for a period of twelve (12) calendar

months.

If the employee works within any other department other than
Transportation:

For a First Step Disciplinary Notice: The records of a formal
disciplinary action against an employee shall not be considered in any
subsequent disciplinary action if there has been no disciplinary action
initiated against the employee for a period of eighteen (18) calendar
months. :

For a Second Step Disciplinary Notice: The records of a formal
disciplinary action against an employee shall not be considered in any
subsequent disciplinary action if there has been no disciplinary action
initiated against the employee for a period of eighteen (18) calendar
months.

For a Third Step Disciplinary Notice: The records of a formal
disciplinary action against an employee shall not be considered in any
subsequent disciplinary action if there has been no disciplinary action
initiated against the employee for a period of eighteen (18) calendar
months.



III.

The Parties have agreed to clarify certain provisions of the AFSCME/BART
contract. It is agreed that those clarifications are not intended to and shall not
modify the current practices. The following provisions of the AFSCME/BART
contract shall, effective following ratification of this side letter, be modified as
follows:

Section 1.5. I. A. (formerly Section 3.2) Classifications, only those
classifications listed below shall be modified as indicated, with new text marked
by underlining and text to be removed marked as stricken. All other
classifications in this section of the AFSCME/BART contract not listed below
will remain unchanged:'

CLASSIFICATION PAY BAND
Accounting Supervisor G
Assistant Logistics Program Manager EG
Central Maintenance Supervisor EF
Industrial Hygienist EG
Insurance Analyst EF
IT Project Manager I
Manager of Accounting HI
Manager of Automotive and Equipment Maintenance *H

HI

Manager of Drafting & Configuration
Manager of Employee/Patron Safety
Manager of Inventory Management
Manager of Special Projects

Marketing Representative II

. s S .

Operations Supervisor —Operations Liaisons
Parking Coordinator

Parking Program Administrator

Planner

Power & Way Controller

Principal Marketing Representative
Principal Planner

Principal Property Development Officer

|%|E|%|¢£!*|<'f§l*'*”ﬂ“M@EIE%E

Public Information Officer

! There are currently disputes, including grievances, between the parties related to whether certain job
classifications should be AFSCME-represented. This revised listing of Classifications does not resolve
those disputes. Each party explicitly reserves all rights related to those disputes.

112434.1



112434.1

Safety Specialist

Senior Central Maintenance Supervisor
Senior Energy Analyst

Senior Financial Analyst

Senior Inventory Control Analyst
Senior Logistics Supervisor

Senior Marketing Representative
Senior Operations Safety Specialist
SeniorC ons.S .

Senior Operations Supervisor —Operations Liaisons
Senior Planner

Special Projects Manager, Structures

Special Projects Manager, Track

Special Projects Manager, Traction Power

Special Projects Manager, Train Control

System Service Supervisor

Technical Maintenance Support Administrator
Coordinator

" Train Controller

Transportation Supervisor

Treasury Analyst

The title of Section 6.4 (formérly Section 28) shall be changed to Dental Care

Plan.

Section 4.3 (formerly Section 51) Shift Differential shall be modified as

follows:

A. Where fifty percent (50%) or more of an employee’s shift occurs between
the hours of 4:00 p.m. and midnight, a swing shift premium of seven
percent (7%) will be paid for all hours worked during the shift at the
existing straight time rate of pay. When an employee works on a holiday
and receives one and one half times their regular rate of pay, in accordance
with Section 9.2 [formerly Section 48], this swing shift premium will be
multiplied by one and one half times, as well (i.e., 10.5%).

B. Where fifty percent (50%) or more of an employee’s shift occurs between
midnight and 8:00 a.m., a graveyard shift premium of nine and one half
percent (9.5%) will be paid for all hours worked during the shift at the

% IEJ IGU-) ILE I% Iq‘:j IGU-)

& Sereee® oo g,

Se E



A.

existing straight time rate of pay. When an employee works on a holiday
and receives one and one half times their regular rate of pay, in accordance
with Section 9.2 [formerly Section 48], this graveyard shift premium will
be multiplied by one and one half times, as well (i.e., 14.25%).

Section 4.4 (formerly Section 47.7) Lead Worker/Instructor Premium shall be
modified as follows:

A.

From time to time an AFSCME represented employee may be assigned, as
their primary assignment for part or all of the work day, to routinely and
consistently instruct other employees or lead them in an assigned task or
project in the absence of supervision, to conduct orientation or classroom
instruction, or to prepare instruction materials. The employee is considered

to be "routinely and consistently" performing instructor or leadworker duties

whenever he/she is so assigned, because such duties are part of the normally
required duties of this assignment.

If, in the judgment of the employee’s Department Manager, such an
assignment is outside the scope of the employee’s classification, the

. employee is entitled to an additional fifty (50) cents per hour, for the time

actually spent in this capacity.

Supervisors, managers, senior-level and principal-level professional,
(including analysts and specialists), are not eligible for lead worker
premium.

Section 13.1. X. (formerly Side Letter of Agreement: AFSCME SL-1) Train
Controllers On-the-Job Instructor Program (OJI), Sections A, B and C shall be
modified as follows:

Job Classification:

The OJI positions will be the same job classification as the Train Controller
classification. The OJIs will provide on-the-job instruction and training to Train
Controller trainees and other Train Controllers.

B. Compensation:

112434.1

L.

In addition to the compensation provided for in this Agreement, during the
OJI assignment, the OJIs shall receive an annual pay increase of eleven
thousand five hundred eighty-nine dollars and thirty-five cents
($11,589.35) for routinely and consistently instructing or training other
employees. An employee is considered to be "routinely and consistently”
instructing or training other employees whenever he/she is assigned as an
OJI, because instruction and training are part of the normally required
duties of this assignment. This additional compensation was based on ten



112434.1

percent (10%) of the average salary of certified Train Controllers, as of
7/31/16.

2. The District’s salary range scale shall not preclude any OJI from receiving
the full additional ten percent (10%) average compensation as described
above.

3. The District agrees to review and adjust, if necessary, the ten percent
(10%) compensation pay every two (2) years on July 31st using the same
formula as stated in No. 1 above. The District agrees that at no time shall
the pay increase be adjusted downward.

. Posting:

1.  The number of OJI positions, which shall be mutually agreed to by the
District and Union, shall be posted.

2. The OJI posting shall reflect the effective date and ending date of the two
(2) year assignment.

3. Re-posting of the OJI position shall occur every two (2) years from the
original date of posting, as well as the ending date of said assignment.

(Sections D through I as stated in SL-1 are incorporated herein by reference and
shall be retained verbatim and follow Section C.)

Section 13.1. XI. (formerly Side letter of Agreement: AFSCME/SL-2) Train
Controller Training Supervisor Program, sections A and B shall be modified as
follows:

Job Classification:

The Train Controller Training Supervisor position will be the same job
classification as the Train Controller classification. The Train Controller
Training Supervisor will supervise the Train Controller On-the-Job Instructors.

Compensation:

1.  In addition to the compensation provided for in this Agreement, during the
Training Supervisor’s assignment, the Training Supervisor shall receive an
annual pay increase of seventeen thousand three hundred eighty-four
dollars and two cents ($17,384.02) for routinely and -consistently
supervising other employees. An employee is considered to be "routinely
and consistently" supervising other employees whenever he/she is
assigned as Training Supervisor, because supervising is part of the
normally required duties of this assignment. This additional compensation
was based on fifteen percent (15%) of the average salary of certified Train
Controllers, as of 7/31/16.

10



112434.1

2. The District’s salary range scale shall not preclude the Training Supervisor
from receiving the full additional fifteen percent (15%) average
compensation as described above.

3. If the Training Supervisor opts out of the Training Supervisor Program or
is removed by management during any part of his/her term, the additional
fifteen percent (15%) average compensation shall cease on the effective
date of her/his last day in the Training Supervisor Program.

4. The District agrees to review and adjust, if necessary, the fifteen percent
(15%) compensation pay every two (2) years on July 31st using the same
formula as stated in No. 1 above. The District agrees that at no time shall
the pay increase be adjusted downward.

(Sections C through H as stated in SL-2 are incorporated herein by reference
and shall be retained verbatim and follow Section B.)

Section 13.2 Transportation Supervisors I. Uniforms (formerly 85 Special
Provisions Applicable to Line/Yard Senior Operations/Operations Supervisors —
Uniforms) shall be modified as follows:

Uniform Committee will consist of two (2) AFSCME representatives appointed
by the Union and two (2) District representatives appointed by the District. The
Uniform Committee will develop recommendations to the Chief Transportation -
Officer (“CTO”) or designee concerning the number, design, replacement
schedule, and cost of uniforms for Transportation Supervisor (“TS”). The CTO
or designee will consider such recommendations each January and will submit a
uniform budget amount to the Uniform Committee. The initial decision on such
matters and the right to revise such decisions is within the CTO or designee’s
exclusive discretion.

Uniforms provided pursuant to Section A above will become the property of the
employee after six (6) months of active service.

Transportation Supervisors shall maintain their uniforms in a neat and clean
condition, except in circumstances not reasonably within their control.

Transportation Supervisors who are required by the District to wear uniforms
will be provided a uniform maintenance allowance of thirty-five dollars ($35)
per month to be included as a separate line item in the employee’s paycheck.

Employees receiving a uniform under this Section are required to wear the
uniform and/or professional attire, as deemed appropriate by District
Management, at all times while on duty. Employees who fail to comply with
this Section may be subject to disciplinary action. Such employee may also be

11



relieved from duty and if relieved shall forfeit compensation for the balance of
that shift.

Uniform Allotment: A uniform allotment will be given to each Transportation
Supervisor under this provision. The allotment commenced fiscal year July 1,
2013. The allotment consists of an Initial Issue followed with a monetary check
the subsequent years of the contract. The cost of the Initial Issue is anticipated
to be less than $1800 per employee with an anticipated increase of 5%
(compounding) per year of this Labor Agreement.

@G. Initial Issue:

IV.

Two (2) Blazers with BART logo

Seven (7) pants/skirts-navy/black

Eight (8) dress shirts for men/blouses for women with BART logo
Two (2) sweater sets or navy vests with BART logo

One (1) all weather outer jacket with BART logo

Two (2) name tags

No $250 check

I U S o

An annual payment for the purchase of additional replacement
uniform/professional attire garments in the amount of $250 will be made in the
month of November of each subsequent fiscal year on a separate check.

The Parties have agreed to Special Provisions for Operations Supervisor —
Operations Liaison. Further, the Operations Supervisor — Operations Liaison will
be renamed to Operations Supervisor Liaison (“OSL”) and the Senior Operations
Supervisor — Operations Liaison will be renamed to Senior Operations Supervisor
Liaison (“SOSL”). All references to Operations Supervisor — Operations Liaison

~and Senior Operations Supervisor — Operations Liaison in the Collective

Bargaining Agreement between the District and AFSCME Local 3993 will be
changed accordingly. These special provisions are intended to address only the
OSLs position unless otherwise specified. The following provisions shall,

effective following ratification of this side letter, be added to the end of Section
13.0 Special Provisions of the AFSCME/BART contract, as follows:

13.4 OPERATIONS SUPERVISOR LIAISON

112434.1

I. ' SENIORITY
A. Seniority in this job classification shall be defined by the date of hire into
the Operations Supervisor Liaison (“OSL”) job classification, and as

otherwise described herein.

B. If the date of hire into the OSL job classification is the same for two (2) or
more employees than any current or previously AFSCME-represented

12



112434.1

employee will be determined to be the most senior employee. If two (2) or
more employees fall in this category, then the seniority ranking between
those two employees shall be determined by the District date of hire.

C. At any time, if the date of hire into the job classification is the same for
two (2) or more employees, and where no other provisions in this section
apply to define which of those employees is the most senior, seniority
shall be established by the senior date of birth of said employees.

II. EMPLOYEE SHIFTS

A. A workday for OSLs shall consist of at least eight (8) consecutive hours of
work with a scheduled starting time inclusive of meal periods and breaks.
OSLs shall receive a thirty (30) minute lunch and two fifteen (15) minute
rest breaks, which shall be considered as hours worked for pay purposes.

B. Each shift shall begin and end at the same assigned reporting location, and
once bid, such location will not change.

C.In case of emergency, urgent needs, or unforeseen circumstances, the
District may assign an employee to a temporary shift assignment which
alters the employee’s bid shift (hours, RDOs, and/or reporting location)
for up to thirty (30) days. Such shift-altering assignment may only occur
up to three (3) times per employee during an annual shift schedule bid.
Subject to other provisions of this Agreement governing choice of shifts,
notice of any changes in shift assignment will be given in writing, to any
affected employee, no later than 12:00 p.m. of the prior Friday. A change
in shift assignment for two (2) work weeks or less shall not change the
employee’s reporting location. If a temporary shift assignment is for a
duration of more than two (2) work weeks, up to thirty (30) days, the
District may only change the employee’s reporting location following the
initial two (2) work weeks of the temporary assignment.

III. BIDDING PROCESS

A.Management shall consult with the Union prior to establishing a shift
schedule bid.

B. Each time a shift schedule bid is developed, employees shall bid in the
following manner:

1. There shall be a specific number of shifts. The total number of shifts

will be equal to, or greater than, the total number of employees
eligible to bid.

13



112434.1

2. Employees shall bid for shifts by proxy. Proxies shall be awarded by
seniority. Employees who fail to submit a proxy, shall be assigned a
shift by the Union Representative conducting the bid. The Union
Representative shall use his/her best efforts to select a shift
assignment and days off as close as possible to the employee’s
present assignment and such selection shall be final.

3. Once bids are posted, the shifts cannot be changed or adjusted
unilaterally by Management.

C. No later than fourteen (14) days after all the new hires from the 2017 job

posting have begun work or by April 1, 2018, whichever date occurs first,
there will be.an initial shift schedule bid.

1. Thereafter, there shall be one (1) annual bid each calendar year, the
duration of each being approximately twelve (12) months. The start
and end dates of each annual bid shall be agreed to by both parties.

2. The parties may otherwise change the duration of any annual bid,
and/or agree to an additional annual bid, by mutual agreement.

D. Proposed shift schedules shall be furnished to the Union at least fifteen

(15) working days prior to conducting the bid. The Union shall respond to
the proposed shift schedules at least ten (10) working days prior to
conducting the bid. The final shift schedules available for bid shall be
posted at least five (5) working days prior to conducting the bid. Once the
bid is completed, shift schedules shall be posted and distributed to each
employee, at least five (5) working days prior to the date when the bid
becomes effective.

. Should a job be eliminated, created, or a permanent vacancy occurs during

the term of the annual bid, positions shall be awarded through a seniority
based Advanced Bid Form (“ABF”) Process. All OSL shall be required to
maintain with the District an ABF indicating their priority preferences for
shift, regular days off (“RDOs”), and work location. Forms will be
submitted and processed electronically.

1. The most recent submission will be used to fill an open position,
provided that form was filed at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to
the bid, the last form on file immediately preceding the twenty-four
(24) hours before the bid shall be used.

2. Position awards shall be made based on seniority and as a result of
the ABF process. Should the District be unable to fill a position
opening by means of the above procedure, said position shall be
posted for bid in accordance with the annual bid procedures.

14



112434.1

3. The Union will be given at least seven (7) days prior notice of any
District intention to initiate the ABF Process. All Advance Bid
information and material shall remain confidential. A designated
Union representative may be present when the District initiates the
ABF Process software.

IV. VACATION ALLOCATION

A.The District shall post a yearly vacation allocation calendar on or before

the first Monday of December for the forthcoming January 1st through
December 31st. Vacations will be allocated throughout the year, and
employees will be allowed to bid one (1) block at a time. Each block shall
be limited to a minimum of one (1) work week and a maximum of three
(3) work weeks, in one (1) week increments. Employees shall complete
their vacation selections prior to January 1.

. Employees may only bid vacation selections based upon annual vacation

accruals based on years of service. Vacation hours will be checked three
(3) weeks prior to the dates requested. If the employee does not have
sufficient vacation hours accrued and on the books at that time, the
vacation week may be cancelled by the Supervisor/Manager and the time
made available for rebid by seniority.

C. Once bid, employees may use floating holidays to complete the vacation

week(s).

D.Employees will select vacation periods by classification seniority. On and

after January 1 of the bid year, employees may select any remaining
vacation periods on a first-come, first-serve basis. Those selections will be
subject to staffing requirements.

. A vacation period may be cancelled by an employee upon two (2) weeks’

notice, except that in an emergency, no notice is required. Upon
cancellation, vacation periods shall be immediately posted for re-selection
by classification seniority. Employees may select a cancelled vacation
period provided staffing requirements are met.

TIME-OFF REQUEST PROCEDURES

Requests for time-off of less than a workweek will be granted in the
following manner, subject to staffing needs:

A. An employee may submit a vacation day(s) or floating holiday(s) request

at any time. If a request is received ten (10) days prior to the request date,
seniority will prevail in granting the time off. Vacation and floating

15



VI

VIIL.

112434.1

holiday requests received less than ten (10) days from the requested date
will be granted on a first-come first-serve basis, if available.

OVERTIME ALLOCATION |

The overtime list referenced in this Section shall include both OSLs and
SOSLs.

A. Available overtime will be posted at least ten (10) calendar days prior to
the scheduled date or as soon as practicable. Except as otherwise
provided below, overtime shall be on a voluntary basis.

B. Accrued overtime will be recorded on an Overtime List. This list will be
updated bi-weekly. Overtime records shall be available for purposes of
determining overtime assignments.

C. Employees on duty will have first choice for early starts and extensions on
their specific assignments, regardless of overtime hours worked, before
going to the Overtime List.

D.If two (2) or more persons desire the overtime, the person with the lowest
accrued overtime in the calendar year will be selected. If two (2) or more
persons with an equal amount of accrued overtime desire the overtime,
seniority will prevail.

E. If overtime is required but unknown in advance, or if there are insufficient
volunteers for posted overtime, overtime may be assigned by inverse
seniority as follows: first extension of on-duty employees in inverse
seniority order, second by early starts in inverse seniority order.

F. In the event that work is at a location that is only accessible at the
beginning or end of the work, overtime may be assigned by the extension
of on-duty employees at that job site.

HOLIDAY SCHEDULING

Should Management determine that work is required on the day a holiday is
observed, the holiday assignment will be offered in the following order:

A. Any employee who is normally scheduled to work an assigned project for
which there is work, and is normally scheduled to work the day on which
the holiday falls, will have first priority. If two or more persons fall in
this category, seniority shall prevail.

B. Any employee normally scheduled to work the day on which the holiday
falls, but not assigned to the project for which there is work, will have

16



second priority. If two or more persons fall in this category, seniority
shall prevail.

C. The holiday assignment will be offered to any remaining employees on the
basis of seniority amongst those employees.

D. Should there be no volunteers for work on a holiday, assignment will be
made by inverse seniority amongst the employees scheduled to work the
day on which the holiday falls.

VIII. SENIOR OPERATIONS SUPERVISOR LIAISON APPLICANTS

Selection for SOSL poéitions will be made on the basis of best qualifications,
as determined by BART; however, all other factors being equal, current OSL
employees will be given preference over other applicants.

This Side Letter of Agreement shall be deemed part of the Collective Bargaining
Agreement between the parties.

CONCUR FOR THE CONCUR FOR THE
DISTRICT UNION
Martin Gran, Chief Labor Relations Officer Sal Cruz, President

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District AFSCME

Date Date

1124341 17



SIDE LETTER OF AGREEMENT
AFSCME (eBART)/SL 17-01

RE: Clarification of Special Pay Provisions

Upon signing by the parties, this letter shall constitute a Side Letter of Agreement
which has been reached by the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (“District’™)
and American Federation of State County and Municipal Employees Local 3993, e BART
chapter (“AFSCME") (hereinafter jointly referred to as “Parties™) regarding clarification
of certain special pay provisions.

The Parties agree that certain provisions of the AFSCME/eBART contract require
clarification and the following provisions of the AFSCME/eBART contract shall,
effective following ratification of this side letter, be modified as follows:

1.

112447.1

Section 3.4 District Uniform Program/Regulation shall be modified as follows:

eBART employees are required to be in uniform at all times while on duty.
Employees shall maintain an appropriate appearance.

The District shall provide and replace uniforms and/or cover the cost of
purchasing uniforms for employees working within eBART, and shall

~ reimburse employees for the expense of laundering/maintaining uniforms or

provide for laundering at the District at no cost to the employee.

During the initial start-up, eBART management will meet with the Union
regarding each classification to determine: the style and the amount of items to
be provided, how the uniforms will be provided (e.g., purchased, rented), how
the uniforms will be maintained (e.g., cleaning, wear and tear), and if any
allowance is required.

After the initial start-up, e BART management will determine a replacement
schedule. In addition, the District will replace individual uniform items as the
items become worn or are otherwise in need of replacement. The value of the
uniform items to be provided is anticipated to be less than $1800 per employee
per year with an anticipated increase of 5% (compounding) per year of this
Labor Agreement. ~

If eBART management determines that employees shall be responsible for
laundering/maintaining uniforms, such employees shall receive a uniform
allowance as follows:

In FY18, uniform maintenance allowance shall be $50 per month to be included
as a separate item in the employee’s paycheck each month. Said amount shall



be increased by five dollars ($5.00) per month on July 1 of each fiscal year
during the term of the core BART/AFSCME Labor Agreement.

Section 6.3 Shift Differential shall be modified as follows:

Where fifty percent (50%) or more of an employee’s shift occurs between the
hours of 4:00 p.m. and midnight, a swing shift premium of seven percent (7%)
will be paid for all hours worked during the shift at the existing straight time
rate of pay. When an employee works on a holiday and receives one and one
half times their regular rate of pay, in accordance with Section 4.4, this swing
shift premium will be multiplied by one. and one half times, as well (i.e.,
10.5%).

Where fifty percent (50%) or more of an employee’s shift occurs between
midnight and 8:00 a.m., a graveyard shift premium of nine and one half percent
(9.5%) will be paid for all hours worked during the shift at the existing straight
time rate of pay. When an employee works on a holiday and receives one and
one half times their regular rate of pay, in accordance with Section 4.4, this
graveyard shift premium will be multiplied by one and one half times, as well
(i.e., 14.25%).

Section 6.4 Instructor Premium shall be modified as follows:

An employee assigned by the COO or designee to routinely and consistently
train other e BART employees shall be compensated with an additional one and
one-half (1)2) hours of pay at the employee’s existing base rate of pay for any
instruction up to four (4) hours, or with an additional three (3) hours of pay for
any instruction greater than four (4) hours. An employee is considered to be
"routinely and consistently” instructing or training another employee whenever
he/she is temporarily assigned to specifically instruct or train an employee on a
specific job, because instruction and training are part of the normally required
duties of this assignment.

This Side Letter of Agreement shall be deemed part of the Collective Bargaining
Agreement between the parties.

CONCUR FOR THE CONCUR FOR THE
DISTRICT UNION
Martin Gran, Chief Labor Relations Officer Sal Cruz, President

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District AFSCME

112447.1



Date Date

112447.1 3



SIDE LETTER OF AGREEMENT
ATU/SL 17-02

RE: Clarification of Special Pay Provisions

Upon signing by the parties, this letter shall constitute a Side Letter of Agreement
which has been reached by the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (“District™)
and Amalgamated Transit Union Local 1555 (“ATU ) (hereinafter jointly referred to as
“Parties”) regarding clarification of certain special pay provisions.

The Parties agree that certain provisions of the ATU/BART contract require
clarification and the following provisions of the ATU /BART contract shall, effective
following ratification of this side letter, be modified only as indicated below, with new
text marked by underlining and text to be removed marked as stricken. Unless underlined
or stricken, all pre-existing text is to remain unchanged.

1.

A.

Section 13.3 Premium Pay/Primary Booth shall be modified as follows:

The Station Agent working the primary booth in a multi-centroid station shall
be a leadperson and-paid-aceordingly over other bargaining unit employees, and
shall receive a lead pay premium of ten percent (10%) per hour in addition to
his/her applicable rate of pay for such time so assigned. This position shall be
bid at all Sign Ups for Station Agents.

The Union recognizes that the District may in the future close the second and
third booths of multi-centroid stations for one (1) shift per day. The District

agrees to continue to pay the remaining Agent the-leadperson-premium-in-such
situation a primary booth premium of ten percent (10%) per hour. -

The-premium-pay-shall-be-paid-te Agent who is actually working the primary

booth shall serve as the assigned leadperson over other employees and receive
the lead pay premium.

Section 19.7 Foreworkers in Tower/Yard Control Functions shall\be modified as
follows:

The District will maintain an adequate staffing level in the Towers to carry out
Yard Control functions in a safe and effective manner. Only Foreworker
classifications will perform Tower work, except a lower classification may work
in a training capacity upon agreement with the Union.

There shall be a Primary and a Secondary Tower Operator when two (2) Tower
Operators are on duty. The primary positions shall be a Senior Operations
Foreworker position and the secondary position shall be an Operations

LABORUNION 112394.1 1



Foreworker position. Present primary and secondary starting times shall remain
in effect except by mutual consent of the Union and the District.6565

When only one (1) Tower Operator is on duty, he/she shall be primary operator
and, if available, shall be relieved by a primary operator. If no primary operator
is available, a secondary operator may affect the relief.

When the need arises to temporarily fill a shift in a Tower, the District shall
draft a Foreworker to ensure that the Tower shift is filled. In such circumstance,
the Foreworker drafted to work in the Tower will routinely and consistently
perform lead and/or supervisory duties and shall be paid a Tower Draft pay
premium of fifty percent (50%) per hour additional to his/her applicable rate of
pay for hours temporarily assigned to the Tower. A Foreworker is considered to

be "routinely and consistently" performing lead and/or supervisory duties

whenever he/she is drafted to work a Tower shift, because they are part of the
normally required duties of this shift.

Foreworkers who bid and work ORY Tower secondary swing shift routinely
and consistently perform lead and/or supervisory duties, and shall be paid a
premium of ten percent (10%) per hour additional to his/her applicable rate of

pay. A Foreworker is considered to be "routinely and consistently" performing

lead and/or supervisory duties whenever he/she works ORY Tower secondary
swing shift, because they are part of the normally required duties of this shift.
This premium will remain in effect until such time as OHY yard maintenance
functions are restored. Foreworkers on Tower Dédraft pay premium are not
eligible for this premium.

3. Section 21.3 Temporary Instructor's Employee Development Specialist's Pay
shall be modified as follows:

training:_ Whenever an employee is temporarily assigned to perform the duties
of the Employee Development Specialist (EDS) classification, he/she shall be
paid at the same EDS step that he/she occupies in his/her current position, as
specified in the base wage schedule at Section 47.1, while assigned to training.

The applicable EDS rate shall be paid for vacations and holidays.
4.  Section 27.1 Holidays shall be modified as follows: |

The District shall observe thirteen (13) contractual holidays per year as follows:

New Year's Day (January 1)

Martin Luther King's Birthday (third Monday in January)
Washington's Birthday (third Monday in February)
Cinco de Mayo (May 5)

Memorial Day (last Monday in May)

LABORUNION 112394.1 2



Independence Day (July 4)

Labor Day (first Monday in September)

Veteran's Day (November 11)

Thanksgiving Day (fourth Thursday in November)

Christmas Day (December 25)

New Year’s Eve (December 31)

Employee’s Birthday

Chinese New Year (February 10, 2013, January 31, 2014, February 19,
2015, February 8, 2016, January 28, 2017, February 16, 2018, February 5,
2019, January 25, 2020, February 12, 2021)

Should any contractual holiday fall on an employee's day off, the employee, at
his/her option, shall receive an extra shift's pay at the employee's existing
straight time rate during that pay period, or an extra shift off with pay at the
employee's existing straight time rate (“floating holiday™) to be taken within the
contract year if requested by the employee upon return to work. Management
shall allow a minimum one (1) employee per classification, per location (yard or
line) to take a floating holiday except if an individual requesting the floating
holiday cannot be replaced through other provisions of this Agreement, the
request may not be granted. In such a case, the individual shall be given an
explanation for the rejection of the request. He/she shall receive all monies due
for the contractual holiday at the rate it was earned no later than the last pay
period of the contract year.

If an employee files a grievance alleging the District unfairly denied an
employee his/her floating holiday and subsequent investigation of the grievance
determines that the District did violate this provision of the Agreement, the
grievance will be settled in the following manner:

A. The grievant will be paid holiday pay, at the straight time rate, for the
denied holiday, and

B. The grievant will not be charged with a loss of the denied holiday, but the
holiday will still be carried on the employee’s records as an unused
holiday which may be used later, or, if unused later, will be paid off at the
end of the contract year as otherwise provided for in the Agreement. ‘

It is also understood that in determining if "...an individual requesting the
holiday cannot be replaced through other provisions of this Agreement, the
request may not be granted." - "other provisions of the Agreement" includes use
of the Overtime provisions of the Agreement.

Should a contractual holiday occur during an employee's recognized vacation,
the employee shall, at his/her option, receive an extra shift of compensation at
the employee's straight time rate for that pay period, or an extra shift off with
pay at the existing rate, to be taken consistent with department/ scheduling.

LABORUNION 112394.1 3



An employee may elect to have the post-tax cash equivalent value of unused
floating holidays deposited in his or her MPPP account, subject to applicable
legal limitations and the terms of the MPPP Plan.

5. Section 28.5 SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL shall be modified as follows:

A. Swing Shift: Where fifty percent (50%) or more of an employee's shift occurs
between the hours of 4:00 p.m. and 12 midnight, a swing shift premium of
seven percent (7%) will be paid for all hours worked during the shift, at the

existing straight time rate of pay.

i.

ii.

When an employee performs lead work and/or instruction and receives

a lead pay premium of 10%, in accordance with Section S13.3 or

S28.8, this swing shift premium shall additionally be increased by the
lead pay premium (i.e., an additional 0.7% for a total of 7.7%).

When an employee works on a holiday and receives one and one half
times their regular rate of pay, in accordance with Section S27.4. this

swing shift premium will be multiplied by one and one half times, as
well (i.e., 10.5%).

B. Graveyard Shift: Where fifty percent (50%) or more of an employee's shift

ocCurs

between midnight and 8:00 a.m., a graveyard shift premium of nine

and one-half percent (9-1/2%) will be paid for all hours worked during the
shift at the existing straight time rate of pay.

i.

ii.

When an employee performs lead work and/or instruction and receives
a lead pay premium of 10%, in accordance with Section S13.3 or

S28.8. this graveyard shift premium shall additionally be increased by
the lead pay premium (i.e., an additional 0.95% for a total of 10.45%).

When an employee works on a holiday and receives one and one half
times their regular rate of pay. in accordance with Section $27.4, this

graveyard shift premium will be multiplied by one and one half times,
as well (i.e., 14.25%).

6.  Section 28.8 Leadworker & Instructor Premium shall be modified as follows:

Whenever an employee is assigned to formally instruct another employee,
he/she shall receive ten percent (10%) per hour additional to his/her applicable
rate of pay for such time so assigned.

Whenever an employee in a Foreworker classification is assigned or directed to
conduct orientation or class-room instruction or to prepare instructional material
as his/her primary assignment for any part of a day, he/she shall receive ten
percent (10%) per hour additional to his/her applicable rate of pay for such time

LABORUNION 1123%94.1



so assigned. These provisions shall be applicable to incidental instruction by
Foreworkers in the course of his/her primary assignment during any such hour.

An employee assigned, in the absence of supervision, as a leadworker to
routinely and consistently lead other bargaining unit employees shall be paid a
leadworker premium of ten percent (10%) per hours additional to his/her
applicable rate of pay for such time so assigned. An employee is considered to

be "routinely and consistently" performing lead duties whenever he/she is

assigned as leadworker because they are part of the normally required duties of
this assignment.

7.  Section 29.5 Uniform Allowance shall be modified as follows:

Employees shall be provided a uniform allowance as follows:

Upon hire, employees shall be provided with uniforms, appropriate to their
classification as specified by the District. Replacement of uniforms shall be
made each year appropriate to the employee’s classification and in accordance
with the replacement schedule developed by the Uniform Committee with
delivery dates as provided for in the contract with the uniform supplier. The
value is anticipated to be less than $1600 per employee per year with an
anticipated increase of 5% (compounding) per vear of this Labor Agreement.

In addition, effective July 1, 2013, employees shall be provided a uniform
maintenance allowance of thirty dollars ($30.00) per month to be included as a
separate item in the employee's paycheck each month. Said amount shall be
increased by five dollars ($5.00) per month on July 1 of each fiscal year during
the term of this contract.

8.  The following agreement shall be added to MOU 02-99 and the Addendum

This Agreement is entered into this 4™ day of August, 2017 between the San
Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (BART) and Amalgamated Transit
Union Local 1555 ("ATU") in order to clarify the manner and method for
compensating the District employee selected to serve as the ATU
President/Business Agent, '

WHEREAS, the Collective Bargaining Agreement between BART and

ATU provides, at section 35, inter alia, that an employee on leave of absence
shall have the option to pay into and continue in Health and Welfare
Programs; that PERS contributions shall continue to the extent provided by
law; and that full time officials shall have recall rights to their former position
at BART with seniority accruing during such leave:

LABORUNION 112394.1 5



WHEREAS, MOU 02-99 and Addendum to 02-99 currently sets forth the
manner and method of compensating the BART employee elected to serve as
the ATU President/Business Agent.

WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed to modify the manner and method of
compensating the BART employee selected to serve as the ATU
President/Business Agent effective July 26, 2017.

WHEREAS. this Agreement supersedes MOU 02-99 and the Addendum
thereto.

NOW THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:

1. An employee selected as ATU President/Business Agent shall be oranted a
paid leave of absence from his or her positon at BART to serve, full time,
in that capacity.

2. The ATU President shall remain on the payroll of the District and shall
receive biweekly pay, for a forty (40) hour week, at his or her classification’s

straight-time rate of pay, for the duration of the time that the person is

President/Business Agent of ATU Local 1555 and on a Leave of Absence.

3. The District shall continue to enroll the ATU President/Business Agent in
all Health and Welfare benefits, PERS, MPPP and Deferred Compensation
consistent with the rules of those plans and section 35 of the Collective
Bargaining Agreement; the ATU President/Business Agent shall receive the

same benefits and make the same employee contributions as provided in the

parties’ Collective Bargaining Agreement.

4. The President/Business Agent will be covered for Workers
Compensation Insurance by ATU Local 1555. The President/Business Agent
shall be working solely at ATU's direction and on its behalf while on the
Leave of Absence. Said leave shall be implemented so that the employee does
not lose pay or benefits solely as a result of acting as President.

5. To the extent that this Agreement alters the mechanism by which the
President/Business Agent is paid, those changes shall go into effect
retroactively, on July 26, 2017, upon execution and ratification by both

parties.

This Side Letter of Agreement shall be deemed part of the Collective Bargaining
Agreement between the parties.

LABORUNION 112394.1 6



CONCUR FOR THE
DISTRICT

Martin Gran, Chief Labor Relations Officer
San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District

Date

LABORUNION 112394.1 7

CONCUR FOR THE
UNION

Gena Alexander, President
ATU, Local 1555

Date



SIDE LETTER OF AGREEMENT
BPMA/SL 1-17

RE: Clarification of Special Pay Provisions

Upon signing by the parties, this letter shall constitute a Side Letter of Agreement
which has been reached by the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (“District”)
and BART Police Managers Association (“BPMA”) (hereinafter jointly referred to as
“Parties”) regarding clarification of certain special pay provisions.

The Parties agree that certain provisions of the BPMA/BART contract require
clarification and the following provisions of the BPMA/BART contract shall, effective
following ratification of this side letter, be modified as follows:

1.

112469.1

Section 49, to the extent it addresses Quarterly Performance Report Incentive
Pay shall be modified as follows:

Quarterly Performance Report Incentive Pay

Lieutenants assigned as Zone Commandc;fs shall earn QPR incentive pay based
upon successful achievement of the following BART Police Department
Quarterly Performance Report (“QPR”) goals:

e BART Police Presence

o Crimes Against Persons

o Auto Theft and Burglary

e Average Emergency Response Time
o Bike Theft

¢ Quality of Life

Effective performance is achieved when three (3) of the QPR goals have been
met or exceeded. This incentive pay will be awarded quarterly only for superior
performance, meaning when four (4) or more of the QPR goals have been met
or exceeded, and will be paid following the announcement of QPR results
following each quarter.

The pay schedule for this incentive pay is as follows:
# of Goals Being Achieved: 4 5 6

Incentive Pay: $300 $500 $750

_The Chief of Police shall review the incentive pay program at the beginning of

each fiscal year (July) on an annual basis and may, at his/her sole discretion,



2.

112469.1

adjust the criteria of the QPR goals that have to be met in order for the incentive
pay to be awarded.

Section 50, Special Assignment Pay, shall be revised as follows

In order to attract and retain qualified managers for special assignments, the
District will compensate members assigned to the following special assignments
$350 per month for the duration of the assignment, the selection of which shall
last a minimum of one (1) year.

Canine Sergeant: Supervises the Canine Team.

Detective Sergeant: Supervises detectives and the Crime Analysis and
Video Recovery units.

Revenue Sergeant: Supervises Revenue Protection Guards.

Train Team Sergeant

TAG/SET Sergeant

Personnel and Training Sergeant: Supervises Training Officers and
Background Investigators.

Internal Affairs Sergeant: Assigned to conduct internal investigations and
other detective duties.

Traffic Sergeant

Critical Asset Patrol (CAP) Team Sergeant: Supervises the CAP Team.
Range Master Sergeant: Oversees all firearms training within the Police
Department.

Manager of Security Programs Lieutenant: Supervises Emergency
Preparedness Manager and all districtwide security programs.

Personnel and Training Lieutenant: Supervises the Personnel and Training
Sergeants.

Administrative/Support Services Lieutenant: Supervises staff assigned to
Police Administration (i.e., Fleet Maintenance, Evidence and Property,
Warrants, etc.).

Criminal Investigations Lieutenant: Supervises staff of the following units:
Criminal Investigations, Evidence Technician Program,Video Recovery
Unit, and Crime Analysis.

Internal Affairs Lieutenant: Supervises staff in the Internal Affairs unit.

Special assignment compensation will be discontinued upon the civilianization of
a position; or whenever a special assignment is eliminated by the Chief of Police.

Upon the addition of any special assignments, the Chief of Police shall meet and
confer with the Association to determine if these additional assignments shall
receive special assignment pay. The final decision shall remain with the Chief of
Police.



3.

112469.1

Section 63, Shift Differential, shall be modified as follows:

For employees working a 5-8, 9-80 or a 4-10 work schedule, the folloWing shall
apply:

Where fifty percent (50%) or more of an employee’s shift occurs between the
hours of

4:00 p.m. and midnight, a swing shift premium of seven percent (7%) will be paid
for all hours worked during the shift at the existing straight time rate of pay.
When an employee works on a holiday and receives one and one half times their
regular rate of pay, in accordance with Section 21, this swing shift premium will
be multiplied by one and one half times, as well (i.e., 10.5%).

Where fifty percent (50%) or more of an employee’s shift occurs between
midnight and 8:00 a.m., a graveyard shift premium of nine and one-half percent
(9.5%) will be paid for all hours worked during the shift at the existing straight
time rate of pay. When an employee works on a holiday and receives one and one
half times their regular rate of pay, in accordance with Section 21, this graveyard
shift premium will be multiplied by one and one half times, as well (i.e., 14.25%).

For employees working a 3-12.5 work schedule, the following shall apply:
Day shift shall be defined as “A” Platoon.

Swing shift shall be defined as “B” Platoon and shall be paid a shift premium of
seven percent (7%) for all hours worked during the shift at the existing straight
time rate of pay. When an employee works on a holiday and receives one and one
half times their regular rate of pay, in accordance with Section 21, this swing shift
premium will be multiplied by one and one half times, as well (i.e., 10.5%).

Graveyard shift shall be defined as “C” Platoon and shall be paid a shift premium
of nine and one-half percent (9.5%) for all hours worked during the shift at the
existing straight time rate of pay. When an employee works on a holiday and
receives one and one half times their regular rate of pay, in accordance with
Section 21, this graveyard shift premium will be multiplied by one and one half
times, as well (i.e., 14.25%).

Section 57, Uniform Allowance/Equipment, shall be modified as follows:

BPMA employees shall be provided with uniforms, appropriate to their
classification, upon hire. The District agrees to pay all members annually for the
cleaning, upkeep, and maintenance (excluding custom tailoring) of all BPMA
uniforms and the purchase of uniform shoes (excluding safety shoes). Payments
shall be made in the first payroll period in October as follows:

October 2013 $1,005
October 2014 $1,005
October 2015 $1,005



October 2016 $1,005
October 2017 $1,005

The uniform allowance shall also be reported to CalPERS as Uniform Allowance.

The District agrees to reimburse employees for actual costs incurred for
replacement of worn-out or damaged uniforms and damaged shoes. The District
further agrees to reimburse employees for actual costs incurred for replacement of
damaged, lost or destroyed equipment if such damage, loss or destruction is the
direct consequence of the discharge of the employee’s duties or of his/her
obedience to the directions of the District. The value of all uniforms initially
allotted to employees or replaced, excluding items that are solely for personal
hualth ancl safctv ( such as Drotcctlvc vests, pistols, bullets and safety shoes), shat

' anees-is anticipated to be less thanand
shau—ﬂe{-e*e%é $2000 per empl()\e in a year with an anticipated increase of 5%
(compounding) per year of this Labor Agreement.

Employees must obtain prior approval for replacement of worn-out, damaged, lost-
or destroyed uniforms or items of equipment listed above. After approval is
received, employees may purchase the uniform or item of equipment with an
approved replacement. Compensation to employees for such replacement shall be
accomplished by means of reimbursement upon presentation of a valid receipt.

Employees who are absent from work on leave of absence or non-industrial
disability leave for extended periods of time, shall receive a reduced uniform
allowance in accordance with the following schedule:

Absence Percentage Reduction
30 Days 25%

60 Days 50%

90 Days 100%

This Side Letter of Agreement shall be deemed part of the Collective Bargaining
Agreement between the parties.

CONCUR FOR THE CONCUR FOR THE
DISTRICT . ASSOCIATION
Martin Gran, Chief Labor Relations Officer Chris Vogan, President

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District BART Police Managers Association

112469.1



Date Date

112469.1 ) 5






SIDE LETTER OF AGREEMENT
BPOA/SL 2-17

RE: Clarification of Special Pay Provisions

Upon signing by the parties, this letter shall constitute a Side Letter of Agreement
which has been reached by the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (“District”)
and BART Police Officers’ Association (“BPOA”) (hereinafter jointly referred to as
“Parties™) regarding clarification of certain special pay provisions.

The Parties agree that certain provisions of the BPOA/BART contract require
clarification and the following provisions of the BPOA/BART contract shall, effective
following ratification of this side letter, be modified as follows:

1.

112448.1

Section 4.1 A, Vacation shall be revised as follows:

In the event that an employee’s bid vacation has been cancelled, he/she must
attempt to reschedule at least one (1) week or forty (40) hours of that vacation
within thirty (30) days of the date of cancellation. If an approved vacation is
cancelled by the District, the employee is entitled to be reimbursed for actual
and reasonable unrecovered expenses. Any unused vacation, if caused by action
or inaction of the District, may be carried over into the next calendar year. The
District may, in its discretion, require an employee to take up to one (1) week of
vacation during a calendar year. The District will grant three (3) weeks of
vacation following one (1) year of service, four (4) weeks of vacation after eight
(8) years of service, five (5) weeks of vacation after fifteen (15) years of
service. Automatically, upon the attainment of twenty (20) years of District
service, employees will accrue four (4) weeks of vacation.* On July 1%
following the date on which the employee has completed twenty (20) years of
District service, the employee shall forfeit three (3) vacation days, and
thereafter, accrue three (3) weeks and two (2) days of vacation. Effective July 1,
2005, Revenue Protection Guards and all Sworn personnel forfeit all “pop-up”
vacation time. Employees may carry over up to sixty (60) days (up to forty-
eight [48] days for employees on a 4-10 Plan) of vacation.

An enhancement to the vacation sign-up will take place at the same time
as the annual vacation sign-up. Four (4) additional positions for each of
the fifty-two (52) weeks will be listed as alternates. All employees will
be allowed to select a combination of vacation and alternate positions,
not to exceed the total number of weeks of vacation accrued for the
present year. When a week of vacation is cancelled, the first alternate will
be given that week of time.



The Minute Clarification to Section 4.1 shall be revised as follows:

* Minute Clarification

After twenty (20) years of District service, eligible employees will be permitted
to sign up for six (6) weeks of vacation only if the employee has the time
accrued already prior to the sign-up. Leave accrual excludes sick leave,
however, compensatory time and holiday time may be counted towards the six
(6) week sign-up request. An employee may sign up for a vacation time limit
less than six (6) weeks based upon the time the employee has accrued prior to
the sign-up only.

Section 4.5A, Holidays, shall be revised as follows:

A. The District shall observe thirteen (13) contractual holidays per year as follows:

112448.1

New Year’s Day (January 1st) *
Memorial Day (last Monday in May)
Independence Day (July 4th)
Labor Day (1st Monday in September)
Columbus Day (2nd Monday in October -

Federal government observed day)
Veteran’s Day (Federal government observed
Thanksgiving Day (4th Thursday in November)
Day after Thanksgiving (4th Friday in November)
Christmas Day (December 25th)

Four (4) floating holidays,
except employees who have
completed twenty (20) years of
District service shall receive no
floating holidays

* Swing shift employees shall be given New Year’s Eve as this holiday and
day shift and graveyard shift employees shall be given New Year’s Day as the
holiday.

In order to be eligible for holiday compensation, an employee must be in a paid
status the workday before and after the holiday. Should any holiday fall on an
employee’s day off, the employee shall receive an extra eight (8) hours of pay
at the employee’s regular base rate during that pay period, or an extra eight (8)
hours off with pay, to be taken at the option of the employee consistent with
department scheduling.



112448.1

Section 7.1 CSO Special Assignments, first paragraph, shall be modified as
follows:

The Chief of Police has the discretion to create Community Service Officer
(CSO) special assignments, including assignments that are routinely and
consistently responsible for administrative records of the Police Department,
within any bureau of the Department. A CSO is considered to be "routinely and
consistently" responsible for administrative records whenever he/she is in a
special assignment responsible for administrative records, because they are part
of the normally required duties of that assignment. If an assignment is created,
the following guidelines will be followed:

Section 7.1 D CSO Special Assignments shall be modified as follows:

. After being selected and upon successful completion of on-the-job training,

CSOs, while in special assignments, will receive a 5% temporary premium over
their pre-existing base-pay rate. For certain special assignments designated as

- requiring enhanced skill or responsibility by the Chief of Police, with the

General Manager’s approval, the temporary premium will be 10% over the
existing base-pay rate. Premium pay will not be compounded or pyramided in
an overtime situation outside of the employee’s special assignment; the
employee’s regular base rate of pay shall be used for the computation of
overtime; :

Section 8.3 D, Industrial Injuries, Community Service Officers, shall be
modified as follows:

Community Service Officers or other Non-Sworn Personnel

While on duty, if a Community Service Officer (CSO) or other non-sworn
employee is injured on District Property while providing immediate emergency
assistance to a Sworn Officer or performing Proof of Payment enforcement
duties who is engaged in a violent circumstance and/or is the victim of a violent
attack and who summons for assistance and/or is in need of assistance and
cannot summon for assistance, the BPD will pay the difference between the
employee’s Workers’ Compensation Benefit and the employee’s basic straight
time earnings for thirty (30) days after the first five (5) days of benefit that is
provided under the District’s Workers’ Compensation policy. During this thirty
(30) day period, the employee is subject to any and all of the provisions of the
District’s Workers’ Compensation Policy. Nothing in this paragraph is meant to
alter the terms and conditions set forth in said policy and the employee’s



112448.1

responsibility thereto. After the thirty (30) day period has expired, the
provisions set forth in paragraph “A” of this Provision, shall be implemented for
the remainder of the employee’s Workers’ Compensation absence from the
District, if such absence extends past the thirty (30) day period.

Section 10.6 Shift Differential, shall be modified as follows:

Employees working a 5/8, 9/80, or a 4/10 work schedule the following shall
apply:

Where fifty percent (50%) or more of an employee’s shift occurs between the
hours of 4:00 p.m. and 12 midnight, a swing shift premium of seven percent
(7%) will be paid for all hours worked during the shift at the existing straight
time rate of pay. When an employee works on a holiday and receives one and
one half times their regular rate of pay, in accordance with Section 4.5, this
swing shift premium will be multiplied by one and one half times, as well (i.e.,
10.5%).

Where fifty percent (50%) or more of an employee’s shift occurs between
midnight and 8:00 a.m., a graveyard shift premium of nine and one-half percent
(9%2%) will be paid for all hours worked during the shift at the existing straight
time rate of pay. When an employee works on a holiday and receives one and
one half times their regular rate of pay, in accordance with Section 4.5, this
graveyard shift premium will be multiplied by one and one half times, as well
(i.e., 14.25%).

Subject to Provisions 10.2, 10.3, and 10.5 of this Agreement governing choice
of shifts, notice of changes in shift assignment shall be given as far in advance
as practicable.

Employees working a 3/12-4/12 work schedule the following shall apply:

o Graveyard shift shall be defined as “C” Platoon and shall be paid a
premium of nine and one half percent (9 %%) for all hours worked during
the shift at the existing straight time rate of pay. When an employee works
on a holiday and receives one and one half times their regular rate of pay,
in accordance with Section 4.5, this graveyard shift premium will be
multiplied by one and one half times, as well (i.e., 14.25%).

e Day shift shall be defined as “A” Platoon.

* Swing shift shall be defined as “B” Platoon and shall be paid a premium of
seven percent (7%) for all hours worked during the shift at the existing
straight time rate of pay. When an employee works on a holiday and
receives one and one half times their regular rate of pay, in accordance
with Section 4.5, this swing shift premium will be multiplied by one and
one half times, as well (i.e., 10.5%).



112448.1

Section 11.2 Compensation, shall be modified as follows:

Sworn Officers
Longevity Pay Steps

Upon the completion of 10 years of service as a BART Police Officer, the
officer shall receive a 2.5% pay increase.

Upon the completion of 14 years of service as a BART Police Officer, the
officer shall receive a 2.5% pay increase.

Upon the completion of 20 years of District service, the employee shall receive
a 4.03% pay increase.

On July Ist following the date on which the employee has completed twenty
(20) years of District service, the employee shall receive a 2.47% pay increase.

1. Police Officer Candidates shall be paid a starting salary of seventy-five
percent (75%) of the Step 1 salary range for Police Officer until
successful completion of the Police Officer Standards and Training
(P.O.S.T.) certified Police Recruit Academy. The Candidate shall
thereafter receive eighty-five percent (85%) of the Step 1 salary range
until successful completion of the BART Police Department’s Field
Training Program.

2. If approved by the Chief in his or her discretion, Sworn officers, with
prior sworn officer experience may be paid a starting salary rate of not
less than Step 1 of the salary range for Police Officer until successful
completion of their probationary period.

Initial appointments of persons with prior police experience (with credit
for such experience to be determined by the Chief of Police) may be
made at any step through the Senior Police Officer range as determined
appropriate by management subject to successful completion of all
probationary requirements. This Provision shall not affect employees
hired before the effective date of the 2005-09 agreement.

Field Training Officers (FTOs)

Effective the pay period following ratification and adoption of the CBA, only
uniformed patrol officers, K-9 officers, and CAP Team members authorized as
FTOs by the Chief of Police, and who routinely and consistently train other
employees, shall receive a five percent (5%) incentive above base pay. An FTO
is considered to be "routinely and consistently" performing training duties
whenever he/she acts as an FTO, because they are part of the normally required
duties of this assignment. There will be a maximum of 12 FTO assignments.
The maximum FTO assignments may be exceeded at the discretion of the Chief
of Police. The Chief of Police shall fill FTO vacancies in accordance with the
FTO selection procedures set forth in Lexipol Policy 436, dated May 21, 2014,



112448.1

FTO pay shall cease when the employée is no longer working in an FTO
assignment.

An FTO who is not engaged in active FTO duties may be assigned OIC duties
and other ancillary duties/responsibilities at the discretion of the Chief of Police
or their designee. An FTO performing OIC or other relative duties shall not
receive OIC pay.

An FTO who previously served as an FTO (in accordance with the above
provisions) and returns to one of the above listed patrol assignments may apply
to the Chief of Police for reinstatement as an FTO. The Chief of Police may
waive the FTO selection process and reinstate the FTO.

Officer-in-Charge

An officer temporarily assigned to act as Officer-in-Charge, and who routinely
and consistently leads or supervises other employees, will receive five percent
(5%) above his/her present rate of pay while fulfilling such assignment. This
Provision does not affect the circumstances under which persons are assigned to
acting status. An Officer-in-Charge is considered to be "routinely and
consistently" performing lead and/or supervisory duties whenever he/she acts as
an Officer-in-Charge, because they are part of the normally required duties of
this assignment. :

Master Police Officer Program

The purpose of the Master Police Officer Program is to encourage experienced
officers to increase their professional skills by serving in special, specialized
and non-patrol assignments. To qualify for Master Police Officer status, an
employee must satisfactorily meet all of the following criteria:

1. Ten (10) full years of experience as a sworn police officer, seven (7) full
years of which must be as a Senior Advanced Officer and five (5) full
years of which must have been in patrol with the Bay Area Rapid Transit
District.

2. Work in and completion of two (2) full calendar year special, specialized
or non-patrol assignments, one (1) of which must be a non-patrol
assignment. The Officer must remain in the non-patrol assignment for a
minimum of three (3) years. Any alteration of this requirement must be
approved by the Chief of Police. Each of the following assignments
qualify as one (1) assignment credit toward completion of the
requirements needed to attain Master Police Officer status:

1. Background Investigator **
2. Bicycle Patrol

3. Canine Handler

4, Crime Analyst **

5. Defensive Tactics Instructor



112448.1

6. Detective **

7. Dispatch Qualified Officer

8. FBI Joint Terrorism Task Force **
9. Field Training Officer

10. Fireafms Range Officer

11. First Aid/CPR Instructor

12. Hostage Negotiator

13. I.D. Technician *

14. Juvenile Officer */**

15. Motorcycle Officer *

16. Personnel & Training Officer **

17. Special Enforcement Team (SET) **
18. Special Investigation Unit */**

19. Special Problems Unit */**

20. SWAT Team

21. Tactical Team

22. Together Against Graffiti (TAG) Team **
23. Traffic Officer **

24, Train Team */**

The Chief of Police retains the sole discretion to make assignments consistent
with Provision 7.1, Special Assignments. In the event an assignment is
terminated by the Chief of Police, an officer who has worked one hundred
eighty (180) days or more in a qualifying assignment shall receive credit for

- completion of the assignment.

The Chief of Police, at his discretion, may add assignments/ categories to the
qualifying list.

Receipt of an “Effective” or higher rating in the officer’s annual performance
evaluations and no active discipline at the time of application for Master Police
Officer status. Officers applying for Master Police Officer status who have not
received an annual evaluation within the last six (6) months shall receive a
written performance evaluation for the purpose of qualification for Master
Police Officer status. Officers who are rated less than “Effective” and wish to
appeal their disqualification shall have recourse to the Chief of Police for the
purpose of qualification for Master Police Officer status only. The written
appeal shall contain a brief outline of the facts and reasons giving rise to the
appeal.



Achievement of Master Police Officer status shall be contingent upon meeting
the requirements as set forth in Paragraphs A, B and C and formal presentation
and approval of the necessary documents. Once Master Officer status is attained
it becomes permanent. Officers achieving Master Police Officer status shall
receive a two percent (2%) increase to their base wage.

* Discontinued Assignments listed for the purpose of initial qualification on
January 1, 1996. These assignments shall be considered for future credit toward
qualification only at the discretion of the Chief of Police.

** These assignments are considered as non-patrol assignments for Master
Officer Status.

Master Officer Re-Opener:

Prior to July 1, 2015 The District and the BPOA shall meet to discuss the
categories and qualifications within the Master Officer Program. Any change
shall be by mutual written agreement. This reopener shall not modify the rights
and privileges pettaining to the authority of the Chief of Police in administering
the Master Officer Program.

Canine Handler Program

1. The District will purchase food prdducts directly and provide the
handler with supplies as needed.

2. The District will provide vehicles for duty and training assignments. .

3. The District will provide a kennel with slab at the handlers’ home. The
District will board the canine for up to three weeks during handlers’
vacation.

4. The District will be responsible for veterinary bills incurred by the
canine and the purchase of equipment deemed necessary by the
program coordinator for the effectiveness of the canine team.

5. After three continuous years with the canine, the handler will be given
first option to purchase the canine at an agreed price (will not exceed
$100.00).

6. Canine handlers will receive an additional 2 (two) hours overtime each
week for the additional time needed to keep and care for the canine.

B. Civilians

112448.1

Longevity Pay Step

Upon the completion of 20 years of District service, the employee shall receive
a 4.03% pay increase.

On July 1st following the date on which the employee has completed twenty
(20) years of District service, the employee shall receive a 2.47% pay increase.



112448.1

Community Service Officers (CSOs)*

CSOs will have a four (4) year pay progression with five (5) steps with twelve
(12) months between steps. The CSO salaries are identified in the BPOA Wage
Schedule.

* Minute Clarification

The final step was introduced on August 1, 2014 and will take place on the
employee’s next anniversary date.

Police Dispatchers

Progression to the top step of Dispatcher shall not be automatic, but shall be
contingent upon merit performance at a level determined acceptable by
management. After four (4) years of competent or better evaluations at this step,
this step shall become permanent.

Revenue Protection Guards

Revenue Protection Guards will be paid at a rate equal to 80% of pay~steps 1-5
for sworn police officers.

Effective January 1, 2014, Revenue Protection Guards will receive a fifty cent
($0.50) per hour premium for maintaining a Class A Driver’s License, which is
required by the District to perform their duties. The District does not have to
offer Class A Driver’s License training on a regular basis.

Sworn Officers & Civilians
Temporary Instructor

Whenever an employee is assigned to formally instruct another employee,
he/she shall receive two (2) hours straight time compensatory time for every
eight (8) hours so assigned.

Bilingual Pay

The District shall pay twenty-five dollars ($25) per pay period to active
employees certified as fluent in a designated foreign language who occupy
positions where the frequency of need and the use of the language is a
reoccurring benefit to the District and the communities it serves. The Chief of
Police retains the sole discretion to designate the languages, classifications and
certification processes associated with this Provision.

On-Call Status

Any time that management places an employee in an on-call status, the
employee shall receive ten (10) hours of compensatory time for each on-call
week worked. Employees in an on-call status cannot volunteer for or sign into
overtime while in on-call status.



10.

112448.1

Section 11.9A, Uniforms and Maintenance Allowance, shall be modified as
follows:

Uniforms

The Department will have a written procedure that will specify all
classifications required to wear District-purchased uniforms and state the
uniform standards for each classification. BPOA employees shall be provided
with uniforms, appropriate to their classification, upon hire and as items need to
be replaced, in accordance with the Department’s written procedure. The value
of all uniforms provided to employees, excluding items that are solely for
personal health and safety (such as protective vests, pistols, bullets and safety
shoes), is anticipated to be less than $2000 per employee in a year with an
anticipated increase of 5% (compounding) per year of this Labor Agreement.
All BPOA employees who are provided uniforms (Sworn Officers, Revenue
Protection Guards, Dispatchers, Police Administrative Specialists, and
Community Service Officers) shall receive an annual uniform allowance of one
thousand fifty dollars ($1,050), which will include the one hundred and twenty-
five dollar ($125) shoe allowance to be paid quarterly for cleaning and upkeep,
excluding tailoring and repairs. No allowance will be paid while any employee -
is in an unpaid status. '

Section 11.12, Special Assignments and Special Assignment Pay, shall be
modified as follows:

The Chief of Police retains the authority to make special assignments in any
manner deemed advisable for the best interest of the department provided the
employee possesses the minimum qualifications for the assignment.

The Chief of Police retains the authority to assign personnel as set forth above
and seniority modifications shall have no effect upon either the language or
intent of this Provision. The Chief of Police also retains the authority to create
special assignments within the Patrol Bureau for a duration not to exceed one

(1) year.

If such assignments will last for the entire duration of the sign-up period they
shall be made not less than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the beginning of the
semi-annual shift selection process required in Provision 10.2, Shift Selection.

In order to attract and retain qualified Police Officers for special assignments,
effective August 1, 2014, the District shall compensate all Police Officers two
hundred and fifty dollars ($250) per month for the duration of the following
assignments, which shall last for a minimum of one (1) year:

10



11.

Backgrounds: Assigned to Police Administration (conducts background
investigations) to provide support for Police Chief and command staff in
the operation of the police department.

Canine Team: Assigned to handle, train and board a canine.

Crime Analysis: Assigned to conduct crime analysis and other
investigative duties.

Critical Asset Protection Team (“CAP”): Assigned to patrol in areas
considered to be high value terrorism targets.

Detectives: Assigned to conduct criminal investigations and other
detective duties.

Joint Terrorism Task Force: Serves as the Police Department's liaison with -
the FBI and other Bay Area law enforcement agencies.

Traffic: Assigned to Police Administration (handles all traffic/parking
related matters) to provide support for Police Chief and command staff in
the operation of the police department.

Training Officer: Assigned to organize, coordinate and develop internal
and external trainings for BART PD personnel.

The Wage Schedules shall be modified to remove the notes following the
schedules for both sworn and non-sworn wages.

This Side Letter of Agreement shall be deemed part of the Collective Bargaining
Agreement between the parties.

CONCUR FOR THE CONCUR FOR THE
DISTRICT ASSOCIATION
Martin Gran, Chief Labor Relations Officer Keith Garcia, President

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District BART Police Officers' Association

Date

112448.1

Date

11



SIDE LETTER OF AGREEMENT
SEIU/SL 18-01

RE: Clarification of Special Pay Provisions

Upon signing by the parties, this letter shall constitute a Side Letter of Agreement
which has been reached by the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (“District™)
and Service Employees International Union Local 1021 (“SEIU”) (hereinafter jointly
referred to as “Parties™) regarding clarification of certain special pay provisions.

Nothing in this Agreement or the attached tentative agreements modifies existing
provisions of the Labor Agreement that were not expressly modified in this Agreement or
the attached tentative agreements. The Parties’ mutual goal was to cooperate with
-CalPERS to attempt to maintain the pensionability of special compensation items
referenced in CalPERS’s audit findings beginning in 2014, to the extent possible. To that
end, the Parties agree that certain provisions of the SEIU/BART contract require
clarification and the following provisions of the SEIU/BART contract shall, effective
following ratification of this side letter, be modified:

1. Section 12.2 Uniforms

2. Section 14.2 Shift Differential -

3. Section 14.5 Leadworker

4.  Section 14.6 Special Pay Premiums

5. Section 14.7 Temporary Instructor

6.  Section 20.2 Super—Seniority

7. Section 24.7 Relief Shift

This Side Letter of Agreement shall be deemed part of the Collective Bargaining
Agreement between the parties.

CONCUR FOR THE CONCUR FOR THE

DISTRICT UNION

Martin Gran Date John Arantes, President Date
Chief Labor Relations Officer SEIU BART Chapter

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District

Olivia Rocha, President Date
SEIU BART Professional Chapter



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
AND
SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION LOCAL 1021
| TENTATIVE AGREEMENT
RE: Uniforms

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (“BART”) and the Service
Employees International Union Local 1021 (“SEIU") (hereinafter jointly referred to as
“Parties”) have negotiated and reached a tentative agreement on modification of this
provision of the Collective Bargaining Agreement (“CBA”), by side letter, regarding
clarification of certain special pay provisions. No tentative agreement shall be a final
agreement except as a part of a total package agreement between the Parties related to the
side letter. All Parties agree that final approval of the tentative side letter and the
provisions modified by that side letter is subject to ratification by SEIU membership and
the BART Board of Directors.

The Parties agree to revise Section 12.2 as follows:
12.2 UNIFORMS *

During the life of this Agreement, the District will not handle uniform maintenance. The
following uniform allowances will apply for those classifications as specified by the
District:

A. Five (5) items of uniforms will be available to be worn by maintenance employees.
While on duty, one or more of the following items of apparel must be worn at all
times:

1. Coveralls
2. Shirt/slack combination
3. Bib overalls

4. Waist-length jacket
5. Shop coat (full length)

All items listed above must conform as to color, style, material, etc. to District
specifications, with the Union to be consulted in development of specifications. It is
hoped several Bay Area suppliers will be able to supply proper uniforms as needed.

B. All uniforms by specification must have the employee's name on front of apparel and
BART insignia may be required.

C. Each maintenance employee, as specified by the District, and the Union, shall be
supplied by the District at the District's expense any combination of five (5) items
indicated in Paragraph A above. Routine cleaning and repair of uniforms will be the

12.2 Page 1 January 26, 2018



responsibility of the employee. The District will replace individual uniform items as
the items become worn or are otherwise in need of replacement. The value of all
uniforms initially allotted to employees or replaced is anticipated to be less than
$1600 per employee per year with an anticipated increase of 5% (compounding) per
year of this Labor Agreement.

D. Washing or cleaning of uniforms on District facilities shall not be allowed. Storing of
soiled uniforms in personal lockers is to be discouraged and avoided due to hygienic
and fire hazards. Employees are expected to keep uniforms in repair and clean.

E. Clerical employees not now receiving uniforms will not be eligible for uniform or
maintenance allowance. However, if duties of any clerical employee involve handling
of dirty materials or servicing of copying machines which may cause frequent soiling
of clothing, an allowance of one (1) frock (up to a value of twenty-five [$25.00]
dollars) per contract year can be allowed during the life of the Agreement on an
individual basis. No maintenance allowance shall be paid to Clerical employees.

F. A maintenance allowance of one hundred dollars ($100) semi-annually shall be paid
on January 1 and July 1 of each year. This allowance shall be included in the
employee's paycheck for the first pay period following January 1 and July 1 of each
_year. Said allowance shall be for the purchase and/or maintenance of uniforms.
Employees hired on October 1 through December 31 and April 1 through June 30 of
each Agreement year will be eligible to receive one (1) pair of safety shoes, but will
not be eligible for the allowance until the first January or July allowance date after six
(6) months of employment in an eligible classification. In those departments where
the District has contracted for the cleaning and maintenance of uniform items,
bargaining unit employees shall not be eligible to receive the semi-annual
maintenance allowance.

* MINUTE CLARIFICATION

The Union Chairperson and employees in a disability status of more than three (3)
months during a respective uniform allowance period shall not be eligible for said
uniform allowance.

12.2 \ Page 2 January 26, 2018



Dated: 42,/ / /// &

FOR THE DISTRICT FOR THE UNION

Martin Gran
Chief Labor Relations Ofl 1068/:@

President, BART Chapter

Olivia Roch4
President, BART Professional Chapter

PROVED AS TO FORM:

ST WK
Offixs of the Geneka} Counsel
By Victoria R. Nuetzel

v

122 Page 3 January 26, 2018



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
AND
SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAIL UNION LOCAL 1021
TENTATIVE AGREEMENT
RE: Shift Differential

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (“BART”) and the Service _
Employees International Union Local 1021 (“SEIU") (hereinafter jointly referred to as
“Parties”) have negotiated and reached a tentative agreement on modification of this
provision of the Collective Bargaining Agreement (“CBA”), by side letter, regarding
clarification of certain special pay provisions. No tentative agreement shall be a final
agreement except as a part of a total package agreement between the Parties related to the
side letter. All Parties agree that final approval of the tentative side letter and the
provisions modified by that side letter is subject to ratification by SEIU membership and
the BART Board of Directors.

The Parties agree to revise Section 14.2 as follows:
14.2 SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL *

Where fifty percent (50%) or more of an employee's shift occurs between the hours of
4:00 p.m. and 12 midnight, a swing shift premium of seven percent (7%) will be paid for
all hours worked during the shift at the existing straight time rate of pay. When an
employee works on a holiday and receives one and one half times their regular rate of
pay, in accordance with Section 16.4, this swing shift premium will be multiplied by one
and one half times, as well (1.e., 10.5%). When an employee works Overtime and
receives the applicable Overtime rate, in accordance with Section 14.1, this swing shift
premium will be multiplied by said rate, as well (i.e., 10.5% or 14%).

Where fifty percent (50%) or more of an employee's shift occurs between midnight and
8:00 a.m., a graveyard shift premium of nine and one-half percent (9-%2%) will be paid
for all hours worked during the shift at the existing straight time rate of pay. When an
employee works on a holiday and receives one and one half times their regular rate of
pay, in accordance with Section 16.4, this graveyard shift premium will be multiplied by
one and one half times, as well (i.e., 14.25%). When an employee works Overtime and
receives the applicable Overtime rate, in accordance with Section 14.1, this graveyard
shift premium will be multiplied by said rate, as well (i.e., 14.25% or 19%).

An employee's shift shall be determined in accordance with applicable Shift Differential
language in the Labor Agreement and the following;:
0001 - 0800 - Graveyard Shift

14.2 Page 1 January 26, 2018



0800 - 1600 - Day Shift
1600 - 2400 - Swing Shift

If fifty percent (50%) or more of an employee's shift is worked between the hours of
0001 - 0800 the employee is working on Graveyard Shift, which is the 1st shift of the
calendar day. If fifty percent (50%) or more of the employee's shift is worked between
the hours of 0800 - 1600 the employee is working on Day Shift, which is the 2nd shift of
the calendar day. If fifty percent (50%) or more of the employee's shift is worked
between the hours of 1600 - 2400, the employee working on Swing Shift which is the 3rd
shift of the calendar day. '

Whatever shift the employee is working, he/she shall be compensated in accordance with
the applicable rate of pay for that shift including shift differential if applicable.

Any and all hours worked outside an employee's scheduled work shift hours shall be
compensated at the applicable rate of pay for all hours worked during the designated
hours of each designated shift.

* MINUTE CLARIFICATION
In the event that the employees normally assigned shift extends into the next shift due to

manpower requirements or overtime needs they shall be paid the shift differential of the
shift they are working, or their own shift, whichever is higher.

14.2 Page 2 January 26, 2018



Dated: < ///’ / /8

FOR THE DISTRICT

Wmﬁw-,}!s{(ﬁ

Martin Gran
Chief Labor Relations Officer

PPROVED AS TO FORM:

14.2

Page 3

FOR THE UNION

‘.‘”’“'
Johp-Atantes
President, BART Chapter

Olivia Roch?

President, BART Professional Chapter

January 26, 2018



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
AND
SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION LOCAL 1021
TENTATIVE AGREEMENT
RE: Leadworker

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (“BART”) and the Service
Employees International Union Local 1021 (“SEIU") (hereinafter jointly referred to as
‘“Parties”) have negotiated and reached a tentative agreement on modification of this
provision of the Collective Bargaining Agreement (“CBA”), by side letter, regarding
clarification of certain special pay provisions. No tentative agreement shall be a final
agreement except as a part of a total package agreement between the Parties related to the
side letter. All Parties agree that final approval of the tentative side letter and the
provisions modified by that side letter is subject to ratification by SEIU membership and
the BART Board of Directors.

The Parties agree to revise Section 14.5 as follows:
145 LEADWORKER

An employee assigned, in the absence of supervision, as leadworker to routinely and
consistently lead other bargaining unit employees shall be paid leadworker premium of
one dollar ($1.00) per hour additional to his/her applicable rate of pay for such time so
assigned. An employee is considered to be "routinely and consistently" performing lead
duties whenever he/she is assigned as leadworker because they are part of the normally
required duties of this assignment.

Lead Assembler: An leadwerkerpesition-ofLead Assembler with-the-appropriate-shall
be entitled to the leadworker premium shall-be-implemented described above whenever
three (3) or more Assemblers are working on a shift. This Lead Assembler shall be

required to have at least three (3) years assembly experience, with leadership potential.

Employee-In-Charge (EIC) and Secondary EIC (SEIC): A Maintenance Worker 111
(MW IID) assigned as EIC or SEIC for a shift, in accordance with California Public
Utilities Commission General Order 175-A, to routinely and consistently lead the job

" safety briefing(s) and coordinate the safety actions of employees arid/or other District-
authorized individuals at a Right of Way worksite, including use of Roadway Worker
Protections, shall be paid EIC premium of five percent (5%) per hour in addition to
his/her applicable rate of pay for all hours worked during the shift. An employeé is
considered to be "routinely and consistently” performing EIC/SEIC duties whenever
he/she is assigned as EIC/SEIC because they are part of the normally required duties of
this assignment.

14.5 Page 1 January 26, 2018



Dated: Z, / // / &

FOR THE DISTRICT FOR THE UNION

Martin Gran b-{( (R
Chief Labor Relations Officer

President, BART Professional Chapter

ARPROVED AS TO FORM:

NEs

Off}\:e of\the Gener unsel
By Victoria R. Nuetzc

14.5 | Page 2 January 26, 2018



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
AND
SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION LOCAL 1021
TENTATIVE AGREEMENT
RE: Speciél Pay Premiums

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (“BART”) and the Service
Employees International Union Local 1021 (“SEIU") (hereinafter jointly referred to as
“Parties”) have negotiated and reached a tentative agreement on modification of this
provision of the Collective Bargaining Agreement (“CBA”), by side letter, regarding
clarification of certain special pay provisions. No tentative agreement shall be a final
agreement except as a part of a total package agreement between the Parties related to the
side letter. All Parties agree that final approval of the tentative side letter and the
provisions modified by that side letter is subject to ratification by SEIU membership and
the BART Board of Directors.

The Parties agree to revise Section 14.6 as follows:
14.6 SPECIAL PAY PREMIUMS

A premium rate shall be paid employees performing special work as defined herein. For
all Special Pay Premiums listed in Section 14.6, the employee is considered to be
"routinely and consistently” performing the defined duties whenever he/she performs the
duties, because they are part of the normally required duties of the employee's
classification. Employees assigned shall receive a premium rate of one dollar ($1.00) per
hour above their regular straight time rate of pay for work so assigned. This payment
shall be applicable only when employees perform special work which shall include:

A. Sewer Crew Premium: Routinely and consistently performing maintenance work in
sewer sumps, and sewers, and sewer pumps (less motors);

B. Heavy/Special Equipment Operator Premium: Routinely and consistently operating
heavy/special equipment that is also a vehicles of a two rear axle class or higher;

C. Toxic Certification License ‘Pay: When employees are routinely and consistently
required to hold toxic certification licenses for OSHA LD50 ratings #1 and #2
relating to herbicides and pesticides only, which are government agency required

D. Height Premium: Routinely and consistently performing amy work, including pole
climbing but excluding window washing, which shall subject the employee to a fall of
more than forty-five (45) feet;

14.6 Page 1 January 26, 2018



E. Bilingual Premium: Routinely and consistently working a bilingual shift (Phone
Center);

F. Exterior car cleaners;

G. Bio-Hazard Premium: Any System Service, Utility Worker or any other employee
who is routinely and consistently may-be required to perform any biological clean-up
of human remains following an accident or injury. This compensation is received for
performing work to prevent safety issues when human remains are present;

H. High Voltage Hazard Premium: Routinely and consistently performing any electrical
work in excess of 34.5kvx; :

I. CCCM License Pay: When employees working in or in support of the
Elevator/Escalator Department hold and maintain a Certified Competent Conveyance
Mechanic (CCCM) license, which is a government agency required license.

Dated: | 92//////5

FFOR THE DISTRICT FOR THE UNION

Martin Gran }-—{ [ / (] Wantes
Chief Labor Relations Officer APresident, BART Chapter

Olivia Ro _
President, BART Professional Chapter

PPROVED AS TO FORM:

Office Of the Général Counsel
By Victoria R. Nuetzel

14.6 , Page 2 January 26, 2018



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
AND
SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION LOCAL 1021
TENTATIVE AGREEMENT
RE: Temporary Instructor

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (“BART”) and the Service
Employees International Union Local 1021 (“SEIU") (hereinafter jointly referred to as
“Parties”) have negotiated and reached a tentative agreement on modification of this
provision of the Collective Bargaining Agreement (“CBA”), by side letter, regarding
clarification of certain special pay provisions. No tentative agreement shall be a final
agreement except as a part of a total package agreement between the Parties related to the
side letter. All Parties agree that final approval of the tentative side letter and the
provisions modified by that side letter is subject to ratification by SEIU membership and
the BART Board of Directors.

The Parties agree to revise Section 14.7 as follows:
14.7 TEMPORARY INSTRUCTOR

Whenever an employee is assigned to formally instruct another employee, he/she shall
receive one dollar ($1.00) per hour additional to his/her applicable rate of pay for such
time so assigned.

Whenever an employee in a foreworker classification or clerical is assigned or directed to
conduct orientation or classroom instruction or to prepare instructional material as his/her
primary assignment for any part of a day, he/she shall receive one dollar ($1.00) per hour
additional to his/her applicable rate of pay for such time so assigned. These provisions
shall not be applicable to incidental instruction by foreworkers or the clerical
classification in the course of an assignment, if such instruction is not specifically his/her
primary assignment during any such hour.

To be eligible for instructor pay, an employee must be assigned by the District to
specifically instruct or train an employee in a routine and consistent manner on a specific
job. An employee is considered to be "routinely and consistently" instructing or training
another employee whenever he/she is temporarily assigned to specifically instruct or train
an employee on a specific job, because instruction and training are part of the normally
required duties of this assignment.

When an employee is assigned to work with another employee on a day-to-day basis, or
in cases of familiarization, orientation (including OJT) no instructor pay is due.

14.7 Page | January 26, 2018



Temporary instructors for Maintenance and Clerical Subunit training shall be selected
from among the classification being trained, whenever practical, to accommodate special
training needs. Temporary instructors shall be paid at the applicable instructor premium

while assigned to training.

Dated:

2/1//%
FOR THE DISTRICT
Moit= 23

Maftin Gran > / (3
Chief Labor Relations Officer

APBROVED AS TO FORM:

\le b M=

Offide of the General Cgunsel
By Victoria R. Nuetzel

14.7

Page 2

FOR THE UNION

rantes

resident, BART Chapter

Olivia Ro

Presiden

, BART Professional Chapter

January 26, 2018



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
AND
SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION LOCAL 1021
TENTATIVE AGREEMENT
RE: Super-Seniority

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (“‘BART”) and the Service
Employees International Union Local 1021 (“SEIU") (hereinafter jointly referred to as
“Parties”) have negotiated and reached a tentative agreement on modification of this
provision of the Collective Bargaining Agreement (“CBA”), by side letter, regarding
clarification of certain special pay provisions. No tentative agreement shall be a final
agreement except as a part of a total package agreement between the Parties related to the
side letter. All Parties agree that final approval of the tentative side letter and the
provisions modified by that side letter is subject to ratification by SEIU membership and
the BART Board of Directors.

The Parties agree to revise Section 20.2 as follows:
202 SUPER-SENIORITY

Union Officers and Chief Stewards shall be afforded super-seniority as follows:

A. Monday through Friday Day shift;

@

Seniority on layoff in classification;

O

In case of conflict, District date-of-hire will prevail,

o

When no Saturday or Sunday regular days off or day shifts exist, the District shall be
under no obligation to retain or create a position for an employee because of preferred
seniority status for whom there is no work or who cannot perform available work in a
qualified manner. In the event no Saturday/Sunday regular days off or day shifts
exist, employees afforded super-seniority shall have bumping rights to the preferred
shift.

E. Chief Stewards elected from the off shifts, shall retain their differential for time
worked.

F. During their respective terms of office, the President and two vice-presidents of the
BART Chapter and the President and vice-president of BART Professional Chapter
shall receive-relief-differential be designated as working a Relief Shift and paid the
Relief Shift differential in accordance with the terms of Section 24.7 in recognition of
their variable-werk-sehedules duties requiring them to work multiple varying shifts,
as reflected in current practice.

20.2 Page 1 January 26, 2018



Dated: .Z////?

FOR THE DISTRICT

M= e —

Martin Gran > (2
Chief Labor Relations Officer

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

\ M@%W%

Ofﬁxﬁecof\&he‘(}vnera Counsel
By Victoria R. Nuetzel

20.2

FOR THE UNION

Page 2

President, BART Professional Chapter

January 26, 2018



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
AND
SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION LOCAL 1021
TENTATIVE AGREEMENT
| RE: Relief Shift

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (“BART”) and the Service
Employees International Union Local 1021 (“SEIU") (hereinafter jointly referred to as
“Parties”) have negotiated and reached a tentative agreement on modification of this
provision of the Collective Bargaining Agreement (“CBA”), by side letter, regarding
clarification of certain special pay provisions. No tentative agreement shall be a final
agreement except as a part of a total package agreement between the Parties related to the
side letter. All Parties agree that final approval of the tentative side letter and the
provisions modified by that side letter is subject to ratification by SEIU membership and
the BART Board of Directors.

The Parties agree to revise Section 24.7 as follows:
24.7 RELIEF SHIFT

The District may establish pesitions-designated-as-Relief Shift-pesitions shifts that

Suech-positions-may be utilized for job assignments involving multiple starting times and
report locations which cannot be covered through the normal fixed work location
procedures with the available personnel.

Such positions shall be filled through the normal bidding procedures. The bid form shall
designate the shift and clearly specify the multiple fixed start times/locations.

A. Ofthe positions described immediately above, those positions which involve
multiple start times shall be designated Relief Shift positions.

Employees awarded such Relief Shift positions shall be granted a twelve percent
(12%) differential above the base rate of pay for the classification for all hours
worked. Such differential shall be reported, for the purpose of calculation of
pensionable compensation in the same manner as shift differential.

B. Positions which involve multiple 1ocat10ns only shall be designated Rover Shift
locations.

Employees awarded such Rover Shift positions shall be granted a twelve percent
(12%) differential above the base rate of pay for the classification for all hours

247 Page | January 26, 2018



worked; however, the Rover Shift differential shall not be reported as part of an
employee's pensionable compensation.

There will be no reduction in the affected classification workforce as a specific result of
the implementation of this Section.

Dated: ,2,////5’

FOR THE DISTRICT FOR THE UNION

’W/&ﬁt’:f‘ha’m e

Martin Gran
Chief Labor Relations Officer

vres.ident. BART Chapter

A

Olivia Ro a
President, BART Professional Chapter

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

\
;5 2’“\6
Off‘\s.e of%the Geheral Counsel

By Victoria R. Nuetzel

24.7 ' Page 2 January 26, 2018



SIDE LETTER OF AGREEMENT
SEIU eBART/SL 18-01

RE: Clarification of Special Pay Provisions

Upon signing by the parties, this letter shall constitute a Side Letter of Agreement
which has been reached by the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (“District”)
and Service Employees International Union Local 1021, eBART (“SEIU") (hereinafter
jointly referred to as “Parties”) regarding clarification of certain special pay provisions.

The Parties’ mutual goal was to cooperate with CalPERS to attempt to maintain the
pensionability of special compensation items referenced in CalPERS’s audit findings
beginning in 2014, to the extent possible. To that end, the Parties agree that certain
provisions of the SETU/eBART contract require clarification and the following provisions

of the SEIU/eBART contract shall, effective following ratification of this Side Letter, be
modified:

1.  Section 3.7 District Uniform Program/Regulations
2. Section 6.3 Shift Differential

3. Section 6.4 Leadworker & Instructor Premium

4. Sectio‘n 6.8 Special Pay Premiums

This Side Letter of Agreement shall be deemed part of the Collective Bargaining
Agreement between the parties.

CONCUR FOR THE CONCUR FOR THE
DISTRICT UNION
Martin Gran, Chief Labor Relations Officer Jehn Arantes, President

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District SEIU BART Chapter

Date Date

Olivia Rocha, President
SEIU BART Professional Chapter

Date



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
AND

SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION LOCAL 1021,
EBART

TENTATIVE AGREEMENT
RE: District Uniform Program/Regulations

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (“BART”) and the Service
Employees International Union Local 1021, eBART (“SEIU") (hereinafter jointly
referred to as “Parties™) have negotiated and reached a tentalive agreement on
modification of this provision of the Collective Bargaining Agreement (“CBA”), by side
letter, regarding clarification of certain special pay provisions. No tentative agreement
shall be a final agreement except as a part of a total package agreement between the
Parties related to the side letter. All Partics agree that final approval of the tentative side
letter and the provisions modified by that side letter is subject to ratification by SEIU
membership and the BART Board of Directors.

The Parties agree to revise Section 3.7 as follows:
3.7  DISTRICT UNIFORM PROGRAM / REGULATIONS

eBART employees are required to be in uniform at all times while on-duty. Employecs
will maintain an appropriate appearance.

The District shall provide and replace uniforms and/or cover the cost of purchasing
uniforms for employees working within ¢eBART, and shall reimburse employees for the
expense of laundering/maintaining uniforms or provide for laundering at the District at no
cost to the employee.

During the initial start-up, eBART management will meet with the Union regarding each
classification to determine the style and the amount of items to be provided. Additionally,
eBART management will meet to discuss how the uniforms will be provided (e.g.,
purchased, rented), how the uniforms will be maintained (e.g., cleaning, wear and tear)
and if any allowance is required.

After the initial start-up, eBART management will determine a replacement schedule. In
addition, the District will replace individual uniform items as the items become worn or
are otherwise in need of replacement. The value of the uniform items to be provided is
anticipated to be less than $1600 per employee per year with an anticipated increase of
5% (compounding) per year of this Labor Agreement.

3.7 Page 1 ~ January 26, 2018



Dated: ,Z / /,//3

FOR THE DISTRICT FOR THE UNION

Wi P a1 (7

Martin Gran
Chief Labor Relations Officer

ivia Retha
Presidént, BART Professional Chapter

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

N

Offisg ofNhe Ge\éra @umsel
By Victoria R. Nuetze

37 Page 2 January 26, 2018



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

AND
SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION LOCAL 1021,
EBART
TENTATIVE AGREEMENT

RE: Shift Differential

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (“‘BART”) and the Service
Employees International Union Local 1021, eBART (“SEIU") (hereinafter jointly
referred to as “Parties”) have negotiated and reached a tentative agreement on
modification of this provision of the Collective Bargaining Agreement (“CBA”), by side
letter, regarding clarification of certain special pay provisions. No tentative agreement
shall be a final agreement except as a part of a total package agreement between the
Parties related to the side letter. All Parties agrec that final approval of the tentative side
letter and the provisions modified by that side letter is subject to ratification by SEIU
membership and the BART Board of Directors.

The Parties agree to revise Section 6.3 as follows:

6.3  SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL

A. Where fifty percent (50%) or more of an employee's shift occurs between the hours of
4:00 pm and midnight, a swing shift premium of seven percent (7%) will be paid for
all hours worked during the shift at the existing straight time rate of pay.

i. When an employvee works on a holiday and receives one and one half times their
regular rate of pay, in accordance with Section 4.4, this swing shift premium will
be multiplied by one and one half times, as well (i.e., 10.5%).

ii. When an employee works Overtime and receives the applicable Overtime rate, in
accordance with Section 6.2, this swing shift premium will be multiplied by said
rate, as well (i.e., 10.5% or 14%).

iii. When an employee performs lead work and/or instruction and receives a lead pay
premium of 5%, in accordance with Section 6.4, this swing shift premium shall
additionally be increased by the lead pay premium (i.e., an additional 0.35% for a
total of 7.35%).

B. Where fifty percent (50%) or more of an employee's shift occurs between midnight
and 8:00 am, a graveyard shift premium of nine and one-half percent (9%:%) will be
paid for all hours worked during the shift at the existing straight time rate of pay.

i. When an employvee works on a holiday and receives one and one half times their
regular rate of pay, in accordance with Section 4.4, this graveyard shift premium

will be multiplied by one and one half times, as well (i.e., 14.25%).

6.3 Page 1 x January 26, 2018



ii. When an employee works Overtime and receives the applicable Overtime rate, in
accordance with Section 6.2, this graveyard shift premium will be multlplled by
said rate, as well (i.e., 14.25% or 19%).

iii. When an emplovee performs lead work and/or instruction and receives a lead pay
premium of 5%, in accordance with Section 6.4, this graveyard shift premium
shall additionally be increased by the lead pay premium (i.e.. an additional
0.475% for a total 0of 9.975%).

Any and all hours worked outside an employee’s scheduled work shift hours shall be
compensated at the applicable rate of pay for all hours worked during the designated
hours of cach designated shift.

In the event that the employees’ normally assigned shift extends into the next shift due to

manpower requirements or overtime needs, they shall be paid the shift differential of the
shift they are working, or their own shift, whichever is higher.

Dated: Z////é?

FOR THE DISTRICT FOR THE UNION

Maftitt Gran b*’ [(8 Jo}ﬁﬁ Fantes
Chief Labor Relations Officer President, BART Chapter

Olwm ocha )
President, BART Professional Chapter

Offite ofdhe etal Counsel
By Victoria R, Nigtzel

6.3 Page 2 January 26, 2018



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
AND

SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION LOCAL 1021,
EBART

TENTATIVE AGREEMENT
RE: Leadworker & Instructor Premium

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (“BART”) and the Service
Employees International Union Local 1021, eBART (“SEIU") (hereinafter jointly
referred to as “Parties”) have negotiated and reached a tentative agreement on
modification of this provision of the Collective Bargaining Agreement (“CBA™), by side
letter, regarding clarification of certain special pay provisions. No tentative agreement
shall be a final agreement except as a part of a total package agreement between the
Parties related to the side letter. All Parties agree that final approval of the tentative side
letter and the provisions modified by that side letter is subject to ratification by SEIU
membership and the BART Board of Directors.

The Parties agree to revise Section 6.4 as follows:
6.4 LEADWORKER & INSTRUCTOR PREMIUM

An employec assigned by the COO or designee, in the absence of supervision, as
leadworker to routinely and consistently lead other bargaining unit employees shall be
paid leadworker premium of five percent (5%) per hour additional to his/her applicable
rate of pay for such time so assigned. An employee is considered to be "routinely and
consistently" performing lead duties whenever he/she is assigned as leadworker because
they are part of the normally required duties of this assignment.

Whenever an employee is assigned by the COO or designee to formally instruct another
employee in a routine and consistent manner, he/she shall receive five percent (5%) per
hour additional to his/her applicable ratc of pay for such time so assigned. An employee
is considered to be "routinely and consistently" instructing or training another employee
whenever he/she is temporarily assigned to specifically instruct or train an emplovee on a
specific job, becatse instruction and training are part of the normally required duties of
this assignment.

6.4 Page 1 January 26, 2018



Dated: r?z,////f

FOR THE DISTRICT

Mo dotre (&

Mattin Gran
Chief Labor Relations Officer

ARPROVED AS TO FORM:

w@ﬂ%?“

Offide of'the General Gounsel
By Victoria R. Nuetzel

6.4

Page 2

FOR THE UNION

Glivia Rogha
President, BART Professional Chapter

January 26, 2018



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSI’I; DISTRICT
AND

SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION LOCAL 1021,
EBART

TENTATIVE AGREEMENT
RE: Special Pay Premiums

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (“BART”) and the Service
Employees International Union Local 1021, eBART (“SEIU") (hereinafter jointly
referred to as “Parties”) have negotiated and reached a tentative agreement on
- modification of this provision of the Collective Bargaining Agreement (“CBA™), by side
letter, regarding clarification of certain special pay provisions. No tentative agreement
shall be a final agreement except as a part of a total package agreement between the
Parties related to the side letter. All Parties agree that final approval of the tentative side
letter and the provisions modified by that side letter is subject to ratification by SEIU
membership and the BART Board of Directors.

The Parties agree to revise Section 6.8 as follows:
6.8  SPECIAL PAY PREMIUMS

A premium rate shall be paid to employees assigned to perform special duties as defined
herein, For all Special Pay Premiums listed in Section 6.8, the employee is considered to
be "routinely and consistently” performing the defined duties whenever he/she performs
the duties, because they are part of the normally required duties of the employee's
classification. Employees assigned shall receive a premium rate of one dollar ($1.00) per
hour above their regular straight time rate of pay for duties so assigned. This payment
shall be applicable only when employees perform special duties which shall include:

A. Sewer Crew Premium: Routinely and consistently performing maintenance work
performed in sewer sumps, and sewers, and sewer pumps (less motors);

B. Exterior car cleaning; or

C. Bio-Hazard Premium: Routinely and consistently performing any biological clean-
up of human remains following an accident or injury. This compensation is received
for performing work to prevent safety issues when human remains are present.

6.8 Page 1 January 26, 2018



Dated: -<,7 / {/ /&
FOR THE DISTRICT

ariin Gran (!I
Chief Labor Relations Officer

ARPROVED AS TO FORM:

a@Nﬁ?X"’
Ofﬁ&c ofYhe Géner@ounsel

By Victoria R. Nuetzel

6.8

Page 2

FOR THE UNION

Toh#eA rantes
President, BART Chapter

=

Ohv1 Rocha 4
President, BART Protessional Chapter

January 26, 2018



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

14 Mare 26[ ? Approval and forward to Board
M . CoAA Pttt
DATE: 2/6/2018

| BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No
Originator/Prepared by: Deidre Heitman | Ggner oynsel Controller/Treasurer|{ District Secretary BARC
\
o

Dept: Grant Development S
@/QA% [
7

| Decse Moyt

[ {

Signature/Date:
% )i

I Status: Approved l Date Created: 2/6/2018 l

Resolution Authorizing the Execution of the Additional Rail Car Project Application,
and Supporting Documents, for the FY 18 Low Carbon Transit Operations Program
(LCTOP)

PURPOSE:
To obtain Board approval of a Resolution Authorizing the Execution of the Additional Rail

Car Project Application, and Supporting Documents, for the FY 18 Low Carbon Transit
Operations Program (LCTOP)

DISCUSSION: The Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) is one of several
programs established by the California Legislature through Senate Bill 862 in 2014 and
further amended in 2016 through Senate Bill 824. Drawing its funds from the state's Cap-
and-Trade Program's annual proceeds, the LCTOP was created to provide operating and
capital assistance for transit agencies to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and improve
mobility, with a priority on disadvantaged communities with direct, meaningful and assured
benefit.

Projects eligible to receive LCTOP funding are those that demonstrate greenhouse gas
emissions reductions and are consistent with both BART's Short Range Transit Plan and the
region's Sustainable Communities Strategy (i.e., Plan Bay Area). In addition, 50% of the total
funds received by a transit agency must be expended on projects that benefit disadvantaged
communities within the agency's service area. Because approximately 50% of BART"s
stations serve disadvantaged communities, staff have determined that any project serving the
entire BART system meets this criterion. LCTOP funds can be used for either operating or
capital programs or projects including new or expanded bus or rail services, expanded



Resolution Authorizing the Execution of the Additional Rail Car Project Application, and Supporting Documents, for the FY
18 Low Carbon Traosit Operations Program (LCTOP)

intermodal facilities, equipment acquisition, maintenance and other operating costs.

The LCTOP is formula-based program, administered by the California Department of
Transportation (Caltrans). BART receives the funds directly from the state once the
application is approved. For FY 18, BART is eligible to receive $5,635,855, more than twice
what it received in FY 17, due to the high receipts generated by the carbon auctions held in
late 2017.

Program guidelines require transit agencies that receive LCTOP funds to authorize, by Board
resolution, its agents to execute application documents and provide certain certifications and
assurances.

For the past two years (FY 16 and FY 17), the BART Board has approved resolutions
authorizing the use of LCTOP for the acquisition of four (4) new rail cars as part of BART's
Fleet of the Future. In addition, the BART Board approved a motion that, starting with the
FY 16 amount, three (3) years of LCTOP funds be banked until FY 19 when full production
of the new cars has commenced. The total amount banked, $12,179,045, including funds
received from FY 16 and FY 17, and the amount included in the FY 18 LCTOP application,
will be used to offset, in part, the FY 16, FY 17, and FY 18 allocations to capital from the
Operating Budget for the new rail car program. Caltrans has approved the previous two
allocation requests. This application for LCTOP funds in FY 18 represents the third and final
year of the three-year program.

FISCAL IMPACT:

If the proposed project is approved by Caltrans, the funds will be applied to the acquisition
of the four new cars.

By adopting this Resolution Authorizing the Execution of the Additional Rail Car Project
Application, and Supporting Documents, for the FY 18 Low Carbon Transit Operations
Program (LCTOP), BART may receive $5,635,855 on or before June 30, 2018.

This action will have no fiscal impact on un-programmed District Reserves.

ALTERNATIVES:

Do not approve the Resolution Authorizing the Execution of the Additional Rail Car Project
Application, and Supporting Documents, for the FY 18 Low Carbon Transit Operations
Program (LCTOP). BART could choose another project.

RECOMMENDATION:
Adoption of the following motion.



Resolution Authorizing the Execution of the Additional Rail Car Project Application, and Supporting Documents, for the FY
18 Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP)

MOTION:

The BART Board approves adoption of the attached Resolution "In the Matter of
Authorizing Execution of A Project Application and Filing Related Forms for the FY 2017-
18 Low Carbon Transit Operations Program for $5,635,855 in Funding for the LCTOP
Additional Rail Car Project."



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SAN FRANCISCO
BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

In the Matter of Authorizing Execution of

A Project Application and Filing Related

Forms for the FY 2017-18 Low Carbon Transit
Operations Program for $5,635,855 in

Funding for the LCTOP Additional Rail Car Project/

Resolution No.

WHEREAS, the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District is an eligible project sponsor and
may receive state funding for transit projects from the Low Carbon Transit Operations Program
(LCTOP) now or sometime in the future; and

WHEREAS, the statutes related to state-funded transit projects require a local or regional
implementing agency to abide by applicable regulations; and

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 862 (2014) named the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans)
as the administrative agency for the LCTOP; and

WHEREAS, Caltrans has developed guidelines for the purpose of administering and distributing
LCTOP funds to eligible project sponsors (local agencies); and

WHEREAS, BART wishes to implement the LCTOP Additional Rail Car project,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the BART Board of Directors that it agrees to
comply with all conditions and requirements set forth in the Certifications and Assurances, the

. Authorized Agent document, and applicable statutes, regulations and guidelines for all LCTOP-funded
transit projects; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid
Transit District that it hereby authorizes the submittal and nomination of the Additional Rail Car

Project for state funding and makes an allocation request of $5,635,885 to Caltrans for FY 2017-18
LCTOP funds.

- AGENCY BOARD DESIGNEE:;

BY:

it



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors DATE: March 16,2018

FROM: General Manager

SUBJECT: Financial Outlook for FY19 Presentation

Attached is the “Financial Outlook for FY19” presentation that will be presented to the Board at
the March 22, 2018 meeting as an information item.

If you have any questions about the document, please contact Pamela Herhold, Acting Assistant
General Manager, Performance and Budget, at 510-464-6169.

Thox . 1L e
fﬁ/(}race Crunican

cc: Board Appointed Officers
Deputy General Manager
Executive Staff



X ART

EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT
GENERAL G APPROVAL; v l 4 M‘{ & yNERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
LA au. /2~

DATE: 2/20/2018 { BOARD INITIATED ITEM: Yes . v
: David Scherer |G

Engineering \“ 4% " 'ControllerlTreasu‘rer District Secreta;< p £

Z/ /4/ 7 of | W
SKZ/(K [ 5/12’/’([ ] [ ] '5\ ]
[ ’

Award of Invitation For Bid 9041 C55 Interlocking Materials

PURPOSE:

To obtain Board authorization for the General Manager to award IFB No.9041 for the A
procurement of special track work to Voelstalpine Nortrak Inc. Seattle, WA. for the Base Bid
price of $2,125,806.94 including all applicable sales tax.

DISCUSSION:

IFB 9041 will provide the special track work materials required for the Measure RR funded
C55 Interlocking track replacement. This procurement will provide all the concrete ties,
plating, fabrication of switch points, frogs, guard rails, and all other components required to
manufacture Three (3) No.15 turnouts, One (1) No.15 Crossover, Four (4) No.10 Turnouts,
345 Concrete ties and One (1) Alstom Switch Machine. The new rail and components will
replace existing original wood tie turnouts with concrete tie turnouts, reducing maintenance
requirements, and provide a smoother, quieter ride for patrons. ’

This is a one (1) year Estimated Quantity Contract. Pursuant to the terms of the District's
standard Estimated Quantity Contract, during the term of the contract the District is required
to purchase from the supplier 2 minimum amount of 50% of the contract bid price. Upon
Board approval of this contract, the General Manager will also have the authority to purchase

up to 150% of the contract bid price, subject to the availability of funding.

A notice requesting bids was published on December 11, 2017. On December 8, 2017, this
solicitation was uploaded onto the BART Vendor Portal. Correspondence was sent to
seven (7) prospective bidders inviting them to view the solicitation on the Vendor Portal.



Award of Invitation For Bid 9041 C55 Interlocking Materials (cont.)

Bids were opened on February 13, 2018 and one (1) bid was/were received.

Bidder | Total Including 8.75% Sales Tax
Voestalpine Nortrak Inc. $2,125,806.94
Independent cost estimate by BART staff: $2,015,409.38

Pursuant to the Special Prov1s1ons Bids were evaluated on the basis of the total bid price.
Staff determined that the apparent low bidder, Voelstalpine Nortrak, Inc. submitted a
responsive bid, based on the comparison to the independent cost estimate. Staff also
determined that the bid pricing was fair and reasonable based on comparison to the
independent cost estimate.

The District’s Non-Discrimination Program for Subcontracting is not applicable to
Invitations for Bid. Accordingly, the Office of Civil Rights did not set Minority Business
Enterprise (MBE) and Women Business Enterprise (WBE) Availability Percentages for this
IFB.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Funding in the amount of $3,188,710 for IFB No0.9041 is included in the total project budget
for FMS# 15CQ002 — Rails, Ties, Fasteners Phase3 Measure RR.

The table below lists fundjng assigned to the referenced project and is included to track -
funding history against spending authority. Funds needed to meet this request will be
expended from the following sources:

F/G 802A - 2017A Measure RR GOB $616,949,279
F/G 8529 - FY 2015 Operating Capital Allocation $197,246

As of March 1, 2018, $617,146,525 is the total budget for this project. BART has expended
$22,591,648, committed $21,147,895 and reserved $62,354,686 to date for other actions.
This action will commit $3,188,710 leaving an available balance of $507 863,585 in these

fund-sources for this project.

The Office of the Controller/Treasurer certifies that finds are currently available to meet this



Award of Invitation For Bid 9041 C55 Interlocking Materials (cont.)

obligation.

This action is not anticipated to have any Fiscal Impact on unprogrammed District Reserves.

ALTERNATIVE:

Reject all bids and re-advertise the contract. This, however, is not likely to lead to increased
competition or lower prices and will result in delay to the replacement of the existing
interlocking which is nearing the end of its usefil life.

RECOMMENDATION:

Based on the é.nalysis by staff and certified by Controller-Treasurer that the funds are
available for this purpose, it is recommended that the board adopt the following motion.

MOTION:

The General Manager is authorized to award Invitation For Bid No. 9041 for the
procurement of turnouts to Voelstalpine Nortrak, Inc. Seattle, WA. for the bid price of
$2,125,806.94 including all taxes, pursuant to notification to be issued by the General
Manager, subject to compliance with the Districts Protest procedure.



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors : DATE: March 16, 2018

FROM: General Manager

SUBJECT: Santa Clara County BART Extension: Update on Phase I and Phase II
Following on the discussion at the March 8, 2018 meeting of the Board of Directors, staff has
worked with Santa Clara VTA staff on a co-created presentation (see attached) which describes
the construction period mitigation plan for the twin-bore alignment alternative of the Silicon

Valley Extension Phase II.

If you have any questions about these matters, please contact Robert Powers, Deputy General
Manager at 510-464-6126.

Tt 2

race Crunican

cc: Board Appointed Officers
Deputy General Manager
Executive Staff



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors _ DATE: March 16,2018
FROM: General Manager ‘
SUBJECT: Station Wayfinding Signage/Real-Time Display Improvement Update

Staff will present the attached presentation under Agenda Item No. 3 at the Board of Directors
meeting on March 13, 2018 on Station Wayfinding Signage/Real-time Display Improvement
Update. :

If you have any questions about these matters, please contact Carl Holmes, Assistant General
Manager for Planning, Development, and Construction at 510-464-7592.

Wt )

Vrace Crunican

cc: Board Appointed Officers
Deputy General Manager
Executive Staff




SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors DATE: March 16,2018
FROM: General Manager

SUBJECT: Transbay Tube Earthquake Safety Service Plan

Attached is the “Transbay Tube Earthquake Safety Service Plan” presentation. Staff will provide
an update on the status of the Transbay Tube Earthquake Safety Service Plan along with an

overview of the service plan options for consideration during the March 22, 2018 Board Meeting.

For further information, please contact Paul Oversier, Assistant General Manager, at 510-464-

6710.
VGrace Crunican

“cc:  Board Appointed Officers
Deputy General Manager
Executive Staff



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors DATE: March 16, 2018
FROM: General Manager
SUBJECT: Roll Call for Introductions Item #18-812

This memo responds to Roll Call for Introductions #18-812, in which Directors Simon and Dufty
requested a report on the status of the investigation of the officer involved shooting that occurred
on January 3", 2018. The RCI also requests a description of the process San Francisco uses to
connect with the community after an officer involved shooting.

Attached is the requested report. Staff will provide an update on the status of the investigation at
the March 22" Board meeting. In addition, please find a memo from General Counsel regarding
potential litigation on this officer involved shooting.

If you have any questions about this matter, please contact Grace Crunican, General Manager or
BART Chief of Police, Carlos Rojas, at 510-464-7022.

Dt P

race Crunican

cc: Board Appointed Officers
Deputy General Manager
Executive Staff



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors DATE: March 16, 2018
FROM: Grace Crunican/Carlos Rojas
SUBJECT: Officer Involved Shooﬁng (OIS) Process and Update

The following is an overall synopsis and update to the Officer Involved Shooting (OIS) that
occurred near the West Oakland BART Station on January 3, 2018.

Initial Response

The OIS occurred on January 3, 2018, at approximately 1641 hours. Immediately after the
shooting, the Oakland Police Department responded and set up a crime scene around the general
location of the incident at 7% St. and Chester St. The following entities responded to the incident
to initiate/assist/observe the investigation:

Alameda County District Attorney’s Office (ACDA)

Oakland Police Department Homicide Unit (OPD)

BART Police Department Criminal Investigations Division (BPD)
BART Police Department Office of Internal Affairs

BART Police Department Executive Staff

Office of the Independent Police Auditor

Mastagni Law Offices on behalf of the involved officer (Officer Mateu)
BART Police Department Trauma Response Team

BART Police Chaplain |

BART Police Officers Association President

Officer Mateu was initially taken to the BPD then transferred to OPD for interviews. BPD adhered
to standard OIS protocol by having evidence technicians (OPD) collect his on-duty weapon and
take photographs of him wearing his duty uniform. In accordance with District policy a urine
sample was collected by an independent blood alcohol technician.

A three-pronged investigation interview was conducted at OPD. The interview was led by
Investigators from the OPD Homicide Unit with additional questions asked by the Investigators
from the ACDA’s Office. In accordance with the Peace Officers Bill of Rights, Officer Mateu was
represented by legal counsel from the Mastagni Law Firm provided to him by the BART Police
Officer’s Association (BPOA). BPD Internal Affairs along with Investigators from the BPD
Criminal Investigations Division were permitted to listen to the interviews but were not permitted
to ask any follow up questions.



After the criminal interview, Officer Mateu was placed on paid Administrative Leave, which is
routine protocol pending the results of the drug/alcohol test and a mandatory counseling/evaluation
session(s) with a Department approved psychologist.

Officer Mateu’s Current Status

The results of the drug/alcohol tests that Officer Mateu submitted to were negative. Officer Mateu
was also subsequently cleared for duty by the psychologist.

Officer Mateu returned to work from his paid Administrative Leave on Wednesday, January 21,
2018. Upon his return, Officer Mateu attended firearms/qualification. Due to concern for Officer
Mateu’s safety he voluntarily agreed to work a modified desk duty assignment on Friday, February
23,2018. It was agreed to periodically review his voluntary modified desk duty assignment.

Current Status of the OIS Investigation

As of'the date of this memorandum, the BPD Internal Affairs investigation into the matter has been
tolled (temporarily placed on hold), pending the conclusion of the criminal investigation, which
~ takes precedence over the Internal Affairs Administrative Investigation. There is also anticipated
civil litigation forthcoming which could also affect the tolling.

The BPD Internal Affairs collected supplemental reports from the BPD patrol officers who aided
during the incident, the BPD Video Recovery Unit who pulled and supplied OPD with the Oakland
West BART Station video, and the BPD Detective who monitored Officer Mateu’s criminal
interview with OPD. BPD has fully cooperated with OPD lnvestlgators and relinquished all
associated video evidence to their Homicide Unit within 24 hours.

The BPD Internal Affairs Unit subsequently requested from the OPD all material evidence and
reports involved in their criminal investigation for its own records. The lead Internal Affairs
investigator was advised by OPD’s assigned homicide detective that the decision had been made
by their Agency not to supply the BPD with any of the above requested materials while the criminal-
investigation was still on-going.

The BPD Internal Affairs Unit has received the audio interview and transcript of Officer Mateu’s
voluntary statement to the OPD criminal investigators. In addition, BPD Internal Affairs has
possession of the Axon camera videos that were recorded by Officer Mateu and Officer
Valdehueza, who was the first BART officer to arrive on scene immediately after the shooting.

BPD’s Use of Force Review Committee will de-brief the incident upon the conclusion of the
Internal Affairs investigation and render findings.

Alameda County District Attorney’s Office will determine if criminal charges are warranted in
this case. They will render their decision upon the conclusion of their investigation. It is not until
the Alameda County District Attorney’s Office decides regarding criminal charges that details of
“the Oakland Police Department’s investigation will become public. According to the Alameda



County Assistant Chief of Investigations assigned to this case, their office can take from six months
to one year to conclude an officer involved shooting investigation.

The BART Citizen Oversight Model provides the Independent Police Auditor the authority to
monitor the administrative investigation of the BART Police Internal Affairs Division.
Additionally, the Independent Police Auditor may conduct his own independent investigation
based on a complaint of police misconduct by a member of the public as defined in the BART
Citizen Oversight Model. Results of investigations into allegations of misconduct by BART police
and recommendations for corrective action, including discipline, will be reviewed by the Citizen
Review Board.

A survey of Bay Area police departments and a sample from across the country revealed that
BART Police procedures are consistent regarding returning an officer to work after a shooting and
that discretion is the responsibility of the police chief or sheriff of the jurisdiction. Attached are
the surveys previously shared with the Board on this issue.

Based on a board members request, an inquiry was made to the San Francisco Police Department
to identify the process San Francisco uses to connect with the community after an officer involved
shooting. Lt. Gil Lopez spoke with Lieutenant Alvin Yee and Captain Dave Lazar of the San
Francisco Police Department. They indicated that the police department attempts to meet with
members of the community in which the OIS occurred in a townhall type of meeting to generally
explain what transpired. The information provided is the same information provided to the media.
SFPD was unable to provide us with a written procedure regarding this type of outreach effort but
indicated they will provide us the information if it exists.

Mt 1 B

race Crunican

Qzﬁ

Carlos RQ}&S’

cc: Board Appointed Officers
Deputy General Manager
Executive Staff

GClij/pk



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors DATE: March 16,2018
FROM: General Counsel

SUBJECT: Potential Litigation — Officer Involved Shooting

At the Regular Board meeting of March 22™ you will receive a report on the officer
involved shooting that occurred on January 3, 2018. That report will explain the status and
process of the investigation as well as provide an opportunity for public discussion of the officer
involved shooting.

We are aware that this is the first official briefing that you have received and that some of -
the information you hear may be new to you. Currently, the Oakland Police Department and/or
the Alameda County District Attorneys' office are conducting the investigation into this matter
and have not yet released any results. The District has been put on notice of potential legal
claims that could be filed against it in this matter. As such, during discussions at the Board
meeting of this very tragic and emotional topic, please be cautious of speculating about yet to be
determined conclusions from the investigation, as there is much that is yet to be established. Not
only could it possibly impact the ongoing investigation, but it could also subject you to being
deposed in any future litigation to explain the basis of the statement previously made.

Matt, Burrows

114037.1



sdieyly |eusaju| 01 axods

JJOM 0} pauunial St 22140 3Y) UIYM U0 Ja1yD
3y 01 dn s1 31 ‘1s180joydAsd ay) Aq pasea)d Sulaq Jayy

*S10 Al9Ad 10J 95D [RUIWID
e uado 3,uop Aay} se ‘Suio8-uo s1 ases jeunuLd
se guo| se anea| ujwpe uo 1day 1 1RO
*S$)@aM 2341 01 om] ‘Ajlesauan -uonenjead
J1zeiyaAsd e aney o1 sexel ) se Suo| sy

wawpedaq 221104 211eas

sJiejyy jeusduy o} axyods

3}JOom 01 uinjas
U0 UOISII3P 21BN S9YBW 31|04 JO JaIYD “AInp Joy
paJes)d Sulaq 10439 1s180j0ydAsd Aq uaas aq Isni

*9AB3| UOHBJISIUWPE U0
JJ0 sAep Jepuajed aa1y3 a2pinouad A3yl ‘A||esauan

Juswpedaq 221j0d xuoayd

¥0-12Z 24npaado.d Juswpuedaq wouy pauieyqgo

Jauoissiwwo) Aindagq 1414

sAep Suppom aasyy

uawedaq ad1jod AND) S04 MaN

32140 suepualuliadng Aindaq 15114 03 ods

wepuauadng Andaq 1544

“Juapioul
3y3 Jaye Aep a1 SupuawWiwWod sAep Jepudjed gg

juawedaq adijo4 oSeodiy)

Slieyy [eusajuj 01 ayods

*AInp 01 J221JJO By} UINJ3J 0} UOIRIDSIP DY) SBY pue
Paynou s1 Ja1yD Y3 ‘AN [iny 10} PaIea|d St 1310
ay1 Juawpedag aya sasiape IsiSojoydisd ayy adug

*Aynp 03 Sulusniau
210334 1s130j0ydAsd Juawniedaq ay3 Aq paseapd
3q 1snw inq ‘sAep Jepuajed 3313 Alojepue

1uawpedaq 201104 puepeo

sJiey}y [eusagu| 0y axyods

*99usisap S1Y 40 321j04 JO Ja1YD) Ay}
1O UOIIDUIP 3] 18 JSPUBWILLOY SJIRYY [BUIDIY] 3Y]

‘anea| aaleLIsIUILIpe
0 SINOY 3JoM Qp S! pJepuels ay} ‘Ajjesauan

awpedaq 221104 3sof ues

si(ejy [eusdluy 03 ayods

340M 0] uInjal
U0 UOISII3P 3}eWIN S3)ew adljod JO JaIyD ~AInp 1oy
paJeapd Suiaq aJojaq 1st80joyaAsd Aq uaas aq SNy

‘uosJad e
1e pa1aJip sem Sunooys ji SAep QT O wnWUIA

1uawpedaq 9310 03suel ues

SJiejjy |eusaju| oy ayods

3JOMm 0] uinjal
U0 UOISIIaP 33_WIN S EW 2104 40 JaIyD “AInp Joy
paJea)d Julaq a1043q 1s180j0ydAsd Aq uaas aq Isnip

*SOUBISWINDIID U0 paseq
S3LIEA )l JaAMOY ‘sAep Jepualed 93141 st Adljod

Juawpedaq adijod A9jaxyuag

sitejyy jeutaju] 01 axyods

“j40Mm 340 3aA0|dwa daay 03 uonAIdSIp
AARY S0P JIUAYS "JOM 0] }Ieq awod 0} Jayiaym
UO UOJJBUIWIAIDP UMO JI12Y] Saxew aaAojdwg

*Aoyjod ut ua1ium s1 Sutylou Inq ‘shep
3I0M 0M] A[[ULION °UOIBISIP S,jUBUIN3}
1e papino.d Jo pajsenbai ssajun 3o awil oN

Hi1ays Aluno) odsiouely ues

SJieyy |eusaju| 0y ayods

3JOM 0] UIN}DJ U0
uols1I2p Slewn saxew 3a3usdisap Jo Juays Anp Jop
paJes)d uiaq aio04aq 15180j0ydAsd Aq uaas aq Isnig

"9ARI] AAIRAISIUIIpE
40 sAep Jepua|en 331y} st 0303044

H148YS AJuno) e1s0) ejuo)

oM 03

*sAep 2a4y1 ay3 a2AIEM
01 u0NAIDSIP sey PLBYS ‘Aunful snowsas 10 yleap

SIelY [eusaiu) 0} jods UIN32J U0 UOISIJBP Slew)n s ew Yuays ~Anp Joy UI3INS31 30U PIP IO f “SAEB) SAEASIUIPE JHuays Ayuno) epaweqy
paJes|d Suiaq a.0jaq 1si90joydAsd Aq uaas aq 1SN
0 SAep Jepua|ed 224y} St 0303044
- MYOM OL "
Q3INIV190 SYM NOILYINHOINI MOH SAVA JAVIT NINQY 30 ¥ISINNN 1N3INLYVYd3IQ

NYNL13Y NO NOILVNIINHILIA TYNIZ SIIVIN OHM

STIONIOY ILV1S 40 LNO/STIDNIDY VIUY AVE - ST020L0Ud ONILOOHS 1S0d




EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL AGER APPROVAL; GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
R Q
4‘4. (L 7V PN
DATE: 3/6/2018 N BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No
Originator/Prepared by: Jumana Nabti d Jene ounsel Controller/Treasurer| District Secretary BARC

\

Dept: Customer-Avce

Signature/Pate

W%/f/ﬂ[ ] [ ] 0} $6[\1P]

Authorize Payment to Scoop Technologies for Federal Transit Administration Grant

218 |efolg o
‘/ v

PURPOSE:

To obtain Board approval for the General Manager to authorize payment to Scoop
Technologies, Inc. (Scoop) for work, once completed, under the Federal Transit
Administration (FTA) Mobility on Demand Sandbox Grant in an amount not to exceed
$153,000.

DISCUSSION:

In October 2016, the FTA awarded a Mobility on Demand Sandbox Grant to BART in
partnership with Scoop and the Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s 511 Carpool
Program to conduct an Integrated Carpool to Transit Project. On August 8, 2017, BART
entered into a contract agreement with Scoop for this project, which provides carpool
matching services for BART passengers. BART passengers that use the Scoop mobile
application to arrange carpools to BART stations are offered guaranteed parking spaces until
10am for the day in which the service is used. The FTA grant included funding for Scoop to
provide the following:

e In-person outreach (“street teams”) for an amount not to exceed $33,000 to promote
the program.

» Software engineering services to incorporate accessibility features and parking charges
into their mobile application for an amount not to exceed $120,000.

This program is currently available at eight BART stations and is planned for further
expansion prior to the termination of the current contract with Scoop on June 30, 2018. FTA



Authorize Payment to Scoop Technologies for Federal Transit Administration Grant

grant funding is available through December 2018.
FISCAL IMPACT:

Funding in the amount of $153,000 for SCOOP is included in the total project budget for
FMS # 91CD002 Carpool to Transit Access Project.

The table below lists funding assigned to the referenced project and is included to track
funding history against spending authority. Funds needed to meet this request will be
expended from the following sources:

0. | Source | Fund! ription

ﬁDemand Sandbox 6gré1m

3

| Federal | Mobility o 000
Regional | MTC - In-Kind Match 30,000
Local SCOOP - In-Kind Match 63,000
BART | Operating Funds 50,000
BART | FY15 Operating Alloc to Capital 20,000

Total | 521,000

As of March 15, 2018, $521,000 is the total budget for this project. BART has expended
$86,558 and committed $137,000 to date. This action will commit $153,000, leaving an
available fund balance of $144,442 in these fund sources for this project.

The Office of Controller/Treasurer certifies that funds are currently available to meet this
obligation.

This action is not anticipated to have any Fiscal Impact on unprogrammed District reserves
ALTERNATIVES:

The Board can elect to not authorize payment to Scoop. However, this would leave the
District open to a claim from Scoop for breach of contract, would end the program prior to

its current June 300 end date, and would likely have further repercussions with the FTA.

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommend that the Board approve the following motion:

MOTION:

To authorize the General Manager to pay Scoop an amount not to exceed $153,000 for
services rendered under the Integrated Carpool to Transit Project Agreement. All funding is
included in the budget for the FTA Mobility on Demand Sandbox Grant.



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors DATE: March 16,2018
FROM: General Manager

SUBJECT: Station Access Program Update — For Information

At the March 22, 2018 Board meeting, staff will provide an update on the Station Access Program,
including the policy framework, process, project delivery and planning efforts. For further

information, please contact Carl Holmes, AGM, Planning, Development & Construction at 510-
464-7592.

Yt 11 K
ﬁg/ Grace Crunican

cc: Board Appointed Officers
Deputy General Manager
Executive Staff




SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

- MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors DATE: March 16, 2018
FROM: General Manager | |

SUBJECT: Bicycle Program Update

At the March 22" Board meeting, staff will provide the Board with an update on current bike

program activities and plans. The enclosed presentation provides some program background for
context and then focuses on program elements that are progressing well and others that have

been a bit more challenging.
Vrace Crunican

cc:  Board Appointed Officers
Deputy General Manager
Executive Staff



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

INTER-OFFICE COMMUNICATION

TO: Board of Directors Date: March 16, 2018
FROM: Controller-Treasurer

SUBJECT: QUARTERLY REPORT OF THE CONTROLLER-TREASURER

Attached is the Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer for the quarter ending December 31,
2017 which will be presented to the Board on March 22, 2018.

Please feel free to call me at 510-464-6070 with any questions you may have.

' Résemarie V. Poblete




Silicon Valley Extension
Phase Il — Twin Bore
Construction Mitigation
Plan

BART Board of Directors
March 22, 2018





Downtown San Jose Station — West Option (Twin-Bore)

’ Mm_m_m:m HLY

CHEVRON

1334H1S dde

4
I
I
I
J

ERVICE STATION

133415 dNe

________ .._-__:____........_—____....“ 1

%

SIPVERLHD TV S et B

13341S 1S1
1ivd IHOA VIA

il

193H1S 13MHVIA

143H1S H1p

f VN LISNVHL

| 13341S aNe
_

TIVIA LISNVHL
13341S1S 1

WALGREENS

POST STREET

AJTIV NOLS1IHOI']
_m_bL
=
@]
L

T |
| 133HLS 1INV

yudy inunil |

GLASS

March 22, 2018






\ Y Downtown San Jose
A= Twin Bore Construction Impacts

Advanced Ulility Relocations 16—24 months  Temporary lane closures and some street closures along Santa
Clara Street — one block, or one block and one intersection, or two
blocks and one intersection at a time — for periods of up to 3 months
at a time.

Support of Excavation Wall Installation 12-18 months  Temporary street closures along Santa Clara Street — one block or
one block and one intersection, or two blocks and one intersection at
a time — for periods of up to 3 months at a time. Light Rail Transit will
require bus bridges at 1%* and 2™ Street intersections for up to 3
months at each intersection.

Decking Installation 1-6 months Temporary street closures along Santa Clara Street — one block or
one block and one intersection, or two blocks and one intersection at
a time — for approximately 2 weeks to 1 month at a time.

Station Box Excavation 10-18 months  Intermittent lane closures along Santa Clara Street.

Tunnel Boring Machine Removal 24 weeks Intermittent lane closures on each end of the station — up to 4 weeks
four times.

Station Structure Construction 18-30 months  Intermittent lane closures along Santa Clara and up to 2-month
street closure of Market Street.

Decking Remove, Backfill and Street 18-24 months  Temporary one-block or one block and one intersection street

Restoration (includes Street Resurfacing, closures of 1 to 2 months, with intermittent lane closures along

Landscape, Sidewalk, Signals, Lighting) Santa Clara Street and the effected cross street.

Source: VTA 2018. Table 5-2 in Final SEIS/SEIR.
Mote: Station construction is projected to last less than six years.

March 22, 2018 3





Downtown San Jose Station Construction

Phasing Plan

hn St.

2

£
&

(o]
-

o ¥,

3.77 Football Fields (end zones included)

March 22, 2018





b] HE Phase Il Extension Timeline

BART
Engineering & Pre-Construction Project Construction System Testing

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2026

Environmental New Starts
Clearance Engineering Passenger
Service*
FTA Record Receive *Based on prefiminary schedule for planning purposes.
of Decision FTA Full
2nd Qtr 2018 Funding Grant
Agreement

3rd Qtr 2020

March 22, 2018 5





A Z=\ Twin Bore Mitigation Plan

Construction Outreach Management Plan (COMP)

= Construction Education and Outreach Plan (CEOP)

— to foster communication during construction between
VTA, various municipalities, and the public

= Construction Transportation Management Plan (CTMP)

— to coordinate location-specific circulation and access
within and around the construction areas for all modes

= Emergency Services Coordination Plan (ESCP)

— to minimize impact to local emergency service routes and
response times due to construction activities

Will be incorporated into all plans and specifications of all contracts through which Phase Il
will be implemented

March 22, 2018 6





| v P Construction Education &
m 4= Qutreach Plan (CEOP)

Responsible Parties: VTA in coordination with Cities of San Jose
and Santa Clara

Timeline: Prepared & implemented after environmental process
Phase A: Planning (January 2018 — December 2018)
Phase B: Preconstruction (December 2018 — October 2019)
Phase C: Construction (October 2019 — 2026)

Critical elements include: General Outreach
| Stakeholder Engagement
Business Promotion

March 22, 2018 7





A Z-\ CEOP Elements

General Outreach:

= Educate general audiences and communities located along the Phase Il
alignment to raise visibility of the commitment made to deliver the next
six-miles of VTA’s BART Silicon Valley; construction outreach.

Stakeholder Engagement:

= Beyond traditional construction outreach, engage individual
stakeholders most impacted by the project to begin early and often
engagement with emphasis on the real estate acquisition process,
preconstruction activities; nurture relationships.

Business Promotion:

= Assist businesses impacted by construction with marketing and
business education; for businesses, by businesses — includes
campaigns, connecting small businesses with access to resources, etc.

March 22, 2018 8





I | v P Construction Transportation
4= Management Plan (CTMP)

= Responsible Parties: VTA and its General Engineering
Contractor, in coordination with Cities of San Jose and Santa
Clara

= Timeline: Prepared before construction (Oct 2019 — April 2020)
& implemented throughout construction

= QOrganized by the 10 project elements and tailored to address
site-specific circumstances and sequencing

= Project elements: 2 tunnel portals, 4 stations, 2 ventilation
structures, Newhall Maintenance Facility, and any offsite
Improvement locations, including cross passages

March 22, 2018 9





A Z=\ CTMP: Critical Components

Critical components include:

« Sequencing schedule with proposed location and timing of
construction activities

* Proposed phasing of construction, anticipated closures, detours,
temporary signals, street reconfigurations, etc.

* Durations
« Signage requirements for contractor
« Truck haul routes
« Coordination with Cities to minimize impacts during
special events

March 22, 2018 10





HE Traffic Control Plans (TCP’s)

= Responsible Parties: Project contractor, approved by VTA & Cities
of San Jose and Santa Clara

= Timeline: Prepared following CTMP approval, prior to construction
(October 2019 — April 2020) & implemented throughout construction

= Developed for each of the 10 project elements and will include and
address all modes. May include the following:

Transportation Impacts
« Alternative access routes & wayfinding for all detours
- Early signage for potential construction delays (traffic, transit, etc.)

« Establish minimum requirements for bike/ped to provide safe travel
corridors and/or detours

- Coordination between VTA and transit providers to ensure necessary
re-routing of buses and temporary relocation of stops

« Bus bridge through downtown to mitigate light rail closure

March 22, 2018 11





Kfl TCP: Parking Plan

Parking Impacts

Notifications regarding lane/road closures impacting parking

Maps of all publicly available off-street and on-street parking
to be impacted

Schedule of parking impacts

Require construction workers to park within CSAs or other
designated areas

Plan to restore parking as construction nears
completion (to extent feasible)

March 22, 2018 12





va‘ Emergency Services
4= Coordination Plan (ESCP)

Responsible Parties: VTA in coordination with BART, local fire and
police services

Timeline: Prepared before construction (Oct 2019 — April 2020) and
Implemented throughout construction

Critical components include:

« Maintain regular communication with local fire and police departments of
construction schedule, potential lane/road closures;

« Ensure emergency access to residents and businesses, and
maintain service response times;
«  Work with local fire and police departments on the detour routes;

* Provide road signage for detours and manual traffic control on routes as
needed.

March 22, 2018 13






Transbay Tube Earthquake Safety
Service Plan

BART Board Meeting
March 22, 2018





Background

e 4 AM -5 AM Ridership Profile

Mitigation Strategies and Impacts

State of Good Repair (SOGR) Impact

Service Change Impact Study and Outreach Plan

Next Steps and Schedule





Transbay Internal Retrofit contract awarded to Shimmick/CEC JV
Dec. 2016.

Contract provides for a work window from approximately 9:30 PM
(Sunday - Thursday) until 5:00 AM (Monday - Friday) for 3.5 years.

Requires Transbay Tube single-tracking from 9:30 PM until closing;
sustainable headway of 24 minutes.

Requires 5 AM systemwide opening beginning September 2018.





Hoduiy 3v0
As)ay49g yuoN
As|aduag umoumoq
oJapedJequiy

23p1poy

|
|
|
“ Alswo8iuo
- ounug ues
- 09s1oUBlS UBS YINOS
| REERNVEN
uoday 04s
- Agsy
19915 Y161
- 131U3) 2IAID
- ew|o)
B »uen aven
192115 YIZT
1S |[eMod
QeIq|IIN
INYUY 2B\

lons

Stat

Proposed Bus Nodes

o
o™
—
wn
—
n
—
O
—
(o)
—
~
—
~
—
~
—
o
o~
—
(o]
—
o~
~N
(o]
~N
o~
<
o~
Y]
(o]
o]

igin

45 AM)

(a\]

0

o~

[e)]

(o]

Q eZe|d OIS |3

b - yded us|o

o epulO

o 199115 Ylpe

S - A3jjeA oJised

[l /0 uown

. anaheye

. piemAeH

. sSulids waepn
Jed eogjeg
juowal4

o
|
@

45 AM -4

ul|gna 19M
. pJemAeH yinos
puepeQ 19

Entries per station (between 0345 and 0445)

o0
[42]
o
<
wn
<
O
<
(o))
<
o
n
i
N
o
n
o
n
(o))
N

wnasl|jo)

Jleq Aeg
0Jpueai ues
Aud Alea

9|eAMNnJ4

15t hour of service (3

Vo]
(Vo]
0
(o}
o
~
—
~
S puowyoIy
n
(o]

%9340 INUeM

2,800 Passengers enter the system during the 1t Hour
finnn

(o)
S I pJ0o2U0) YLION
3 IIH Juesea|d
00
% I oo

910N 20 0111443D |3

BART

[ ]
179

uoluesea|d/ulgng

1ui0d Aeg/y3inqgsiid

525
233

600
500
400
300
200
100





n
<
4
o
©
[
©
LN
<
o
o
c
(]
()
=
+—
]
0
>
f—
)
[
L
[
Rel
)
©
=
[%]
—_
(]
o
(%]
x
x
L

(V)
c
O
)
(0]
)
V)
c
O
)
(O
£
=)
O
'l
| <
w7
= =
G
O -
e <
o .,
o8
—_— S
5
n 2
s O
D 5
O 2°
oc v,
-

o o — —

738

At

800

64% of all riders to
Downtown SF

epulQ
_ Aajay49g Y1oN

_ Aajjen oa1se)

_ anehese]

| uianaisam

_ eze|d ONMIS) |3

_ a8pupoy

_ pJoduo) yuoN

| puepeoisam

_ pJoouo)

— ew|o)

— neq Aeg

— 03sI9UBI4 UBS YINOS
3jeAln
uoluesea|d/uligng
Aqusy

Y9240 1nue
310N [2Q 01113 |3
A uotun

| Top Destinations

[IIH 3uesa|d
1u10d Aeg/ysingsiid
piemAeH
1uowal4
Asjeyuag umoyumoq
piemAeH yinos
3Jed eoqjeq
wnasi|o)
0Jpueai ues
puowydry
yodiy VO
s3uluds waepp
And Alea
1IIBIN 3T
J4ed U39
QeIq|IN

ounug ues
JNyuy deNl
193415 Y61
192115 Y19T
199415 Yire
192115 Y1ZT
yoduly 04S

™~
I >
) |
* s oo
) |
S I %01

I >+ 3
7/
o





‘e ]| Ridership Profile- Demographics

Minority and Non-Minority Ridership

1t Hour All Day
Minority 66% 56%
Non-minority 34% 44%

Low-Income and Non-Low-Income Ridership

*Low-income
15t Hour All Da
y riders defined as
under S50K.
Low-Income* 37% 26%
Non-Low-Income 63% 74%
2015 Station

Profile Study

6





Mitigation Options and Impacts





Options to be Advanced

1. No Mitigation: No Additional Service

2. Bus Service A: New East Bay Routes + Enhanced Existing Routes

3. Bus Service B: Bus Service A + SF Express Routes

Other Options Considered

* Minimal Regional Train Service + Extensive Single Tracking

 Shuttle Train Service + Three (3) Station Express Buses

 Shuttle Train Service + One (1) Station Express Bus





ool Metrics and Multi-Agency Support

Passenger Impact
Number of Passengers Impacted
Passenger Fare
Travel Time

Annual Cost of Mitigation Options

Bus Service Cost and Revenue

BART Operating Budget Impact 220,
State of Good Repair Impact SamTI'aI‘IS (%”/5
Transbay Tube Earthquake Safety Construction

Systemwide Maintenance
* Measure RR

. carc me(bunty (bnnection
* Other Capital Projects ‘M"l“l”“l
e Additional Maintenance Needs
YValley
Transpartation
Autharity ;





Q@ West Oaklan? J

No Mitigation: No Additional Service

Pittsburg @
Center

Pittsburg/, ° Antigch

Richmond @ Bay Point

El Cerrito del Norte @
El Cerrito Plaza @
\ North Berkeley @

North
WDConcord/Martinez
Concord @

Pleasant Hill/
Contra Costa Centre @

Downtown Berkeley Walnut Creek ©
alnut Cree

Ashby @

Lafayette @
Orinda @
Rockridge @

' MacArthur @ TIMED TRANSFER (SOUTHBOUND)

‘ 19th St/Oakland  TIMED TRANSFER (NORTHBOUND)

I 12th St/Oakland City Center

SAN FRANCISCO

EASTBAY

Embarcadero

Montgomery St

Powell St
Civic Center/UN Plaza
16th St Mission
24th St Mission

San Francisco
International

Airport (SFO)
®

Lake Merritt @
\\\ Fruitvale @
Collseu m G TRANSFER FOR SERVICE TO OAKLAND INTERN ATIONAL ARPORT

San Leandro @
)\ Bay Fair @

Dublin/ ¢
Castro Valley @ Pleasanton
Oakland ! 1]
International ! i
West Dublin/

Airport (OAK) Hayward @ Pleasanton @

\ South Hayward @
\ Union City @

_Fremont @

MON-FRI after 9pm
. SATSUNaIday

Millbrae Q@
PENINSULA

Warm Springs/ Q
South Fremont

Milpitas @

Berryessa/ @

Nort| San José
©RART 2018

Passenger Impacts

* 2,800 passengers
impacted systemwide

10





Origin Stations Catchment Area

MOrth Concord/ Pittsburg 770 riderS

Martineze Center@

1 1
X

Antiocho

. H i 4
300 rlderS RIcaniond 400 rlders Pittsburg/
onchrd@ Bay Point@
OE| Cerrito del Norte
QEl Cerrito Plaza

ONorth Berkelg

ill/Contra Costa Centreg

Walnut Creg«o

Lafayette@
Antioch-SFO/Millbrae Line

I Dublin/Pleasanton-Daly City Line
Richmond-North San José/Berryessa Line
EAST BAY . . )
[ Daly City-NorthSan José/Berryessa Line
NO EVENING OR SUNDAY SERVICE
B  Richmond-Millbrae Line
. O EVENING OR SUNDAY SERVICE
Bkland Clty Center Oakland International Airport (OAK)

SERVICE BETWEEN COLISEUM &
OAKLAND INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT STATIONS

Embarcadero
Montgomery St
Powell St

Transfer Station

. [e00e)
1 50 r I d e rs Future BART Service-Approved or Planned
(P]

BART Parking

16th St Mission
24th St Mission
Glen Park
Balboa Park

\\ . Bay Faire castro West Dublin/

Valleyo Pleasanton@ gul lin/Pleasantono

Haywardo 300 riders

International
Airport (OAK)

270 riders

San Francisco
International Airport (SFO)

MON_FRI ater 9 pm
SAT-SUN all day

MON-FRI after & pm

WD Sa7_5UN 41l day

Warm Springs/South Fremont @

135 riders

oMillbrag

Milpitas@

North San José/Berryessao

PENINSULA

Proposed
Bus Nodes SAN JOSE 11





I:= ACHIIT Bus Service A: New Eastbay Routes +

Enhanced Existing Routes

Pittshurg/
Bay Point

El Cerrito del Norte

L
)

@ Pleasant Hill
==mm New Eastbay Routes

5) 19thstioakdand === Enhanced Existing Routes

SAN FRANCISCO
A EAST BAY

Dublin/
Pleasanton

A =

Salesforce
Transit
Center

Bay Fair

Daly City

Millbrae
PENINSULA

12





I:= ACHIT Bus Service B: Bus Service A +

SF Express Routes

Pittshurg/
Bay Point
El Cerrito del Norte 7 ;
a Pleasant Hill
Al
wmmm== New SF Express Routes
@ 19th St/Oakland
=== New Eastbay Routes
SAN FRANCISCO
EAST BAY
— ‘et
A\ Enhanced Existing Routes
ﬁ Salesforce Dublin/
Transit Bay Fair Pleasanton
Center
Daly City
Ul
ganirans A=
®
= Milbrae [=)remem

PENINSULA
13





Summary of Mitigation Impacts

Standard BART I bay Re

Passenger Impact

Irip Time 53 min Passengers use 55 min 40 min

LA AL 35 min alternative mode 25 min 25 min
Milb-EMB/TBT

Fare

E/BP—EMB/TBT $6.55 Passengers use Bus fare less Bus fare less
Milb-EMB/TBT $4.65 alternative mode than BART fare than BART fare
SOGR Impact

TBT Work/Risk N/A +

Systemwide Maintenance N/A + +
Annual Cost of Mitigation Option Range (-) Range (+) Range (-) Range (+) Range (-) Range (+)
Est. BART Revenue Loss SO (S4.5 M) (S2.5 M) (S4.5 M) (S2.5 M) (S4.5 M) (52.5 M)
Est. BART Operating Expense 30 $3.0M $4.0M $3.0M $4.0M $3.0M $4.0M
Savings

Est. Net Bus Service Cost S0 N/A N/A (52 M) ($1.5 M) (52.5 M) (S1 M)
Est. Parking Revenue Loss SO (50.5 M) (50.2 M) (50.5 M) (50.2 M) (50.5 M) (50.2 M)
Est. Net to BART SO (52 M) S1.3 M (54 M) (50.2 M) (S4.5 M) S0.3 M

* Fare revenue subject to final bus fare schedule

14






State of Good Repair Impact





‘e ]| TRA 2017 Maintenance Study:

\ET M EINES

* BART’s current state threatens future success without
continued infrastructure investment

* Predictable reliability is the key to holding the riding public’s
trust

* Real-time track availability is insufficient to conduct needed
maintenance, rebuild and renewal

* Service adjustments and regular maintenance shutdowns
must become normal business

16





X158 Real-Time Maintenance Availability is

Insufficient

Weekday Maintenance
Wrench Time, by zone

Ricamond

MNorth Concord/Martinez
El Cerrito del Norte
El Cerrito Plaza

Yearly hours Yearly Hours % Mtc. Time
7 (Current with Extra Hour Added with
Conditions) per night Extra Hour per

night

Walnut Creek ) ) 43% more
1.25 14.75 767 1132 48% more
.75 11.2 585 950 62% more
Embyircadero
Montgor iery 5t
Powell St i
Civic Cener/ Coliseum
M Plaza San Leandro
L ! Bay Fair Dublin/
16th St Mission 4 Ple.
[égly fﬁti‘;’StkMission Oaklanédr Castro Valley :..asanton f \
ity alen Par Int: ti | : o
Balboa Park  Airport (OAK) Hayward  fest Dublin/ 1 365 43-62%
o P additional | gy | additional |mmsm | increasein
h- ?a‘n Fra{!cis:?Av ~=o e hour hours available
niermatona Irpo non . "
@ nightl annually )
,_mmN-FRlafrersipr%I shtly work time
. | T SAT-SUN all day 715 \ J
Millbrae

Hours

*Maximum potential “wrench time” does not include
half hour for set up and half hour for tear down

17





b Real Cost & Schedule Impacts:
M line 34.5 KV Cable Contract

Duration Impact Cost Impact

Track Access Time
(Hrs./WKk.)

16

20

40

56

Duration Engineer’s
Access (Months) % change from baseline Estimate
Subtotal Subtotal

No Change 75 months Current Case $134.6 M

5:00 Opening 45 months 4% Improvement $119.0 M

Single Track

Sundays, 5:00 32 months 579 |mprovement $68.2 M
Opening

Single Track 10:00

PM & Sundays, 21 months /29, |mprovement $62.6 M
5:00 Opening

% change from baseline

Current Case

12%
Improvement

49%
Improvement

54%
Improvement

18





Interlocking rebuild — 10 (impacting all lines)
Rail replacement — 60 miles (all lines

Rail reprofile (entire system)

Joint elimination — all lines

34.5 KV replacement — M, K, A, C, R lines
Tunnel Lighting — M, K,R, C lines

Tunnel Water Mitigation — M, R lines

Transbay Tube Generator & Switchgears
Transbay Tube Cross Passage Doors

Substation replacement M,K,A,R, C and L lines
Platform Edge rehabilitation M, R, C, K, lines
Wayside Signage Upgrades — All lines

Wayside Lubricator Replacement — All lines
Train Control Mux upgrades — All lines

Train Control Program Stop Antenna — All Lines
Train Control Transmit and Receiver Loop — All lines
Fire Systems — RY, CY, HY, A and L lines

Progressing to SOGR - Upcoming Projects

OREY Pittsburg/
b3 LEGEND o_Bay Point
A\ 34.5 KV Cable Replacement Richmond
North Concord/Martinez
@ Track Interlock Replacement % El Cerrito del Norte "
[ Substation Replacement \ [ concord

e} High Voltage Transformer Replacements

\ El Cerrito Plaza
\,‘ North Berkeley

ok b N \! [ preasant HillContra Costa
[ Platform Edge Rehabilitation \\ O BAREIE ® Cntre
Q Tunnel Lighting Q, - o _——— E Want creek
A Water Intrusion \ B —
Lafayetts
ornds Seia
TBT Work: ," [T Macarthur
- Generator & Switch Gear ;
- Cross Passage Doors / it
J 12th 1
SAN FRANCISCO ﬁja ; SRR
— % Lake Merritt
1/ v R*v\
\ Fruitvale
0 DA ™
» West Oakland \% Colisaui
Civic Center/UN Plaza // \B‘ e ioani
16th St Mission \ \k anteandre
24th St Mission / %§ Bay Fair West Dublin/
Glen Park ® \\ Castro Valley Pleasanton
Balboa Park \\4’,
- Dublin/
Qv aty 157 /// “\“\% Hayward Pleasanton

\

\*, South Hayward
'\

o\

N

Colma
South

%
%
%
)
San Francisco *\
%
O
%
%
%
%
% >
5
Q
O
O
0

San Bruno
Fremont

Millbrae
PENINSULA

Warm Springs/
South Fremont

19





'e'e | Agencies that have Modified Service

for Maintenance

Miami-Dade Department of Transportation and Public Works (DTPW) Metrorail
New York City Transit (NYCT)*

Washington Metropolitan Area Transit Authority (WMATA)*

Chicago Transit Authority (CTA)

Massachusetts Bay Transit Authority (MBTA)

Southeastern Pennsylvania Transportation Authority (SEPTA)

Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (LA Metro)
Metropolitan Atlanta Rapid Transit Authority (MARTA)

Port Authority-Trans Hudson (PATH)

Toronto Transit Commission (TTC)

Société de transport de Montreal (Montreal Metro)

London Underground (The Tube)

Metro Trans Melbourne

MTA Maryland*

*unplanned extended reduction of service hours to deal with unsafe track conditions

20





Service Change Impact Study
and Outreach Plan





'e°e | Service Change Impact Study

» Staff to conduct a Service Change Impact Study to determine
impacts on minority/low-income populations.

* Demographic assessment
* Travel Time and alternative routes analysis
 Survey and public outreach

* Timeline: Late March-May

*Service change does not require Title VI analysis/no requirement to submit to FTA.

22





Outreach Plan

Outreach will target early morning passengers.

1.

2.

Onboard survey beginning at the following stations:

* Pittsburg/Bay Point, Richmond, Dublin/Pleasanton, Warm
Springs/South Fremont, Millbrae

In-station outreach held at the following stations:
* Embarcadero, Powell, Montgomery, 12t Street, MacArthur

Newspaper/Media/Multilingual Media Ads.

Presentation to OCR’s Title VI/Environmental Justice and Limited
English Proficiency Advisory Committees.

Robust outreach to community groups, chambers of commerce,
and business councils, hospitality and service workers, owners
and unions.

Outreach to Airport Employees (OAK and SFO).

23





Next Steps and Schedule





tn Next Steps and Schedule

Task Lead 2018 Timeframe Board Input
Finalize options for outreach BART March *
Conduct Service Change Impact Study BART March — May
+ Outreach
Finalize service plan, fares and BART + *
. June
logistics Bus Operators

Negotiate business agreements

Conduct outreach

Implement service change

BART + June — August
Bus Operators &

BART August — September

BART September

25





26






Bicycle Program Update

Progress | Challenges
March 2018

March 2018, Bike Program Update






Progress | Challenge

Presentation Contents

Capital Plan

Clipper Pilot

Bikeep High Security Racks
Dock-based Bike Share
Bikes On-board

Local Partners

10
11
12
15
17

Bike Access Mode Share
Dock-less Bike Share
Stair Channels

Bike Theft

Operating Costs

13
14
16
18

March 2018, Bike Program Contents






Background

2012 BART Bicycle Plan

Double access from 4% to 8% by 2022

Cyclist Circulation

Plentiful Parking

Bikes On-Board

Persuasive Programs

Beyond BART Boundaries

March 2018, Bike Program Update

Stair channels, Accessible
fare gates

Bike lockers, Bike stations

Commute period access,
Bike space

Bike-to-work day, Bike
share promotion

Bike sharing, Support local
street improvements

O{-O

O{-O O{'O O{-O

O{-O O{'O
O{-O
O§O O{'O





Background
Bike Parking Inventory

Racks 4,061 41

BikeLink Lockers 1,642 37

Bike Stations 1,321 7

Keyed Lockers 390 17

Bikeep 34 3

Total 7,448 43
Comparisons

WMATA (comparable system, ridership ~650,000) = 3,700
Tri-Met (bike-friendly town, ridership ~300,000) = 1,800

March 2018, Bike Program Update 3





Background

Bike Parking Occupancy

September 2017 Occupancy Inventory

Number of Stations by Occupancy

_ S0 75 | 25%- 9%

BikeLink Lockers 8

Bike Racks 3 8 18 12
Attended Bike Station 1 2 - -~
Self-Park Bike Station 1 2 1 --
Keyed Lockers Rented 13 3 1 --

March 2018, Bike Program Update 4





Challenge

Bike Access to BART

Customer Satisfaction Survey

6.0%
Home to BART Bicycle Mode Share

5.0%

4.0%

Bike Access
w
Q
S

Note:

2.0% 2015 Station Profile Survey
Bicycle Mode Share = 6%+

1.0% -

0.0%

2000 2002 2004 2006 2008 2010 2012 2014 2016
Year

March 2018, Bike Program Update 5





Progress

2017 Bike Program Capital Plan

Parking Expansion (major and incremental)
* Networking eLockers
« Stairway Channels

 Accessible Fare Gates

March 2018, Bike Program Update

BART Bicycle Program
Capital Plan






Progress
Bike Station Major Expansions o

* Downtown Berkeley Under Construction
* MacArthur
* Civic Center Final Design

* Embarcadero

« 19t Street, « Dublin/Pleasanton Site Feasibility
* Fremont,  Lafayette
» Lake Merritt, - North Berkeley

» Concord, * Del Norte Conceptual Design
* Rockridge, * San Leandro
» West Oakland

March 2018, Bike Program Update 7





Progress
Parking Expansion--Hayward G

$175,000

Affordable Housing and
Sustainability Community
Grant with Meta Housing

March 2018, Bike Program Update 8





Progress

Parking Expansion--Walnut Creek

$550,000 FTA Grant with Measure J I\/Iatch“

96 BikeLink Lockers
« 80 Rack Spaces
* Fix-it Station

March 2018, Bike Program Update 9





Progress

Clipper Pilot bo

Ashby and Rockridge—Bike Station + 142 Lockers

Technology 108 Pilot Participants
e Fully independent solar and wireless e Rated: 4.59/5 stars
hardware e 95% said Clipper Access
e No Cubic involvement improved experience
Future User Benefits “My experience was practically flawless. Thank
e Clipper and iOS App access you for doing this and keep up the great work!” -

o Check parking availability in advance Jacob T

e Reservations are an option _ ,
“It was very easy! Please make this available to

Future Operational Benefits everyone ASAP!™- Rachel S.
e Real time maintenance needs
e Real time data
e Improved parking rules enforcement

March 2018, Bike Program Update 10





Progress

Bikeep High Security Racks

| FREE  bba
Installations complete at: )J HIGH-SECURITY
« 16™ Street Mission M0 BICYCLE PARKING

. ne or in-person at any -BikeHub
» Pleasant Hill o e N i Qs
. s 1 & = e —
* H ayWard A = N gl y ‘ 1 , S5l o IN-PERSON

y f 1d a
wheel with a pers
é%

CHOOSE A RACK. Use locking arm to secure
your frame ar wheel. Secure your other
/heel w onal lock
TAP TO LOCK. Your Clipper card is y
to lock and unlock. Continu

Installation targets: | /
« 12t St. Oakland
e 24t St. Mission
» Balboa

* Glen Park

« Concord

* MacArthur

* Orinda

rour
personal key WS
parking limited to 24 hours a

ISTER and PARK NOW: basic.bikehub.com

March 2018, Bike Program Update 11





Progress

Dock Based BikeShare

« Single provider (Motivate) under
master agreement with MTC and five
cities

« BART/Motivate Agreement

- BART deployment: San Francisco, [l
Oakland and Berkeley =

* Full roll out = 7,000 hikes at 500
docks

March 2018, Bike Program Update 12





Challenge

Dock-less Bike Share

Multiple providers (LimeBike, Spin, Jump, Ofo, Mobike . . .)

LimeBike currently has largest
presence (SSF, Walnut Creek,
Alameda, Albany, EI Cerrito,
Burlingame)

Drafting agreement template:
« Designated parking areas
* Response time

« Insurance requirements

March 2018, Bike Program Update

13





Challenge

Stair Channels

Design Criteria Complete 16t Street Migsioﬁ/*

« Code Analysis ’ | /
* Functionality Criteria

« Conceptual Design

* Proposed BFS Chapter

GRANT/RR MULTI-STATION PROJECT

e 12t Street,
 Civic Center

* Coliseum Station Modernization
« Embarcadero « 19" Street

« Lake Merritt « Downtown Berkeley
 Richmond

e« San Leandro
 Walnut Creek

March 2018, Bike Program Update 14





Progress

Bikes On-Board

Current Bike Space with Straps
New Cars

U Testing complete, very high approval
U Buckle version preferred
O Final design and full roll out—next step

March 2018, Bike Program Update 15





Challenge

Bike Theft

Average 23 bikes reported stolen per month

53% 7% 30% 3% 6%

Theft Reduction Strategies

Enforcement (nine arrests in last five months)

Secure Parking (bike stations, lockers, Bikeep)

Education (signage, hang tags, theft prevention outreach)

Abandoned Bike Removal (quarterly sweep by CSO/Maintenance crew)

* Other = lock type not reported, asleep on

train, left on platform, front of bus, only
locked wheel

March 2018, Bike Program Update 16





Progress
Local Partners

Concerns of Cycling Safety Limit Bike Use

“40% to 70% of the population would try cycling
or cycle more if they didn’t have to share busy
roads with cars.”

Downtown Berkeley BART

“More Oaklanders cited aggressive drivers as a
concern than any other barrier to biking (79%)”

West Dublin BART *

March 2018, Bike Program Update 17





Challenge BART
Operating Costs Snapshot

Annual Operating Costs by Parking Type

N YT

Bikeep Racks $20

Self-park Bike Stations $50
BikeLink Lockers $100
Part-time staff Bike Stations $100
Valet Bike Stations $185

Current Net Non-BART Labor Operating Budget:
$700,000* annually: ~ 0.01% of BART Operating

(* net includes $110,000 contribution from cities of Berkeley and Oakland and user fees)

March 2018, Bike Program Update 18





Moving Forward

« Continue focus on secure parking as means to increase bicycle
access mode share, reduce theft and encourage cyclists to park/not
bring bikes on trains.

» Support bikeshare programs by addressing
operational details, assisting with expansion
efforts and promoting.

» Support local community efforts to improve
the safety of bike routes to BART.

* Ramp-up promotional efforts

» Leverage resources by pursuing grant
opportunities, developing partnerships and
looking for operational efficiencies.

March 2018, Bike Program Update 19






Quarterly Report of the
Controller-Treasurer
Period Ending 12/31/17

BART Board of Directors
March 22, 2018





Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 12/31/17

» The District currently provides benefits to employees which include, but are not limited to:

Retirement Pension Plan managed by the California Public Employee Retirement System
(CALPERS), and funded by contributions from the District and it’s employees. CALPERS is
the largest pension plan in the United States with assets of approximately $300 billion.

Retiree Medical Benefits coverage funded by a Trust established by the District in 2005.
The Trust as of December 31, 2017.
a. Invested in a combination of stocks, bonds, REIT & cash,
b Benchmark 6.75%,
c.  Total net assets $297.5 million and inception to date return is 7.1%,
d Quarterly Report to the Unions

Survivor Benefits of active and retired employees funded by the employees
(S15/month),

Life Insurance for retired employees.

The District also accrues liabilities through Property & Casualty insurance and workers
compensation claims and maintains the required reserves related to its self-funded
insurance programs for worker’s compensation and general liability based on an annual
actuarial study.





Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 12/31/17

Funding Summary of Pension, Retiree Health & Other Post-Employment Benefits

Valuation Date _Market Value of Assets Total Liability Unfunded Liability % Funded

Retirement Pension with CALPERS

Miscellaneous Employees 6/30/2016 S 1,614,430,356 $ 2,180,799,091 S 566,368,735 74.0%

Safety Employees 6/30/2016 S 180,391,930 S 306,909,516 S 126,517,586 58.8%
Retiree Health Benefits 6/30/2016 S 237,403,000 S 537,873,000 S 300,470,000 44.1%
Other Post Employment Benefits

Life Insurance 6/30/2016 S - S 30,501,000 S 30,501,000 0.0%

Survivors Benefits 6/30/2016 S $6,814,000 S 39,322,000 A S 32,508,000 17.3%

Note A: Based on discount rate of 3.58% (Bond Buyer 20 General Obligation Bond Index per GASB 75).





Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 12/31/17

CALPERS Pension Plan Funding Progress

120.0%

100.0% \
o \/N—‘/‘\‘\’

F
Y 60.0%
n . (] ﬂ
d
e
d 40.0%
=== Miscellaneous
== Safety
20.0%
0.0%

6/30/2008 6/30/2009 6/30/2010 6/30/2011 6/30/2012 6/30/2013 6/30/2014 6/30/2015 6/30/2016
Valuation Date





Q M Q S € =M

70.00%

Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 12/31/17

Retiree Health Benefits Plan

60.00%

50.00%

40.00%

30.00%

20.00%

10.00%

0.00%
6/30/2008

6/30/2009

6/30/2010

6/30/2011

6/30/2012  6/30/2013  6/30/2014  6/30/2015  6/30/2016
Valuation Date

=¢==% Funded





Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer

Period Ended 12/31/17

Accounts Payable

»  Our goal is to pay 93% of our invoices within 30 days. We continue to keep our focus on getting our vendors paid
as quickly as possible. During the most recent quarter, the District was able to process 89.6% of all paid invoices
within 30 days. Of those that were not processed in 30 days, 9.2% were processed within 60 days, and 1.1% were
processed within 90 days. The trend depicting the past year is shown here:

100%

90%

80%

70%

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

Number of Voucher Paid in Percent

10%

0%

Quarterly Number of Voucher Payment Trend

3.9% 3.5%

L/0

.17

2017 Q3 2017Q4 2018Q1

Invoiced Fiscal Quarter

2018Q2

B 1-30 Days Paid Percent

m 31-60 Days Paid Percent

M 61-90 Days Paid Percent
91+Days Paid Percent





TOTAL OUTSTANDING (in thousands)

Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 12/31/17

Accounts Receivable

»  The time to receive reimbursement funding from our funding partners is shown in the chart below. The amount
outstanding is $23,163,000 as of December 31, 2017.

Amount Billed A/R Grants as of 12/31/2017

$14,000

$12,032
OTH, $596
$12,000
ECCRFFA, $952
$10,000 LTRANS, $3,334
$8,000 CCTA, $149
MTC, $1,361
$4,992 OTH, $149
56,000 VTA, $2,145 ) § 4,544 N
ECCRFFA, $483
CALTRANS, $1
CCTA, $1,795
»4,000 MTC, $1,872
$ 1,595 OTH, $57 s
ACTC, $2,577
$2,000 VTA, $2,185 CALTRANS, $13
I CCTA, $1,526
s_

01-30 days 31-60 days 61-90 days 91-120 days 121+ days





Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 12/31/17

3. DISTRICT FINANCES

The District continues to actively search for investments which meets the Investment Policy and generates a yield higher than
zero. Shown below are the composition of the District’s cash and investments as of the end of the quarter.

Cash and Investments

Total Cash in Banks: $130,583,229

Total CD Investments: $865,957

Total Government Securities: $427,281,000

Return on T-Bill Investments: Weighted average is 1.24% - Due to a better market, rates are up slightly from 1.03% reported
in previous quarter. The weighted average maturity (WAM) of our T-Bill Investment portfolio is 187 days.

Pie chart showing the difference in cash, CD investments and government securities

YV VVVY

/-5855,957 Government Securities:

* FHLB
 UST

* IADB
* IFC

* FNMA

m Cash In Bank m CD Investments m Government Securities 8





Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 12/31/17

Debt

>

The District currently has two types of debt outstanding:
1. Sales Tax Revenue Debt
2. General Obligation Debt

Sales Tax Revenue Debt

>
>
>

>

Currently outstanding debt of $528.81 million.
Annual Debt Service $41.9 million (effective after December 2017 Sales Tax Refunding).

Debt Services comes “off the top” of sales tax revenues remitted to the district by the State
Board of Equalization.

This directly impacts the operating budget.

General Obligation Bonds

V YV V

YV V V

o%

 Measure AA

Currently outstanding debt of $566.2 million.

Issued $740 of $980 authorized.

Most recent assessment for fiscal year 2017/2018 is $6.30/5100,000
+* Measure RR

Currently outstanding debt of $271.6 million.

Issued $300 million out of $3.5 billion authorized.

Most recent assessment for fiscal year 2017/2018 is $2.10/5100,000







m Financial Outlook for FY19

BART Board of Directors
March 22, 2018






Introduction

 FY19 Pro Forma Budget
e Conservative revenue assumptions

e Baseline expense budget includes:

e Staffing/non-labor to support new rail cars,
HMC and full year BART to Antioch service

e SVBX full year budget as capital; opening
date expected to be announced in spring
2018

* FY19 Preliminary Budget released by March 31





Ridership and Fare Revenue

FY18 YTD Ridership Annual Ridership (M)
 Weekday trips down 2.7%

126. 128.5 124.2
e Saturday and Sunday down 7.1% ws ] e
and 5.7% respectively t01.0 @37
FY18 Year End Estimate
e Total trips estimated to be 3.1%
lower than FY17
FY19 budget S e o e e e e e e e
& & Q& Q& Q& Q& & < 5.&\@7’ o
* Forecasted decline of 1% due to: & é@*

* Flat ridership growth expected in core system
e Estimated impact to ridership of TBT retrofit project
o Offset slightly by increased ridership from BART to Antioch opening





Ridership and Fare Revenue

Fare Revenue Fare Revenue (SM)
e Jan 12018 fare changes

* 2.7% CPIl-based fare increase — e e
e $0.50 surcharge on mag stripe oo Nsis |
tickets s331 I 533 | ©°%

* Youth discount age increase to 18 I I I I I I I
 Demand for peak period, long

distance, transbay trips is helping

reduce fare revenue budget & & & & @&

variance & @
 FY19

e Based upon ridership forecast
* Full year of FY18 fare changes





Financial Assistance

Sales Tax

. 5290
* BART growth drivers: Sales Tax ($M)
. 32570
restaurants, retail, new car sales

* FY18 forecasted at 4% based on ,, |

YTD actuals 5210 -
* Annual growth 5150 -
* 10vyear average: 2.2% 3170
e 20 vyear average: 3.1% > N @&
e Last recession substantially s To Revenue —lesTax @ CPtre ¢ .qo“"'o

impacted sales tax
* Forecasting 2.7% growth in FY19 and 3% long term
° Budget estimate finalized after 3Q results known in March





h Financial Assistance (continued)

Property Tax

* Current revenues based upon real
estate activity 18-30 months ago

e Large jump in BART assessed
values in FY16-FY17 (9-11%)

* Forecasting 7% and 5% growth in
FY18 and FY19, respectively

State Transit Assistance (STA)

* Infusion of STA from SB1
implementation starting in FY18

e MTC estimates increase to S32M
in FY19

* Assumes SB1 not repealed

Property Tax ($M)

9\ %] b= " a A
q(\ q(\ {k\ {Q\ qk\ q(\ qk\q}d? {Fl(ép
&
State Transit Assistance ($M)





Expense: Labor

 Major labor expense categories
e Wages & Positions

Pension
Retiree Medical

e Labor costs (wages & benefits) estimated to increase in FY19
due to:

Increased service = increase in positions

Aging fleet as new cars phase-in

Aging infrastructure while Measure RR projects in
construction

Increased benefit costs, especially pension and OPEB





Expense: Wages & Positions

* Wage Increase: FY18-FY21 Contract
e ATU, SEIU, AFSCME, Non-Represented 2.5% 7/1/18

e BPOA, BPMA 2.0% 7/1/18 (contract expires June 30, 2018;
currently in negotiations)

e Positions added for BART to Antioch, Fleet of the Future
transition, Hayward Maintenance Complex (HMC)

e Approximately 50 operating positions in FY19 Pro forma





Expense: Pension

Pension
Pension ($M)
* FY19 budget will be determined $100 -
when positions are finalized 390

$80 -

* CalPERS three-year phase-in lowering
of assumed investment return from
7.5% to 7.0% will impact rates from
FY19 on: "

* FY19 Discount Rate: 7.375% $3

$2

$70

$50 -

o

o

* |Implied Employer Rate

o

$1

|
* Miscellaneous 19.6% (17.5% in N Ilii"'

FY18 FY10 FYII FYl2 FYI3 FY 14 FYI5 FYl6 FYI17 FYI8 FY19
) Budget Proforma

® Employer Employee (Portion paid by BART)

e Safety 63.0% (57.7% in FY18)

* Significant increase to Unfunded
Accrued Liability of 30% to 40%
phased-in over 5 years per CalPERS





Expense: Retiree Medical

Retiree Medical

Retiree Medical ($M)

FY19 Actuarial Valuation — 345
Preliminary Results $40
* Increases due to updated 835 $38
assumptions $30 |
* FY19 Actuarially Determined 25 = s26 Wl *7 527
Contribution S38M s20 | [N
* 8% increase over FY18 315
* 53% increase over FY17 $10° 1
e Unfunded Liability FY19 $286M vs. =
FY18 $3OOM (FY17 S111'4M) o FY10 N FYI1 : FY12 : FY13 N FY14 N FYI15 FYl6 N FY17 N FY18 FY19 R
Budget Proforma
* Funded Status FY19 49% vs. FY18
44% (FY17 67%)

Assumed to be fully funded by 2034
through collective bargaining

10





Expense: Non-Labor

e Additions to FY 19 budget
 BART to Antioch
e MET Building operations
e Lakeside headquarters building rent increase
e GO Bond election equipment fees (one-time)
e Reductions of FY18 one-time costs
e GO Bond and Director County Filing Fees

e Other one-time items

11





FY18 Budget: Outlook

e Fare revenue below budget

e Sales tax and other financial assistance slightly
above budget

e Operating expense very tight
 Filling only critical positions

* Increased pressure to address service and quality of life
Issues

12





FY19 Budget: Outlook

e Preliminary Budget in development
e Rider decline offset by moderate sales tax growth and

increased support from STA/other financial assistance

e Expense increases focus of service and quality of life

issues

e Expense additions include:

Fleet of the Future transition
Hayward Maintenance Complex expansion
BART to Antioch

Investments in fare evasion mitigation, homelessness
outreach, cleanliness, safety & security

13





FY19 Capital Budget Schedule

* Initial Project Cost Estimates (March)

e Department review (Mid-March to Mid-April)
e Preliminary Capital Budget review (Late April)

e Capital Headcount finalized (Late April)

e Capital Budget complete for Board review (Mid-
May)

14





FY19 Capital Budget

e Focus will remain on system reinvestment

e First tranche of Measure RR bonds issued in FY17, projects
are underway. In FY19 RR will fund:
e Continue & accelerate rail replacement
e Replace more traction power cables & substations
e Downtown San Francisco escalator replacement
e Station Modernization programs

e Continuation of Big 3
e Rail Cars: Continue to put cars into service & consistent
deliveries
e HMC: Continue major construction
e TCMP: RFQ/RFP was issued in August 2017. Procurement
process will continue through FY19

15





oo | Major FY19 Capital Funding Sources

BART / Voter Approved Federal and Regional Funds
e Measure RR e FTA 5337 State of Good Repair
funds

e Operating to Capital Allocations
e MTC/federal funds for rail cars

e Earthquake Safety Program
e Regional Measure 2 bridge toll

funds
State County and Local Partners
e CA Proposition 1A and 1B * BART District County Measures
e SB1 (New) e Transit Agency Partners: VTA

and SFMTA

16





FY19 Budget: Schedule

e Feb 8: Financial Outlook (Board Workshop)

e Mar 22: Financial Outlook for Fiscal Year 2019

Mar 31: FY19 Preliminary Budget Memo Release

Apr 26: FY19 Preliminary Budget Overview

May 10: FY19 Budget - Sources, Uses and Service Plan;
Capital Budget

e May 24: FY19 Public Hearing; Adopt Proposition 4 Limit
e Jun 14: Adopt FY19 Budget Resolution

17






Station Wayfinding/Real-time
Departure Information Display
Improvement Update

Overview of Wayfinding Scope & Elements
e Directional Signage
e Station Identification Signage
e Transit Information Displays
e Real-time Departure Information Displays
e Pilot: Real-time Displays at BART Faregates

Work Completed To Date
 Developmental Phase
e Phases2and3
e Phase4

Next Steps

* Enhance Wayfinding in Station Area for Multi-modal
Access

e Signage for Assisting Patron on Use of Station Amenities

» Signage for Rules and Regulations to Promote Quality
and Safe Riding on BART





BART

Station Wayfinding Signage and Real-Time
Displays (RTD) — History & Context

e MTC completes Transit
Connectivity Plan (2006)

e MTC adopts Resolution No.
3866 — Transit Coordination
Implementation Plan (2010)

Release 2.0
February 2012 | Final

REGIONAL TRANSIT

e BART/MTC joint effort — WAYFINDING
developed Regional Transit GUIDELINES &
Wayfinding Guidelines & STANDARDS
Standards (2012) Guidelines

Appendix A: Artwork

Appendix B: Fonts

Appendix C: Standard Specifications
Appendix D: Real-Time Displays
Appendix E: Standard Drawings

Final Summary Report

ey S N T - TRy
1y - N | .
¢ . > & ] o
2 ¥ N . .-1,1 = -
= Ny 3 Al
=

MTC TRANSIT CONNECTIVITY PLAN
@

Wilbur Smith Associates
Kimley-Horn and Assodiates METRUPOLITAN
Moore lacofano Goltsman, Inc A v TeavsrorTATION

Harley & Associates COMMISSION

T






BART

—— —:

B =1 FORMATION i






hj Station ldentification Signage

19t St/
AOak‘Iand -






I s ar v Station Identification Signage

-~
f
J
-~
o
O
o
3
-
o
-
)
~
-






BART

Paradas del transito

Transit
Information
Displays

Station Map

Mapa de la estacién

AR o
- Gor® - L
« EPaSENs : N ;
9 ARG VT AR
= -
g S Station Area Map CC.Q . #
2 o 4
2 e b & 4
> 0, oE . /
[ A bt B+ B '-\ .
7 P h b _g- :
A2 S -
.
Oﬁ ‘A m w | OB Qn
! ] g
5z MARKET ST _Lm_g_
H -noG m 1]
ne "0 Tethker l! !Iﬂﬂ
o Mkt Wtk L lﬁllﬁﬂ
LA S Frand :;
- happing
= [ Concourse Plan View e
= SOMA -
w

Station Section View

Tran5|t Stops

Transit
Information

. Pleasant Hill
| station Area

WATSIDE LN

LAS JUNTAS WY

Conftra Costa
Centre

Y =) 13-3% )
2 ) s M e
Phuse

MARVEY DR

SUNNE LN

FTREAT BLVD

5N

Free Bay Area

Dl g e g g

om0 0
o ———






2
r— i





Real-Time
Departure
Information
Displays

i —
I !
]
)

| .
¢ j
T -
3 S T -
| B
i-‘i i
b






B ART O 511 Transit Departures for BarRT 8:35 AM

3 BART Departing
Pittsburg Bay Point <2, 14, 31 min
- North Concord

Re a I 'Tl m e Pleasant Hill

Fremont 10, 25, 40 min
D e p a rt U re OO Richmond 2,11, 16 min

. Montgomery
Information
O Dpaycity

D i S p I ays SF Airport 10, 23, 38 min

SF Airport then Millbrae

P O  Milbrae 2, 15, 30 min
O rlgl n a | fo rm at s11) Call 511 or visit 511.org for more free real-time departures. Page 1 of 1
$1) MONTGOMERY STATION (Subway Service) Page20f2 9:19AM Q)
Revised format (2016) ® K533 BART Platform 1 in J % M6 Muni Metro Outbound min

e Organization Millbrae 4, 15 (M Balboa Park
. Agency, Platform Daly City 6, 8 @ West Portal
«  Departure info closer B SFO Airport 9, 22 I|\_| ?;gzuello Blvd
to train destinati @ 531 BART Platform 2 min 00
. Vi 'b'I(')t rain destination Dublin-Pleasanton 3,18 @ 30th Church
ISIoMIty B Pittsburg-Bay Point 5,20
*  Dark background Warm Springs / Sou... 10, 23
with white lettering Richmond 12, 27

* |ncreased font size

s1) Call or visit 511.0rg for more real-time departures and alert information.






BART

BART Faregate Real-Time Display (RTD) Pilot

- [%] BART Entrance
* Located at Civic Center primary - T —
BART entry _ - = == ===
e 2 sets each over both faregate arrays '
 BART only real-time train departure
information
e Service and operational
announcements visible to patrons

before they enter paid area

Richmond 6 min, 19 min
Dublin/Pleasanton 9 min, 24 min

= Warm Springs 14 min, 29 min






Pittsburg/ Pittsburg
Bay Point Center

Rlchmond

North Concord/Martinez Antioch

Pleasant Hill/

|
El Cerrito del Norte \
Contra Costa Centre

El Cerrito Plaza “§)
North Berkeley /@
Downtown Berkeley g\
Ashby )

Concord

Breds Walnut Creek

. Lafayette
_, Rockridge

West ;‘_:[' ~ MacArthur

Oakland M~ 19th St/Oakland
I 12th St/Oakland City Center
Embarcadero 4/ - Lake Merritt
Montgomery >t \ Fruitvale
p— Powell 5t / \ \ Coliseum
Civic Center/ ///
UN Plaza 4 /// ) \\ San Leandro
; Bay Fair Dublin/
///// 16th St Mission , Castro Valley | Pleasanton
Daly 4 // 24th St Mission Oakland \
City. /2% ~Glen Park International N\ West Dublin/
& BalboaPark | Airport (OAK) N\Hayward | (oS ouonn

South Hayward
San Francisco

N
‘e‘

SFouth San A International Union City

rancisco D » Airport (SFO)
San Bruno <,
S— w oo MON-FRI after 9 pm o
QB ™™ AT SUN 2/ da SAT-SUN -
- pm \ Y Fremon SAT-SUN
Millbrae MON-FRI all day

T
before 65 | yArapm Springs/

© BART 2018 South Fremont

w Station Wayfinding & RTD Improvement

Standard Development Phase -
Transit Hub Signage

Improvement

. 13 Stations

*  Funded by MTC Prop 1B funds

*  Wayfinding signage in free areas
* Installed 39 RTD

Wayfinding Improvements

Phase 2

e 16 Stations (several Phase 1 for
paid areas)

*  Funded by BART, FTA, State Prop
1B, CC County Measure J funds

Wayfinding signage in free and
paid areas

* Installed 11 RTDs

Wayfinding Improvements

Phase 3

. 10 Stations

*  Funded by BART, FTA, State Prop
1B, SF County Prop K funds

*  Wayfinding signage in free and
paid areas

*  Planned install of 12 RTDs

11





E Station Wayfinding & RTD Improvement — Phase 4

Pittsburg/ Pittsburg

BayPoint] Center [RTD Enhancement J
| Richmond ’ North Concord/Martinez Antioch * 6 Downtown stations (4
{El Cerrito del Norte PR Pleasant Hill/ e SF, 2 Oakland)
El Cerrito Plaza Contra Costa Centre o Funded by FTA, State
North Berkeley
Downtown Berkeley “@\ Orinda Walnut Creek Prop 1B .
Ashby B * Projected construction
y L
. afayette .
Rockridge in late 2018
West MacArthur
Oakland  it{19th St/Oakland] | Lifecycle RTD Replacement
e 12th St/OakIIand City Center e Original transit hub
o Lake Merritt .
ontgomery St ; : stations
Bowvell ot Fruitvale
Civic Center/ _ CoslseuLm 4 e Funded by MTC
UN Plaza W 2o —eandro - e Projected construction
— Bay Fair Dublin/ )
16th St Mission _. Castro Valley | Pleasanton in early 2019
Daly 24th 5t Missioffl  gakland
City Glen Park Internationall N\ W ; .y -
\ est Dublin/
Balboa Park Airport (OAK cHayward | 5 > -5 Rema-lnlf\g Stations
: \ Wayfinding Improvements
Colma N\ South Hayward o 14 Stations
San Francisco \ .
Sp?gﬁhcé?é" iln_ternational] \Union City * Designin progress
Lo Airport (SFO) : e Construction to be
_____ o MON-FRI after 9 pm : \ N funded
mm MONRRI ’\=> SAT-SUN a/l day Fremont §®<— mm 7= 00"
Millbrae m MON-R ’i> ; alf day
sfore¢Pm | \Warm Springs/

© BART 2018 South Fremont 12





~-w RTD Enhancement Pilot at Civic Center Station

7 RTDs at circulation paths and entrance areas test quantity and placement

al

i

g B
A

i
i

!

@5-

1

i
L1}

B
| il

I





Next Steps

Enhance multi-modal
station access
wayfinding outside of
and in the vicinity of
station.

Inter-agency joint
effort: MOU with
EBRPD






Next Steps

BART

Code of Conduct

SICR i

No Eating
No Drinking

Regulatory
signage for
guality of life
and safety

Proof of 24-hour
Payment Surveillance

OW®

Headphones  No Bike No Vandalism
Only Riding

Prohlblted Behavior:

Bikes on escalators * Sitting on stairs or

No Smoking
No Vaping

No Littering

* Bikes on first train car exit path

* Possessing hazardous or ¢ Skateboarding
explosive materials * Spitting

* Animals unless enclosed * Tampering with
in carrying case or equipment
service animals s Carrying

® Public urination or unlawful weapons
defecation ¢ Vending without a

* Restroom access permit
without ticket * Aggressive panhandling

Violations to any rules mentioned above while on BART property

is subject to one or more of the following: CA Public Utilities Code
§99170; CA Penal Code Section 19.8, 171.7, 374.4, 369i, 594, 640 and
647; CA Vehicle Code Section 21113. Violations may result in up to
one year imprisonment, fines of up to $50,000, and/or community
service; or the maximum penalty allowed by law.

Public Safety

24 (@)

Do not Text
and Walk

No Strollers  Watch the
on Escalators Gap

a

Hold onto Wait behind Report
Escalator Platform Unattended
Handrails Edge Tiles Items

Assisted
Evacuation

® Make yourself known to Station Agent or
Operations Control Center (OCC) by using
Elevator Intercom or White Courtesy Phone

#® Ask for assistance from other BART Riders
or call 911

® During Station evacuation, Station will be
checked and swept by Station Agent, OCC,
BART Police Officers, and/or First Responders

BART Police: (510) 464-7000 For Emergency call 911






Next Steps

* Amenities signage
to assist patrons
with use of station
facilities and
equipment

e Regulatory signage
for quality of life
and safety






		Station Wayfinding/Real-time Departure Information Display Improvement Update

		Slide Number 2

		Slide Number 3

		Slide Number 4

		Slide Number 5

		Slide Number 6

		Slide Number 7

		Slide Number 8

		Slide Number 9

		Slide Number 10

		Slide Number 11

		Slide Number 12

		Slide Number 13

		Slide Number 14

		Slide Number 15

		Slide Number 16




I LALAM Station Access Program Update

BART Board
March 22, 2018





 Framework

* Process

e Funding

* Projects & Plans





BART Station Access Policy Goals

D. Better Experience. s

a better neighbor, and strive for an
Greener. advance the region’s safety, excellent customer experience, including

public health, and greenhouse gas (GHG) on the first and last mile of the trip to
and pollution-reduction goals. and from BART stations.

E. Equitable
Se rViCES. Invest in access

choices for all riders, particularly those
with the fewest choices.

A. Safer, Healthier,

B. More Riders. invest in station
access to connect more riders cost
effectively, especially where and when BART
has available capacity.

C. More Productive and
Efficient. Manage access

investments, programs, and current assets
to achieve goals at the least cost.

F. Innovation and
Partnerships. sean

innovation leader, and establish durable
partnerships with municipalities, access
providers, and technology companies.

BART Board adopted June 9, 2016





BART

2008 ACCESS
MODE SHARE

Drive& = active

. i
5 G
34% i 7

e
/////4?/ o
S

A /
;7 -
e ey
& e e

Active Access: Walk, Bike

Access Mode Share Targets (home-based)

2025 TARGET

ACCESS MODE SHARE
2015 ACCESS

MODE SHARE*

Drive &
Park

Drive & 16%

Park
27%

e
/,;fxfm TN
K S .

*Preliminary 2015 Station Profile Survey Data

Shared Mobility: Transit, Shuttle, TNC, Drop-Off, Carpool






BART Measure RR Station Access

Allocation by Mode

* Invest to meet
policy objectives

* Invest to meet
targets

* Home-based mode-share
targets require estimated:

* 43,000 increase in active
access riders

e 22,000 increase in shared

.. . BART Active
mobility riders

Access
Projects, 552

Safe Routes to
BART, 525





Funding + Partnership

Leverage

e County Sales Tax Measures

e MTC Lifeline, RM3 + One Bay Area Grant (OBAG)

e Transportation Fund for Clean Air Regional Fund (TFCA)

e California Cap-and-Trade Affordable Housing + Sustainable
Communities Program (AHSC)

Local Partnerships
e Funding Match

e Land use control
* Project Delivery





oo fl Project Delivery Approach

Advance & Construct Pipeline Projects Measure RR FY18/19 Allocation

Planning & Project Identification + Prioritization for Pipeline

Ongoing/Underway: * Multimodal Design Guidelines ¢ Intermodal Redesign, Pedestrian

e N. Concord to Antioch BART Curb Use Study g B(ijcy(cIIDiNet\;v)og(TCciap Closure
tu ase 2),
Access Study « Bike Parking Capital Plan Y

* Pedestrian & Bicycle Network Accessibility Improvement
Gap Closure Study (Phase 1) Program (AIP)





BART Measure RR Station Access

Current Projects & Upcoming Contracts

Project Advert. Date Subst. Est. Contr. Amt. (SM)
Compl.
El Cerrito Del Norte — Ohlone Greenway and Bus Shelters Done FY19-Qtr4 | $2.3 (added to Station Mod Contract)
Fremont Station Bike Station FY19-Qtr4 FY21-Qtr2 $0.70
Fremont Station Pedestrian Connections FY19-Qtr4 FY20—-Qtr 3 $0.5 (added to repaving contract)
Dublin/Pleasanton Secure Bike Parking, Iron Horse Trail FY19 - Qtr 4 FY21-Qtr2 $3.00
San Leandro Station Bike Station FY19 —Qtr 4 FY21-Qtr 2 $0.80

2 North Berkeley Station Bike Station, Ohlone Gap Closure FY19-Qtr4 FY21-Qtr1l $1.00

8 Downtown SF Embarcadero & Civic Center Bike Stations FY19 - Qtr 2 FY19 - Qtr 2 $0.30

E 19th Street Station Bike Station FY19 —Qtr 4 FY21 - Qtr 2 $1.0 (part of larger project)

E Bicycle Stair Channels FY19-Qtr 1 FY20 — Qtr 3 $0.3 (multiple contracts)

2 Lake Merritt Station Plaza (incl. Bike Station) FY20-Qtr1 FY22 —Qtr 2 | $1.0 (part of Transit Operations Facility)
MacArthur Plaza (not BART contract) | FY18 —Qtr 4 $2.0 (supplement)
MacArthur Station 40t Street Pedestrian Lighting FY19 —Qtr 3 FY20-Qtr 2 $0.40
Accessible Fare Gates FY18 — Qtr 3 (Various) Varies $2.00
Pittsburg/B.P. & N. Concord Ped/Bike Improvements FY20-Qtr1 FY21-Qtr3 $0.80
Civic Center Intersection Improvements FY20-Qtr 3 FY21-Qtr1 $1.40

E % Pittsburg/Bay Point— Pick-Up/Drop-Off & Bike Lanes FY18 - Qtr 3 FY19 - Qtr 3 $0.2 (added to repaving contract)
& =| Balboa Park Intermodal FY20 - Qtr 2 FY22 - Qtr2 $0.20
% Districtwide Accessibility Improvement Program FY19-Qtr4 FY23 —Qtr 2 $2.60
g Elevator Lobby LED Lighting Improvements FY18 —Qtr 3 FY19 —Qtr 2 $0.40
Expand Safe Access to Stations Sub-Total $20.90






El Cerrito del Norte

Ohlone Greenway & New Bus Shelters

e Goals
— Remove conflicts between vehicles, pedestrians, and cyclists; enhance bicycle and
pedestrian access to the station; improve kiss n’ ride
— Improve safety and comfort of bus intermodal area
— Deliver with other Station Modernization improvements (listed as Options)

 Timeline: Station Modernization Contract Awarded in 2017
— NTP issued May 2017: Options exercised
— Summer 2019: Substantial Completion

1Q ol






| Dublin/Pleasanton Iron Horse Trail

+ Secure Bike Parking

e Goals
— Close gap in Iron Horse Trail through Dublin/Pleasanton Station
— Improve pedestrian and bicycle access to BART station
— Increase secure bike parking at station

e Timeline:
— Early 2019: 100% design completed
— Summer/Fall 2019: NTP
— Summer/Fall 2020: Substantial Completion






MacArthur Underpass Lighting

e @Goals

— Improve perceived and actual sense of security in the 40t Street underpass
— Create a sense of “place”

— Allow for better use of curb supply for multi-modal use in the underpass

e Timeline:
— Spring 2018: Conceptual design / cost estimate completed
— Fall 2018: 100% design o o
— Spring 2019: NTP & g
— Winter 2020: Substantial completion .

Legend

@ Walk

® Bike

® Transit
Drop off

@® Drive

10





oo | North Concord to Antioch BART Access Study

e @Goals

— ldentify potential capital access improvements (pedestrian, bicycle, vehicular, transit) that
will improve access to each station

— Position projects for potential Measure RR funding, other grant opportunities
— ldentify potential parking management strategies

e Timeline: Updated Board in May 2017; Study completed February 2018
— Available online: www.bart.gov/EastCoCoAccess

§ +Pittsburg /
N Bay.Point

- - Aga A
e TRk gl
271N

Pifshurgl _ ~ 4 ¥7

Center®
T S 51 ~=7




http://www.bart.gov/eastcocoaccess



I YRS North Concord to Antioch BART Access Study

Top Priority Projects

@ Pedestrian
Bicycle

| . Alternative 1: Direct
|| connection to station.

™ Htematwe k Cmss—hghwa;r

™ North Concord:
A Multi-Use Path to

Industrial Park Pittsburg/Bay Point: Bicycle Lanes on BART Access Road






YRS North Concord to Antioch BART Access Study
el oordinated Project Delivery

I & 7

’
-3 v b
g :
ot 1
'y £ .
> il
i } 2

= -t_'_"l=_ J‘_‘ ., » v

A
——
—

|ty v

al P
D) e e Emmm [
REGRY,
-
( =
dorg

.

wl
[ T e = ——
5

|

o0 a Y SRR S

Pitts.b.urg/Bay Point: . A Pittsburg/Bay Point:
Addition of bicycle lanes on BART Station Eastern Passenger Drop-off Area

Access Roads Reconfiguration
13






B North Concord to Antioch BART Access Study
Top Priority Parking Management

Designate additional carpool parking spaces; awareness campaign to
promote carpooling and Scoop

e Manage parking on surrounding streets for BART use

Shared parking: Pittsburg Center only station with potential underutilized
lots within walking distance of BART; pursue discussions with owners/city

 Satellite Parking at selected stations contingent upon funding for shuttles

§ oRittsburg/ A
o '”“"Bay Point

/"* '

| S vale o e e Antloaﬁ A
:North Concord/ Plttsburg ke i, '-7_ il et A

- Martinez - Cenkter

S L
A B TS A :3 c






B North Concord to Antioch BART Access Study
Next Steps

 Ongoing coordination with local municipalities to
advance off-property projects

e Partner on grant applications, pilot programs

e Submit eligible top-priority projects for

implementation through Measure RR access funding
Project Selection process

e Advance on-property parking management programs





WY Pedestrian and Bicycle Network Ga
b , °

Closure Study (Phase 1)

Purpose & Scope

Develop methodology for selecting 10 Focus Stations (Phase 1)
Engage local jurisdictions & advocacy groups

Comprehensively assess station area pedestrian and bicycle access and
safety needs, both on and off BART property

Generate capital improvement list & cost estimates to position projects for
potential Measure RR funding & other grant opportunities

Identify system-wide recommendations & concepts requiring further study

Schedule: To be completed in Summer 2018

16





Pedestrian and Bicycle Network Gap

Closure Study (Phase 1)

BART System Map

Pittsburg/Bay Point-SFO/Millbrae Line
Dublin/PMleasanton-Daly City Line

Richmond -Warm Springs/
South Fremont L'mep(

Warm Springs/South Fremont-
Daly City Li

O EVENING G TLNDIAY TERVICE
Richmond -Millbrae Line

MO EVEATE 4 TNTAY SARACE

Daklsnd Interruationsl Alrport [0AK)
SERVICE BETWTEN COLUIREUM 8 DAKLAND
INTERMATIONAL ARPORT §TATIONS

nichmo"d 4 ‘\;\Q? EEREERRREEEEREEERERERNNNE .:__;“".
Pittsburg/Bay Pointe - |

N orth Concord/Martineze

Concorde

Pleasant Hill/Contra Costa Centreo

Walnut Creeke

W\ El Cerrito del Norteo
B | Cerrito Plazao

Morth Berkeleyo
Downtown Berkeley

Transfer Station
Transfer Station for Service 1

88 11111

Crakband international Alrpart
Future BART Service-App need
o BART Parking

: Lafayetteq
_ Orindae o
AL Rockridgeo

J'.FIT MaCcArthur mas masime resmsouse)

1
3
i

fir- 19th St/Oakland mus masses wosmaoue

12th St/Oakland City Center

oWest Oakland

SAN FRANCISCO EAST BAY

Lake Merritto
Fruitvalee

Coliseum @uEinsii i

=

San Leandroe

itro Valleye

Bay Faire
Dublin/Pleasantone

V™ Glén Park f ga“%!"dl - RENEEREERIRNRNERTE
©eDaly Cit -- nternationa Weist Biibliri
! B__a_lboa Park Airport (OAK) Haywardo Pleasantone

. H
South San Franciscoo South Hayward@
San Brunoo
& 5an Francisco
International Airport (SFO)

Union City@

e st
o T e

PENINSULA

. N,
o SAN JOSE

For real-time information, visit www.bart.gov

Selection Criteria (10 Stations)

Station Access Types
Geography

Demographics

History of collisions

Future Land Use & Ridership
Access Targets

Local commitment &
Partnership

17





Pedestrian and Bicycle Network Gap

Closure Study (Phase 1)

Potential

Collision Analysis

Ashby

Improvements @

3

Ashby Station, Barkeley
BART Pedestrian & Blcycle Gap Study
Hotspots

LEGEND
Existing| Planned
Class Il BikeLane | | = qylerSt 0 R .
e =eee (lass ||| Bike Boulevard
saaa (Class IV Separated Bikeway
(2Way)
BART Station Entrance
Bike Station
Recommended
= Route TBD
mmE Class IV Separated Bikeway
(2-Way)
P1 Pedestrian Improvement
B1 Bicycle Improvement
PB1 Ped & Bike Improvement

T —h

B3 ED

CAMPUS -

ROBERTS.






e Advance priority projects through design and
construction

 |dentify projects to be implemented due to contract
efficiencies with other BART projects

e Proposed Bike / Ped Gap Study Phase 2 to continue
analysis of all stations in system.

 Winter 2018 — Access Performance Metrics Update

19





		Slide Number 1

		Slide Number 2

		Slide Number 3

		Access Mode Share Targets (home-based)

		Slide Number 5

		Slide Number 6

		Slide Number 7

		Slide Number 8

		Slide Number 9

		Slide Number 10

		Slide Number 11

		Slide Number 12

		North Concord to Antioch BART Access Study�Top Priority Projects

		North Concord to Antioch BART Access Study �Coordinated Project Delivery

		North Concord to Antioch BART Access Study �Top Priority Parking Management

		North Concord to Antioch BART Access Study �Next Steps

		Slide Number 17

		Slide Number 18

		Slide Number 19

		Slide Number 20





